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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or “Best Pacific”’, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group” or “we”), | am
pleased to present the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Two years into the 2019 novel coronavirus disease
(“COVID-19”) pandemic (the “Pandemic”), we have
been through a year full of challenges and opportunities in
2021. The implementation of disease control measures in
different countries at different times throughout 2021 has
resulted in inimical impacts on the respective economies
and manufacturing was certainly one of the most
affected sectors. Nevertheless, people have also tried to
acclimate to the new normal in the late-pandemic era.
The continuous efforts by the governments around the
world to contain the Pandemic including wider vaccination
among the global population and initiatives to restore their
economies and market confidence to the pre-pandemic
level have resulted in economic normalcy to some extent.
The global gross domestic product (“GDP”) was estimated
by the International Monetary Fund (the “IMF”) to increase
by 5.9% in 2021, in contrast to a decrease of 3.1% in
2020. We have observed a strong rebound in market
demands for consumer goods in general, and the growing
health consciousness of the general public has resulted
in higher consumption demands for sportswear and
healthcare products, which in turn has laid the path to the
continuous growth in our sportswear and apparel fabric
business segment.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRE®|E

While we continue to maintain our competitive edge of
being a one-stop solutions provider of a comprehensive
range of lingerie materials and reinforce our leading
position in the global lingerie material industry, we
have successfully grown our sportswear and apparel
fabric business segment over the years. Such segment
has again shown an encouraging sales growth of
approximately 43.8% in 2021. Given the myriad potentials
in the sportswear and apparel fabric markets, we believe
our sportswear and apparel fabric business segment will
continue to be our growth driver in the near future.

Giving credits to our international manufacturing footprint,
Best Pacific has been helpful to our customers to reduce
supply chain disruptions, which is commonly seen during
the Pandemic time. The agility and resilience of our
business model has certainly won the applause from our
eminent customers.

ERMESRFIERE AU ZERRYE —
AR RRERBNRFES  URESR
BREZNERR DT R AT Z AT ZER
BPIELFERTADER T RMANEBRE
EREBMEHZDE - ZOBR_FT_—F
BREF/LTAMENRER  HEEREID
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With the uncertainties in the Pandemic situation and
the overall economic activities around the world, market
conditions are expected to be highly fluid in 2022. Best
Pacific will remain steadfastly focused on bringing forward
strategies and actions to attain its long term success. We
will continue to work with our customers and business
partners, striving to deliver a promising return to our
shareholders in the long run. None of the achievements
in 2021 would have been possible without the hard work
and commitments from our staff and colleagues, | would
like to take this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors
and all our dedicated employees across the globe for
their continued loyalty, diligence, professionalism and
contributions to the Group.

Lu Yuguang
Chairrman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TRE®E

ENRBEHBREHBEEE LN T EE
- BE T MR RG SRR E
2 - BRRRSEERTE BTN R BATT
MERBRES N 1T8) - AEEREIRD) o K
BEREFPREBBHAIE  BHIRKRRSE
REENABE®R —T-—FHMEXM
HHEMETIMRACHZOENBIAD @ &K
BREILESRHEESMRMZRAARE
BT —HURNEH  PE  EXRBOHENY
SEAER -

B %
FE
FB T _F=A-+N\H

BAEERERERAR/ B —F5%K

7 LL4



»>> 8

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

BUSINESS REVIEW

With the implementation of mobility restrictions or social
distancing policies from time to time in different countries
and regions to curb waves of the Pandemic, it was
undisbutable that the operating environment around
the world had been severely harmed at different times
throughout 2021. Nevertheless, cautious optimism
towards the COVID-19 also started to emerge in 2021
as people got to accustom themselves to the new norm
during this Pandemic battle. An improved economic
outlook buoyed sentiments and drove optimism in the
global consumption demands, which further solidified the
overall rebound of the manufacturing sectors. According
to the IMF, the GDP of the advanced economies was
estimated to increase by 5.0% and the GDP of the
emerging market and developing economies was
estimated to increase by 6.5% in 2021. The world’s two
largest economies, namely the United States of America
(the “U.S.”) and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), experienced GDP growth of 5.7% and 8.1%
in 2021, respectively, according to the U.S. Bureau of
Economic Analysis and the National Bureau of Statistics of
China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Benefitting from the recovery of the global economies
and the pick up of market demands, the overall Group’s
revenue had increased by approximately 37.2% and
hit a historical high in 2021. Coupled with the higher
health awareness of the general public, our continuous
investment in sportswear and apparel products continued
to pay off. The sales revenue of sportswear and apparel
fabric materials segment had increased to approximately
HK$2,438.9 million, representing a year-on-year growth of
approximately 43.8%. Notably, our sales revenue of elastic
webbing segment also recorded a year-on-year growth of
approximately 44.2% in 2021.

2021

Total Revenue
HK$ million
R
4,792.7

1.9%

24.7%
1,183.8

Elastic Fabric
(Sportswear
and apparel)
EMEAYER

Elastic Webbing
AT

(EBRERRE)

BIEE A wm & oA
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4WERRI LI R 444.2% ©
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2020

Total Revenue
HK$ million

Elastic Fabric Lace
(Lingerie) A
EM Y E R

(ZHERTX)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

Building on our competitive edges, we continued to further
develop our businesses by deploying our set strategies:
(i) leveraging on our international manufacturing footprint
to provide sustainable supply chain solutions to cater for
the best interests of our customers, which encompassed
reduction in production lead time, catering for other trade
and tariff considerations as well as reducing supply chain
disturbances as a result of the intermittent anti-pandemic
measures; (i) continuing to provide a simplified and
centralized sourcing solution to our customers as a
one-stop solutions provider of a comprehensive range
of lingerie materials, which could help our customers to
optimize their inventory levels as well as to shorten their
manufacturing lead time; and (i) further investment in
our research and development capabilities to bring about
product innovations to keep abreast of changing market
trends.

ABEMNHRFED RER - BAEREIH
ERRE  E—FERRMANES : ()8 A
HAINBEREEMR B M AT BN EER
RIE - DRBRMATPHEAN - HH
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fem B R AN ELBICEFKFALLERE
ERAE M) — P RERN IR A
N ABMAREREF - RERTEZE(CH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our international operations

Our international manufacturing footprint not only forms
a vital part of our agile business model, the improved
performance from our overseas operations also
contributed to a better overall financial performance of the
Group in 2021.

Although the Pandemic had seriously affected the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) in 2021, in particular the
southern regions in the third quarter of 2021, Vietnam was
still able to achieve a GDP growth of 2.6%, according to
the General Statistics Office of Vietham as compared to
2020. The operation of our manufacturing site located at
Hai Duong in Vietnam was relatively less affected by the
Pandemic and achieved a year-on-year revenue growth of
approximately 26.9% in 2021.

According to the IMF’s latest projection, the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (“Sri Lanka”) was
expected to achieve a GDP growth of 3.6% in 2021, as
compared to a negative GDP growth of 3.6% in 2020. Sri
Lanka’s economy was also picking up from the Pandemic
and we observed an uptake in business momentum in
2021. Considerable management efforts had been spent
on capacity utilization in our operations in Sri Lanka and
improvement in the relevant profitabilities was observed
as a result of the overall higher efficiencies and economies
of scale during the year ended 31 December 2021. A
year-on-year revenue growth of approximately 98.5% was
observed in our operations in Sri Lanka in 2021.

BIEE A wm & oA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

Although the Pandemic had a relatively less influence on us
due to the nature of our business model, we faced various
costs pressure in 2021 which undermined our profitability
to a certain extent. With the fossil fuel almost doubling its
price in 2021, the market prices of many oil by-products
and chemical raw materials had increased considerably,
which inevitably resulted in an increased cost of our major
raw materials. The inflation and rising staff costs across
our different manufacturing locations also added weight to
our overall production costs. Nevertheless, we strived our
best to digest these costs pressure through a combination
of measures, which included but not limited to further
optimization of our production efficiency, more stringent
wastage control and the exploration with our customers
and partnering brands on the possibilities of product price
adjustments.

BEHRBPIERBEANLEE - RIEH M
MEEREE  ZADR_F=—FA|E
RESEAARES AER—ERELHIHT
BAHWAEFES - RZT=—F - LAMRK
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BEAERAEN - A - ROBOINBEB
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sales
of its major products, which include elastic fabric, elastic
webbing and lace.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue
amounted to approximately HK$4,792.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$1,298.4
million, or approximately 37.2%, from approximately

BIEE A wm & oA

Bt 755 [0 B
A

AEENRATERBEEELTEER 8
EEMEBYER BT REMA -

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE K
ABHLTRTEERS T BEE_Z2_-F
F+-A=T—HLFENKALS494.3
B & B T 41,298.48 B & T4

HK$3,494.3 million for the year ended 31 December 37.2% - NFA - BBERAEBNFEZANK
2020. The increase in overall revenue during the year was MAXEFHHEER] E R H RES AR KR
mainly attributable to the increase in the sales volume of KEPHIESEHEER SRR MNE
our products, as a result of the rebounded sales orders mmSHE I ANFTER o
from our lingerie customers and the continued growth in
the sales orders from our sportswear and apparel clients.
A comparison of the Group’s revenue for the years ended rEEHZE T - —FR-_FT-_FF+=-H
31 December 2021 and 2020 by product categories is as =+—H U:EEZ%U\HZ? miBRIE D E L
follows: BT
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020 Change
—EZ-F —T_EF g)
Revenue % of  Revenue % of
(HK$’000) Revenue (HK$'000) Revenue (HK$'000) %
WA HBAH WA (R AR
(F#Ex) Batk (57T Bak  (FEx) AOL
Elastic fabric B E R 3,622,677 75.6 2,660,926 76.2 961,751 36.1
- Sportswear and  —EE)RERRE 2,438,897 50.9 1,696,016 48.6 742 881 43.8
apparel
— Lingerie — ALK 1,183,780 24.7 964,910 27.6 218,870 22.7
Elastic webbing  SEME4EAS 1,080,200 225 749,025 214 331,175 44.2
Lace S 89,784 1.9 84,323 2.4 5,461 6.5
Total F 4,792,661 100.0 3,494,274 100.0 1,298,387 37.2

BAEERERERAR/ B —F5%K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from
sales of elastic fabric amounted to approximately
HK$3,622.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$961.8 million, or approximately 36.1%,
as compared to the year ended 31 December 2020.
Leveraging on the Group’s multi-regional production
strategy, high product quality, strong innovation and
research and development capabilities, the Group had
successfully entered into certain core programmes
with new partnering brands in the sportswear and
apparel business segment. The Group had maintained
a high growth in the segment and our sales revenue
of sportswear and apparel segment increased from
approximately HK$1,696.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$2,438.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, hitting another new
high and also representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 43.8%, which had made our sportswear
and apparel segment the dominating revenue contributor
of the Group.

As a result of the rebounded sales orders from our lingerie
customers, especially in the U.S. and European markets,
our sales revenue of lingerie fabric materials increased
from approximately HK$965.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately HK$1,183.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 22.7%.

The decent recovery of the lingerie market in 2021 had
also resulted in an increase in the volume of our elastic
webbing and lace products sold. Revenue from sales of
elastic webbing amounted to approximately HK$1,080.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing
an increase of approximately HK$331.2 million, or
approximately 44.2%, as compared to the year ended 31
December 2020.

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprises costs of raw
materials, manufacturing overheads, and direct labour
costs.

BHE—_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HILEFE " #
EEEEMAEEMNKARL3,622.78 EH
T BREBEE_E_TF+_A=+—HLF
1L IN47961.88 & B T3k £936.1%  ‘RFE
AEBMNBRGEERE  LENEREE
R EMREIF A - AEBERKNITA
BEYRERREEBD BTG ERECE

F A B o A6 B U 5 2D 4 45 BR R 0
£ - TR MEBRE R 5 28 & U A

MEE T -_TF+_-_A=+—HILtFEY
41,696 0EEBLENEHE T -_—F
+ZA=+—HBIFEMH2,438.98 &E
T BB RL43.8% WA NX —#5 0 £
BMHEFSRERRED BRALEBRK
R U A B o

AR ZERKEFREERTEDA @ 52
EEXEEBMNTS - ZMEAKEE DR A HE
ERAREBEE_E-_ZTF+_A=+—81t
FEMLYBS.0EEBTENERE_T =
—F+-_A=+—BILFENH1,183.8H
ST RIERL22.7%

:%:—Emﬁ%mﬁﬁ%m@iﬁ%ﬁﬁ
M EEAE R ERERMNEEEM - HE

S —F+_A=+—HILFE " %%%&
BMERWAAEKT1,080288 8T BHEHE
—EEF+ A=+ —HIEFEEEND
331288 BT A44.2% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of sales — by nature of expense

BIEE A wm & oA

HERAN - RAXMHESD

For the year ended 31 December

BEE+t-A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020 Change
—E-—-F —TTF 2
Cost of Cost of

sales % of cost sales % of cost
(HK$’000) of sales (HK$'000) of sales  (HK$'000) %

HERAK HEERE HEKS HEEKRA
(F#x) Baotk  (FEmT Batk (FExT) ERaNsd
Raw materials R 1,841,445 50.0 1,289,819 487 551,626 42.8

Manufacturing

overheads HERY 1,403,762 38.1 1,036,207 39.1 367,555 £IoHo)
Direct labour BEEATL 414,603 11.3 306,146 115 108,457 35.4
Others Hit 21,019 0.6 18,742 0.7 2,277 12.1
Total st 3,680,829 100.0 2,650,914 100.0 1,029,915 38.9

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately HK$3,680.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$1,029.9
million, or approximately 38.9%, as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase in cost of sales
was primarily due to the increase in overall sales volume.
In 2021, prices of most commodities including our main
raw materials were on the increase. The higher unit prices
have resulted in a relatively larger increase in our raw
material costs as compared to the overall increase in the
Group’s turnover. At the same time, we also observed
the cost inflation in most other manufacturing costs,
including utilities costs, outsourcing costs as well as
employee benefits. The Group was able to partly digest
these increased costs through better economies of scale
and cooperative discussion with our customers on certain
product price adjustments.

AEEHZ2 T - —F+_-_A=+—HItHF
EZHERAKA#3,680.8E8ET  BE
EZE_EF+A=1+—HBIEFEEMND
1,029.95 8 /8 7T 5L #938.9% o 5 & A AN 12
MEBRAHNREBREHESE M - R ——
FoRXBrER (BERMANEZEMR)
MBI BT R - AAEEEEEANERE
#EML - it FBROEMERE B
B R AR A 3G AR B K o [RIBF - B AR
BRI KXZHEMBERARN LR - 8K
BB IBRAUKEERF - NEBAEH
BRATRITNBBECEAREBERS RITHE
AETERNBRAZE U5 EILZERA
R _EREE S -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AR

Cost of sales - by product category HENET - RERERE S

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1—HLEE

2021 2020 Change
—E-—-F —TTF 2
Cost of Cost of
sales % of cost sales % of cost
(HK$°000) of sales (HK$'000) of sales  (HK$'000) %

HERAE HHEME HEKK HHEERAK
(F&T) Aotk (T#HT) Batt  (THx) B

Elastic fabric B A E R 2,895,140 78.6 2,090,444 78.9 804,696 38.5
Elastic webbing 584475 732,111 19.9 510,291 19.2 221,820 43.5
Lace E 53,578 1.5 50,179 1.9 3,399 6.8
Total et 3,680,829 100.0 2,650,914 100.0 1,029,915 38.9
The increase in cost of sales of various business segments HE-_E-_—F+-_A=1+—HIEFE &
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was generally FEF D) E R AN IS R B AR FE S ) B0
in line with the increase in revenue of the corresponding g A& H AR —2 o

business segments.

Gross profit, gross profit margin and net profit margin EXN - ERNERFFER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2021 2020

—ZT-—F —E-TF
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin
EF EFF EAH EME
(HK$°000) (%) (HK$'000) (%)
(F#&x) (B k) (F%&T) (Antk)
Elastic fabric SE M A T 727,537 20.1 570,482 21.4
Elastic webbing e 348,089 32.2 238,734 31.9
Lace B 36,206 40.3 34,144 40.5
Total st 1,111,832 23.2 843,360 241
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Albeit a slight decrease in gross profit margin of the elastic
fabric segment, which was mainly due to the change in the
relevant product mix, as well as increased raw materials
costs, the Group had maintained a relatively stable
overall gross profit margin. The Group’s overall gross
profit increased from approximately HK$843.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$1,111.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately HK$401.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 61.0%, as
compared to approximately HK$249.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Group recorded
a net profit margin of approximately 8.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase of
approximately 1.3 percentage points, as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase in net
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
mainly attributable to (i) the overall increase in the volume
of products sold and (ii) the positive impacts from better
economies of scale attained in 2021.

BIEE A wm & oA

B R BEE RL D S B R IR E
HIEEHNEEERAENEFHUREN
BN EHBATE - AEB{N#SEYETEN
BREIHNR - AELBENEBEEENREE-Z
—EF+ A=+ —HILFELB43.4B 8
BTN EREE—_E-_—F+=-A=+—H
IFFEEH1111.8BEBTT o

AEBEHE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF
B FRNBEANINIBEEST  BHEC
E-EF+ A=+ —HIEFE4249.28
BAETIENLY61.0% HBE-_T-_—F+=
A=+—HLEFE  AEEHEFFHEERY
8.4% BEZ_T-_ZTF+_A=+—H
EFEENAIIERTLEH  HBHE_T - —
FH+_A=Z+—HILFEMNFABERERE
ZRHAN)ERHEEEEE LA RHZE
T FER B EMNRELET RN EER

A
=
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly consisted of bank
interest income, government grants, net proceeds from
sales of scrap materials, gain from bargain purchase from
acquisition of a business, compensation income from
customers and others. The following table sets forth the
breakdown of the Group’s other income for the years
indicated:

Hl A

AEBEHEMKRATEBRBRITHMEMA -
BF#BE  SHEERMERRFE - WHE
—HEKNZERBE RS  REEPHEE
WA R EAM o MREFIIAERBRARFEED
H W A BFAR

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—BLFE

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ECEF

(HK$°000) (HK$'000)

(F#&7) (F#%7T)

Bank interest income RITHBA 21,850 8,238

Government grants BT E 12,250 13,036

Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials  $4% B} Fr15 2018 F 58 4,404 5,547
Gain from bargain purchase from W —TBEBKA B E KRR

acquisition of a business 3,900 -

Compensation income from customers K8 &FHIEEEW A 1,284 11,584

Others EAth 7,006 5,401

Total et 50,694 43,806

The increase in other income by approximately 15.7%,
from approximately HK$43.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$50.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, was mainly due to the
increase in bank interest income received, as a result of
the improved liquidity position of the Group throughout the
year, and the gain from bargain purchase from acquisition
of a business. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the
Report of the Directors and Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HWAEEE—_E-_EF+_-_A=+—8H
IFFERA43.8BERBTIE M5 7T%EE,
E-E - F+-_A=Z+—HILEFEHYH
50.7TEEAL TEREANRAEENRAFE
FRENE A RNE - IRITHE WAL AN LA
MU — TR EE RS ATE - WiE
FEEREEFERET (HERIRFER
EBR 5| —f A I IRERMIFESS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses mainly consisted of net foreign
exchange gain (loss), gain from change in fair value of a
derivative financial instrument, (loss) gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and others. The following
table sets forth the breakdown of the Group’s other gains
and losses for the years indicated:

BIEE A wm & oA

Hitil s R &8

Hipam BB ZBREINEKRS (BE)
FRECTESRIARATFEZS WS  HE
ME - BENRE (BR) K@ kEM - T
RN ARBRPTREENE b Y et &1
BRAR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

(HK$’000) (HK$’000)

(F#&x) (F#&T)

Net foreign exchange gain (loss) b X s (B518) %58 1,731 (26,327)

Gain from change in fair value of TTESRMIT AN EESKE 310 1
a derivative financial instrument

(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant H&EYI% - BFE &&#E (B58) = (135) 72

and equipment
Others Hih - 537
Total st 1,906 (25,717)

The net foreign exchange loss in the year ended 31
December 2020 turned into a net foreign exchange gain
of approximately HK$1.7 milion in the year ended 31
December 2021. This was the result of () the net foreign
exchange gain attained in our overseas operations due
to appreciation of U.S. Dollars (“US$”) against Vietnam
Dong (“WVND”) and Sri Lanka Rupee (“‘LKR”) in 2021 and (i)
reduced foreign exchange loss in our PRC operations due
to softer Renminbi (‘RMB”) appreciation as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model,
net of reversal

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model,
net of reversal, represented the result of impairment
assessment under expected credit loss model on trade
receivables. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net
of reversal, amounted to approximately HK$12.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$5.7 million
from approximately HK$6.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in impairment losses
was mainly attributable to the overall increase in trade
receivables balance, as well as the provision made against
few specific customers.

HE T _TF+_-_A=+—HI-FRHE
HEBEREE(ARE T -_—F+_-A=
+—HLEFRMELRZFENMTEES
T WTTERIR-ZZE=-—F =1 ([£
T RgmE ((HEE]) MITEBREL
([EF WL ]) FHE - S BRFIHEINETEER
BEIKSFENINEEE T -_TF+ -
A=+—BIE&ERL  aRARE (AR
) FHERERIE - R MPREENER
EBERTR D o

AHEEFBRENETRESE (HRER)

R EEEEEATE T RERE (FkRER)
TEEZRWFIEEREEFEENXNIE TN
FHETGER - BE-_E-_—F+ A=+
—RBIFE  BHEEEEEXBETNRES
B (HBRELOD) A120888 T BEHE
—E-EF+-_A=Z+—HILFENL6.3
BBEAETEMANSTAEEET - MEEBEN
ENMEERARESRKFIBEHOER L
AREE TR EREFPIER A BERTE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of
employee benefit expenses, transportation, marketing and
promotional expenses and other selling and distribution
expenses. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
represented approximately 4.5% and 4.2% of its total
revenue, respectively. The year-on-year decrease in the
ratio of selling and distribution expenses against total
revenue was mainly due to the economies of scale
achieved in the year ended 31 December 2021.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consisted of employee
benefit expenses, depreciation, motor vehicle expenses,
bank charges and other administrative expenses. For the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group’s
administrative expenses represented approximately 7.3%
and 7.0% of its total revenue, respectively. The year-on-year
decrease in the ratio of administrative expenses against
total revenue was mainly due to the economies of scale
achieved in the year ended 31 December 2021.

Research and development costs

The Group is dedicated to catering the changing market
preferences by introducing innovative lingerie, sportswear
and apparel materials. For the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021, the Group’s research and development
costs represented approximately 2.3% and 2.1% of its
total revenue, respectively.

HERDHMEX
HEXSHEAYTEZERREERNAY - &
B MSHEEREERIUREMBEERS
HAY BE_Z_TFER-_T-_—F4+=
A=+—HLEFE AEEMNHEERDHER
SE > AR B A B 494.5% % 4.2% ° $HE K&
DHEAEBEWANE BRI TR EEZ
HREZ2_E - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
EIRRIBELBEFTEL ©

TTHAAX

THRAXFEEHEEERMNAS - & - A
HRAY  RTERAREMITEAY - AEE
REBEE_ZE-_ZTFR-_FT-_—F+-_A=+
—BUEFEMTHRAI DGR AL
7.3%%7.0% o 1T B 15 B WA K I /]
LT FERHREBE_TE_—F+_A
=T —HUEFEERRELER -

B A

AEBENRSIABFHZEAK - EEAR
*&%#%ﬂ FELVGDETEHBILAMBE
9 o H=E —EFER-T-_—F+=ZRA=
+— Etiﬁ AEBENHEZEBRADFGR
WA #I2.3%K2.1% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs mainly represented interest
expenses for bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The
finance costs decreased by approximately 18.5% from
approximately HK$75.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$61.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease in finance
costs was primarily due to the overall decrease in average
borrowings balance of the Group as well as the general
decrease in market interest rates during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Income tax expense

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of the Hong
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for both years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, unless there is any
applicable preferential tax treatment.

The Company'’s subsidiaries, Dongguan Best Pacific Textile
Company Limited (“Dongguan BPT”) and Dongguan New
Horizon Elastic Fabric Company Limited (“Dongguan
NHE”), had obtained the qualification as high and new
technology enterprises since 2010 and 2016, respectively,
which were renewed for an additional three years from the
year ended 31 December 2019. Hence, Dongguan BPT
and Dongguan NHE had been subject to the preferential
tax treatment and the applicable tax rate for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 was 15%.

BIEE A wm & oA

il & AR
AEBNMEXRAETERBITERLEES
BENNERE BMEKABHBE_T_ZTF
T A=+ —HULEFELHTSTEEB TR
18 % ERE—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
IEELAI.7TEEBTT BRI T)
FTEHREE T -_—F+-_A=+—H1t
FEMNAEEBFLHEREHREBEERL ETH
F R E R TREFTE o

Fr8BiRAx

BRERBFEROFMESHEMAS @ 5EK
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R MBE2E BB TSR B
16.5% M T R BH o TFF A 5% F1S T /R 4R
BERMNEB TR 2 SAEEEIL16.5%2 2
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FMEHERE2EEB L 2Bt EEH R T
M18.25% N B iB2H BB T 2 (st FE R Bl i
FHEI16.5%:1E o

BIBEPBECEMSRERDEMSHENE
AR BRIEBEMEMBERERRERS
B BHFEAREEZE_ZE_ZFLE_F
T F+ A=+ BHIMEAFENHEEXS
25% o

ARBINHB AR REBANBER R A
([REBRB]) PR HEEEEYMERA
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BBE_ZE—hhFE+-_A=+—RBIEEHE
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T+ - A=1+—HUIFEMNEARERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

Withholding tax on dividends was calculated at 5% of the
estimated dividends to be received from the subsidiaries in
the PRC during the year.

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rate for the
subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The subsidiary
in Vietnam is eligible for a tax holiday for two financial
years since the first financial year of taxable profits and a
tax concession at a tax rate of 10% for the following four
financial years. With the new incentive in place during the
year ended 31 December 2018 and by fulfiling certain
stated requirements as set by the Ministry of Industry
and Trade, the subsidiary in Vietnam had been eligible
for a tax holiday for four financial years since 2018, a
tax concession at a tax rate of 5% for the following nine
financial years and a tax concession at a tax rate of 10%
for the next following two financial years.

Pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No.
10 of 2021 in Sri Lanka, the applicable tax rate for the
subsidiaries operating in Sri Lanka is 24% for both years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021. By fulfilling certain
export requirements as set by the Board of Investment of
Sri Lanka, the subsidiaries of the Group in Sri Lanka had
enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 14% for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2021. In addition, one of these
subsidiaries is currently eligible for a tax holiday till the year
ending 31 December 2024.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated at the
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The effective tax rate was approximately 12.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31
December 2020: approximately 14.1%). The decrease
in the effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December
2021 was mainly due to the overall increasing profit
contributions from overseas subsidiaries located in
jurisdictions with better tax incentives.

BB IR FEANTE S EE R RENE
NEWER 2 f% B AI5%ETE -

RIBHEAEEEEMEHARERD - RN
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RERMETRFEEZEBE10%H R FE
B-REBE-T-/\F+_A=1+—HL#F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, net working capital
(calculated as current assets less current liabilities) was
approximately HK$815.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$20.9 milion as compared with 31
December 2020. The current ratio (calculated as current
assets/current liabilities) is at 1.3 times as at 31 December
2021, which was similar with the 1.4 times as at 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash
generated from operating activities decreased from
approximately HK$754.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$522.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly due to
(i) the general increase in the unit prices of our main raw
materials and (i) the purchase of more raw materials to
cope with the increasing market demands for the Group’s
products during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to
approximately HK$414.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, as compared to approximately
HK$212.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The increase in net cash used in investing activities during
the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly due to
the increase in placements of pledged bank deposits and
short term bank deposits in the year ended 31 December
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash
used in financing activities amounted to approximately
HK$363.9 million, as compared to approximately
HK$47.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The increase in net cash used in financing activities for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly due to
the net repayment of borrowings as well as the payment
of dividends in larger amounts, as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Group had attained a
better financial performance and overall stronger cash
positions throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

BIEE A wm & oA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHR BN

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio
was 28.9% (as at 31 December 2020: 36.7%), which was
calculated on the basis of the amount of net debt position
(sum of bank deposits and bank balances and cash, less
total bank and other borrowings) as a percentage of total
equity. Details of bank borrowings are set out in Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. The Group was in
a net debt position of approximately HK$976.1 million as
at 31 December 2021, as compared to a net debt position
of approximately HK$1,107.4 million as at 31 December
2020.

Working capital management

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEEHN
BFEEBBLERA28.9% (R_T_TF+
—A=+—H:86.7%) ENREKESE
(R1TTFE A R IR7T 4 8 IR 3R & A9 42 R 3R
TREMERRRE) EZGENE S LE
B E - RITERNFBENGZRE T FHRE
W27 - RZE-—F+-_A=+—H &
EEBKFEREALNIT6IBEETL MR
T _TF+ A=+ HNEKFHA AL
1,107 48 8B T °

EEESER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1—HLHEE

2021 2020 Change
—E-—F —TFHF &
(days) (%)
(R&) (APt
Trade and bills receivables B ZRIFIER
turnover days JEWE BEE R E 63.1 81.8 (18.7) (22.9)
Trade and bills payables B HEMNRIER
turnover days ERNRBRERY 68.4 82.8 (14.4) (17.4)
Inventory turnover days FERERY 118.0 137.2 (19.2) (14.0)

The year-on-year decrease in trade and bills receivables
turnover days for the year ended 31 December 2021
by approximately 18.7 days was primarily due to better
management on receivables in general.

The year-on-year decrease in trade and bills payables
turnover days for the year ended 31 December 2021 by
approximately 14.4 days was primarily due to the increase
in use of cash to settle transactions for the benefit of
better prices.

The year-on-year decrease in inventory turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2021 by approximately 19.2
days was primarily due to better inventory control by the
Group.

HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE ¥
2 FEWGRIE K e I = iR B 8 R ER R LL R > 49
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure in 2021 primarily represented
payments for expansion in order to cope with the
Group’s overall business expansion. The Group’s total
addition to property, plant and equipment decreased from
approximately HK$290.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$230.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Besides, payment was made for the acquisition
of business from Textprint Lanka (Private) Limited
(“Textprint”) by Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited
(“Trischel”) in January 2021. The assets acquired
included computer and office equipment as well as
machineries amounted to approximately HK$23.7 million.
Details of the acquisition are set out in the section headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Report of the
Directors and Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group pledged certain bank
deposits, amounting to approximately HK$121.6 million (as
at 31 December 2020: approximately HK$77.9 million), to
secure the bills payables issued by the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Events after the reporting period

The Group has no significant events after the reporting
period and up to the date of this annual report.

Foreign exchange risk

A substantial portion of the Group’s revenue is denominated
in US$ and HK$ and a portion of its purchases and
expenses are denominated in RMB, VND and LKR. The
Group manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews and monitoring on its foreign exchange
exposure. Our finance department monitors our foreign
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

exchange risk on a continuous basis by analysing our
domestic and overseas sales orders on hand, expected
domestic and overseas orders from customers and
estimated foreign currency payments for our purchases
and expenses. We intend to manage our foreign exchange
risks by () managing our sales, purchases and expenses
denominated in HK$ and RMB through our subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and the PRC, respectively, managing our sales,
purchases and expenses denominated in US$ through our
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Sri Lanka, and
managing our purchases and expenses denominated in
VND and LKR through our subsidiaries in Vietham and Sri
Lanka, respectively; and (i) holding cash and bank deposits
denominated in HK$ primarily by the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, holding cash and bank deposits
denominated in US$ primarily by the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Vietham and Sri Lanka, and
holding cash and bank deposits denominated in RMB, VND
and LKR primarily by our subsidiaries in the PRC, Vietnam
and Sri Lanka, respectively.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total
of 8,957 full-time employees (as at 31 December 2020:
7,825). The increase in the number of employees was
mainly due to the overseas expansion during the year.

The Group remunerates its staff according to their
performance, qualifications, experience and industry
practices, and conducts regular reviews of its remuneration
policy. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up primarily for
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to factors including but
not limited to salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors/
employees, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group, and whether the remuneration is commensurate
with the performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

There has been no significant change in the Group’s
remuneration policy, and the Group will continue to provide
regular training and competitive remuneration packages
to its staff. The Group’s remuneration packages include
salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits based
on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The
Group also provides additional benefits to its employees
that include subsidised accommodation, meals, accident
and medical insurance and share options granted to
eligible employees under the share option scheme of the
Company from time to time.

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio of not less than 20% of the Group’s
distributable profit for the year, providing shareholders with
an equitable return.

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of
HK11.8 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Final Dividend”) (for
the year ended 31 December 2020: HK7.4 cents). The
Final Dividend is expected to be paid on 15 August 2022
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 July 2022, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company on 28 June 2022 (the
“AGM”).

An interim dividend of HK7.5 cents per share was paid by
the Company on 30 November 2021 (2020: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBE BRI

FUTURE STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

In light of certain negative market factors arising since
the fourth quarter of 2021, it is clear that recovery cannot
be taken for granted. The IMF released a revised world
economic outlook update in January 2022, reducing the
projected global GDP growth in 2022 by 0.5 percentage
point to a moderate GDP growth of 4.4%, as compared
to the estimated GDP growth of 5.9% in 2021. The new
Omicron COVID-19 variant, which appears to be more
transmissible than the Delta COVID-19 variant, began
to spread across the globe and most of the affected
countries have reacted by reimposing certain mobility
restrictions. The economists have built their forecast by
assuming that adverse health outcomes arising from
the Pandemic will be brought to low levels in most
countries by the end of 2022. This, however, will rely on
the successfulness of achieving such condition, which in
turn will be dependent on worldwide access of adequate
and effective vaccinations and treatments. Undoubtedly,
the global growth can be hindered again if the adverse
impacts of the Pandemic drag on.

Problems of elevated inflation, more notably in the U.S.
and many emerging markets and developing countries,
as a result of ongoing supply chain disruptions, energy
prices volatility, and localized wage pressure, have been
piled on the desks of policymakers. It is expected that the
U.S. and some developed economies will further tighten
their monetary policy, posing further risks to the financial
stability. In China, Pandemic-induced disruptions related
to the zero-tolerance COVID-19 policy, interruptions to
industrial production from power outage and declining real
estate investment, had slowed down its economic growth
in the second half of 2021. A lower private consumption
is anticipated and its projected GDP growth is reduced to
5.5% in 2022, as compared to a GDP growth of 8.1% in
2021. All these dooming factors may pose uncertainties
and threats to the path of recovery and growth of the
global economies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is also aware of the changing market
landscape as brought by the geopolitical tensions among
the superpowers and the COVID-19. We believe that risk
management is vital for our business success and we
must remain agile and vigilant and to respond swiftly to the
changing market environments. We will continue our efforts
in capturing market shares from the overseas market
while on the other hand, we will devote resources to
seize the vast potentials in the PRC market, especially the
sportswear and apparel sector. Despite the unforeseeable
challenges of the macroeconomic environment ahead,
Best Pacific is confident in maintaining its leading position
in the lingerie material market space and we will also keep
abreast of the athleisure market and further penetrate the
sportswear and apparel business segment.

As at 31 December 2021, the overall annual designed
production capacities of elastic fabric, elastic webbing
and lace of the Group were approximately 226.2 million
meters, 1,873.1 million meters and 45.0 million meters,
respectively. Despite the global economy growth being
projected to be moderate in 2022 as compared to a faster
rebound in 2021, it is overall a positive projection. In order
to cope with our growing customers’ demands, the Group
is prepared to take a more proactive approach in exploring
the feasibility of capacity expansion, both domestically
and in overseas, keeping a close eye on various factors
affecting our profitability and will implement relevant
measures as and when appropriate. We strongly believe
that, through our continual expansion, it will underpin Best
Pacific’s long term sustainability and ensure its ability to
deliver value for its shareholders in the long run.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERRE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of elastic fabric, elastic webbing and lace. Details
of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s turnover and results by operating segment
are set out in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements and Management Discussion and Analysis of
this annual report.

There is no change in the principal activities of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 106.

The Board recommends the payment of the Final Dividend
of HK11.8 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
HK7.4 cents). Subject to approval by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM, the Final Dividend
will be distributed on 15 August 2022 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 8 July 2022.

An interim dividend of HK7.5 cents per share was paid to
shareholders on 30 November 2021 (for the year ended
31 December 2020: nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 23 June 2022 to 28 June 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged not later than
4:30 p.m. on 22 June 2022 with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, the proposed Final Dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 July 2022 and the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 6 July
2022 to 8 July 2022, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to qualify for the proposed Final Dividend, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates shall be lodged not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5
July 2022 with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a
discussion on the Group’s future business development as
well as the Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 7
and pages 8 to 29 of this annual report. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-
year Financial Information Summary on pages 275 to 276
of this annual report. Saved as disclosed in this annual
report, the Group has no other significant events after the
end of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERRE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement as well as the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 29 of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been committed to operating in
compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations and has taken steps to ensure that any waste
and by-products produced as a result of its operations
are properly treated and discharged so as to minimise the
adverse effects to the environment. With the relevant ISO
certification issued by renown notified body on the main
manufacturing sites, we are regarded to have exercised
quality environmental and energy management throughout
the manufacturing process. At present, the Group has
its on-site sewage treatment plants that treat sewage
generated from its production process, in particular,
dyeing and printing processes, by chemical and biological
treatments. Processed sewage is required to meet certain
chemical standards prescribed by the environmental
protection department before it is discharged to the
municipal sewage treatment network. The environmental
protection department has also set up monitoring
equipment at the Group’s sewage treatment plants to
ensure the processed sewage meets the prescribed
standard before discharge. As the operating scale of the
Group has expanded, the use of resources, the levels of
gas emissions and waste disposal increased proportionally
but all were under control during the year under review. We
will continue to closely monitor the resources consumed
and the levels of gas emissions and waste disposal and
will take appropriate measures with a view to minimising
the impact of the Group’s operations on the environment.

Further details on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance (including the relevant key performance
indicators) will be disclosed in the Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2021 to be separately
published by the Company in due course.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group’s
operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, Hong Kong, Vietnam, Sri Lanka
and the U.S.. The Group has compliance procedures
in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2021, to the
best knowledge and belief of the Board, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Cayman Islands, the PRC, Hong Kong,
Vietnam, Sri Lanka and the U.S..

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are regarded as one of the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The Group strives to
reward and recognise performing employees by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing
a sound performance appraisal system with appropriate
incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement.

The Group maintains stable and cooperative relationships
with its customers, To ensure that our products remain
competitive, the Group closely monitors market trends,
attentively listens to the customers’ demand and produces
products that accommodate their needs. The Group also
manages its relationship with suppliers to ensure reliability,
stability and quality of different materials supplied to the
Group.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in Note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in issued share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on
pages 109 and 110.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$713.7 million, of
which approximately HK$122.7 million has been proposed
as the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
amended and restated articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$2,762,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 40.1% of the Group’s total sales for the year
(of which sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 14.0%). Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 30.6%
of the Group’s total purchases for the year (of which
purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 9.0%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lu Yuguang

Mr. Zhang Haitao

Mr. Wu Shaolun

Ms. Zheng Tingting

Mr. Chan Yiu Sing (appointed on 10 February 2021)
Mr. Lu Libin (appointed on 10 February 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

Mr. Ding Baoshan

Mr. Sai Chun Yu (retired on 28 May 2021)

Mr. Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford (@appointed on 28 May 2021)

According to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Besides, Article 84(1) of the Articles stipulates that at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr. Lu
Yuguang (“Mr. Lu”), Mr. Wu Shaolun (“Mr. Wu”) and Mr.
Cheung Yat Ming will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM. All the above Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 73 to 81 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors (except for Ms. Zheng
Tingting (“Ms. Zheng”), Mr. Chan Yiu Sing (“Mr. Chan”)
and Mr. Lu Libin) had entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an extended term of three years
commencing on 23 May 2020. Each of Mr. Chan and
Mr. Lu Libin had entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on
10 February 2021. Ms. Zheng had entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an extended term of
three years commencing on 23 November 2021. Each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated
by either party by giving to the other party at least three
months’ prior notice in writing. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors (except for Mr. Kuo Dah Chih,
Stanford (“Mr. Kuo”)) had been appointed for an extended
term of three years with effect from 23 May 2020. Mr. Kuo
had been appointed for a term of three years with effect
from 28 May 2021.

In view of the addition of Directors to the Board on
10 February 2021, each of the executive Directors
(except for Mr. Chan and Mr. Lu Libin) had entered into
a supplemental service agreement with the Company.
Pursuant to such agreement, the term that the total
amount of bonus together with the total salary and benefits
to be paid to all the executive Directors of the Company in
each year ending December 31 shall be less than 10% of
the audited consolidated net profit after taxation but before
extraordinary items of the Group for the relevant financial
year (and before deducting such discretionary bonus,
salary and benefits) was repealed. On the other hand,
the Group has introduced additional performance based
incentive schemes with salary payment not exceeding
10% of the basic salaries to be paid monthly to employees
if the Group accomplishes the monthly key performance
indicators. Such incentive schemes also apply to all
executive Directors and the relevant service agreements
have been revised accordingly.
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles and Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). None of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM have a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” below and “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors of the Company had any interest in any
competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Mr. Lu and Grandview Capital Investment Limited
(“Grandview”), being the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have each
provided a written confirmation to the Company confirming
that he/it has complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-
competition for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
also reviewed the status of compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders and confirmed that, as far as they
can ascertain, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were set out below:
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The Company () ZA2aF
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
Long/short underlying shareholding
Name of Director  position Capacity shares  Notes (%)
7 BRI
. Bt/ 108 BAL
EEpE %,/ KR ) BROZE W& (%)
Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 1
EExEE e ERBEAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 637,500,000 2
e HX B ANER
640,500,000 61.59
Mr. Zhang Haitao Long position Interest held by his spouse 78,094,000 3 7.51
REREE e HEBRanEs
Ms. Zheng Tingting  Long position Beneficial owner 3,094,000 4
BeEL T 3y ERBEAA
Long position Interest held by her
controlled corporation 75,000,000 5
35=) HX B AR
78,094,000 7.51
Mr. Wu Shaolun Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 6
ROmEE e ERBEAA
Long position Interest held by his
controlled corporation 37,500,000 7
35=) HX LB ANER
40,500,000 3.89
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Notes:

These 3,000,000 ordinary shares were issued by the
Company to Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, upon exercise of his share options granted
under the Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) which has already been
terminated.

These 637,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Grandview,
which was wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Under the SFO, Mr.
Lu was deemed to be interested in such shares held by
Grandview.

These 78,094,000 ordinary shares were held by Ms. Zheng,
the Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director of the
Company and her controlled corporation (details in Notes 4
and 5 below). Ms. Zheng is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Haitao
(“Mr. Zhang”), the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhang was
deemed to be interested in such shares held by Ms. Zheng
and her controlled corporation.

Among these 3,094,000 ordinary shares, 2,000,000 shares
were held by Ms. Zheng upon exercise of her share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
1,094,000 shares were acquired from the market.

These 75,000,000 ordinary shares were held by Mega
Briliant Enterprises Limited (“Mega Brilliant”), which was
wholly owned by Ms. Zheng. Under the SFO, Ms. Zheng
was deemed to be interested in such shares held by Mega
Brilliant.

These 3,000,000 ordinary shares were issued by the
Company to Mr. Wu, an executive Director of the Company,
upon exercise of his share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

These 37,500,000 ordinary shares were held by Lakefront
Capital Investment Limited (“Lakefront”), which was wholly
owned by Mr. Wu. Under the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to
be interested in such shares held by Lakefront.

—
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() Associated Corporation (within the meaning of
the SFO)

Grandview Capital Investment Limited

m HBEZE(ERRIFZRHMEMRH)

Grandview Capital Investment Limited

Approximate
percentage of

Long/short Number of shareholding

Name of Director position Capacity shares (%)

FERBEA

BoLt

EEME W ORR ) BRHEE (%)

Mr. Lu Yuguang Long position Beneficial owner 10,001 100
ERNfEE A ERFEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to
the Directors of the Company, the following persons/
entities (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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shares/ percentage of
Name of substantial Long/short underlying shareholding
shareholder position Capacity shares Notes (%)
FREEA
B, HHEE Bt
TERRME EB ¥, %R 54 ROEE  MEE (%)
Grandview Capital Long position Beneficial owner 637,500,000 1 61.30
Investment Limited 5=} EnEBA
FMR LLC Long position Interest held by its 95,250,835 2 9.16
HE controlled
corporations
HEPORBERFE
e
Pandanus Associates Long position Interest held by its 81,940,000 3 7.88
Inc. HE controlled
corporations
HEPORBERFB
e
Pandanus Partners L.P.  Long position Interest held by its 81,940,000 3 7.88
we controlled
corporations
HEPORBERFB
e
FIL Limited Long position Interest held by its 81,940,000 3 7.88
S} controlled
corporations
HEPORBERFBH
e
Mega Brilliant Enterprises Long position Beneficial owner 75,000,000 4 7.21
Limited oA ERFEAA
FIDELITY PURITAN Long position Beneficial owner 55,310,000 5 5.32
TRUST HE EnEAA
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Grandview was wholly owned by Mr. Lu, the Chairman
and an executive Director of the Company and Mr. Lu was
deemed to be interested in the 637,500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held by Grandview pursuant to the SFO.
Mr. Lu’s interests in shares are disclosed in this annual report
in the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in the 95,250,835
ordinary shares of the Company through its 100% controlled
corporations and 483A Bay Street Holdings LP, which was
owned or controlled as to 18% by Bay Street Holdings LLC.

Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of and has
100% control over Pandanus Partners L.P, which owned
or controlled 37.01% of the voting rights in FIL Limited. FIL
Limited then indirectly owned or controlled 82% of the voting
rights in 483A Bay Street Holdings LP. By virtue of Part XV
of the SFO, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus
Partners L.P. and FIL Limited was deemed to be interested
in the 81,940,000 ordinary shares of the Company via 483A
Bay Street Holdings LP and its 100% controlled corporations.

Mega Brilliant was wholly owned by Ms. Zheng, the
Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director of the
Company, and Ms. Zheng was deemed to be interested in
the 75,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by
Mega Briliant pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Zhang, the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive Director of the Company,
is the spouse of Ms. Zheng and was accordingly deemed to
be interested in the 75,000,000 ordinary shares which Ms.
Zheng was deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO. Ms. Zheng's and Mr. Zhang’s interests in shares
are disclosed in this annual report in the section headed
“DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS — DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR DEBENTURES”.

FIDELITY PURITAN TRUST held the 55,310,000 ordinary
shares of the Company directly.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
the Directors were not aware of any other persons/
entities (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2014, the Company has adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) which is
governed by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme, which
shall be valid and effective for 10 years from its adoption
date, are summarised below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward the
eligible participants who have contributed to the Group
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shareholders.

Eligible participants

The Board may at its discretion make offers inviting the
Directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who the Board considers, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company, subject to such conditions as the Board may
think fit.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the BEERETSITHETHROEE

Share Option Scheme

@) 10% limit (a)
Subject to the following paragraph, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the number of shares of the Company in
issue on the listing date (i.e. 23 May 2014) (not
taking into account any shares which may be allotted
and issued pursuant to the over-allotment option
under the IPO) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit").
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and (as the case may be)
such other share option schemes of the Company
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit.

The Company may, from time to time, refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting, provided that
the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit
as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the refreshed limit.

The Company may also seek separate approval of
the shareholders in general meeting for granting
options beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit or the
refreshed limit, provided that the options in excess
of such limit are granted only to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought.
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b)  30% limit

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. Where any further
grant of options to a grantee would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant exceeding 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, such further grant must be separately approved
by the shareholders in general meeting with such grantee
and his associates abstaining from voting.

Performance target

The Share Option Scheme allows the Board, when offering
the grant of any option, to impose any condition including
any performance target, which must be met before the
option shall vest and become exercisable.
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Minimum period for which an option must be held

The Board may at its discretion, when offering the grant
of any option, impose any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be not less than
the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(©) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Amount payable upon acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to the
Company on acceptance of an offer of option.

The Company has not granted any share options under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 8 May
2014.

The total number of shares available for issue upon
exercise of all share options which are not yet granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 73,530,000 shares,
representing approximately 7.07% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report
(i.e. 1,039,808,000 shares).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are required
to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the Group have been entered into and/or are ongoing
for which relevant disclosure had been made by the
Company by way of announcement in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

a. Acquisition of assets and business from
Textprint Lanka (Private) Limited and sub-lease
agreements with MAS Fabric Park (Private)
Limited

On 29 January 2021, Trischel (a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) as buyer and
transferee entered into an assets sale and purchase
agreement with Textprint as seller and transferor in
relation to the sale and purchase of (i) fixed assets
which mainly included printing machines, washing
machines, boilers, steamers, fabric inspection
machines, dryers and other equipment for printing
synthetic fabrics and the associated finishing
processes, as well as (i) inventory of Textprint for
printing business as recorded in the management
accounts of Textprint as at 31 January 2021
(the “Assets”). Pursuant to the assets sale and
purchase agreement, Textprint shall also transfer
up to 252 of its employees to Trsichel who have
been employed by Trsichel with effect from the
date of completion. The cash consideration for
the transaction was US$3,538,197 and was
determined based on the total net book value of
the Assets as at 31 January 2021, after deducting
the gratuity accrued up to 31 January 2021 for the
employees employed by Textprint to be transferred
to Trischel and any inter-company balances
between Trischel and Textprint as at 31 January
2021. Completion of this acquisition took place on
1 February 2021.
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On 29 January 2021, Trischel (as lessee) entered
into two sub-lease agreements with MAS Fabric
Park (Private) Limited (“MAS Fabric Park”) (as
lessor) for the lease of (i) premises situated at MAS
industrial park in Mattegama Village in the District of
Kurunegala, North-Western Province, Sri Lanka with
an area of approximately 144,493 square feet (the
“Giriulla Sub-Lease”); and (i) premises situated
at MAS industrial park in Nangalla and Thulhiriya
Villages in the District of Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa
Province, Sri Lanka with an area of approximately
89,963.48 square feet (the “Lot-39 Sub-Lease”)
for the period from 1 February 2021 to 31
December 2022. The premises under the Giriulla
Sub-Lease will be used by Trischel for production
and as a warehouse and the premises under the
Lot-39 Sub-Lease will be used by Trischel for
production.

Pursuant to the Giriulla Sub-Lease, Trischel shall
pay the following rentals and premium to MAS
Fabric Park: (i) total ground rental of US$40,013.87
calculated on the basis of US$4,660 per acre
per annum, payable in the first instalment of
US$3,479.47 on 1 February 2021 and seven
instalments of US$5,219.2 each on the first day
of January, April, July and October each year
during the remaining term; (i) total building rental
of US$415,417.38 calculated on the basis of
US$1.50 per square feet per annum, payable in
the first instaiment of US$36,123.22 on 1 February
2021 and seven instalments of US$54,184.88
each on the first day of January, April, July and
October each year during the remaining term; and
(iii) up-front premium of US$8,586.67 calculated on
the basis of US$1,916.67 per acre, payable on the
date of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Lot-39 Sub-Lease, Trischel shall
pay the following rentals and premium to MAS
Fabric Park: (i) total ground rental of US$45,051.29
calculated on the basis of US$5,130 per acre
per annum, payable in the first instalment of
US$3,917.54 on 1 February 2021 and seven
instalments of US$5,876.25 each on the first day
of January, April, July and October each year
during the remaining term; (i) total building rental of
US$396,589.01 calculated on the basis of US$2.30
per square feet per annum, payable in the first
instaiment of US$34,486.01 on 1 February 2021
and seven instalments of US$51,729 each on the
first day of January, April, July and October each
year during the remaining term; and (i) up-front
premium of US$10,538.31 calculated on the basis
of US$2,300 per acre, payable on the date of the
agreement.

On 29 January 2021, Trischel (as lessee) entered
into two supplemental agreements with MAS Fabric
Park (as lessor) in relation to the extension of the
term of the two sub-lease agreements dated 1
August 2019 in respect of () the premises situated
at MAS industrial park in Nangalla and Thulhiriya
Villages in the District of Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa
Province in Sri Lanka with an area of approximately
70,458 square feet (the “Logiwiz Sub-Lease”);
and (i) the premises situated at MAS industrial park
in Nangalla and Thulhiriya Villages in the District of
Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa Province in Sri Lanka with
an area of approximately 44,435 square feet (the
“Weft Sub-Lease”). Pursuant to the supplemental
agreements entered into on 29 January 2021, the
term of each of the Logiwiz Sub-Lease and the
Weft Sub-Lease was extended from 1 August 2022
to 31 December 2022.
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Pursuant to the sub-lease agreement and the
supplemental agreement for the Logiwiz Sub-Lease,
Trischel shall pay the following rentals and premium
to MAS Fabric Park: (A) during the original lease
term from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2022; (i) total
ground rental of US$38,475 calculated on the basis
of US$5,130 per acre per annum, payable in 12
instalments on the first day of August, November,
February and May each calendar year; (i) total
building rental of US$486,160.20 calculated on
the basis of US$2.30 per square feet per annum,
payable in 12 instalments on the first day of August,
November, February and May each calendar year;
and (i) up-front premium of US$9,000 calculated
on the basis of US$3,600 per acre, payable on the
date of the agreement; and (B) during the extended
lease term from 1 August 2022 to 31 December
2022: (i) total ground rental of US$5,343.75
calculated on the basis of US$5,130 per acre per
annum, payable in two instalments of US$2,671.88
each on the first day of August and November
2022; and (i) total building rental of US$67,522.25
calculated on the basis of US$2.30 per square
feet per annum, payable in two instalments of
US$33,761.13 each on the first day of August and
November 2022.
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Pursuant to the sub-lease agreement and the
supplemental agreement for the Weft Sub-Lease,
Trischel shall pay the following rentals and premium
to MAS Fabric Park: (A) during the original lease
term from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2022; (i) total
ground rental of US$22,119.93 calculated on the
basis of US$5,130 per acre per annum, payable
in 12 instalments on the first day of August,
November, February and May each calendar
year; (i) total building rental of US$306,601.50
calculated on the basis of US$2.30 per square
feet per annum, payable in 12 instalments on
the first day of August, November, February and
May each calendar; and (jii) up-front premium of
US$5,174.25 calculated on the basis of US$3,600
per acre, payable on the date of the agreement;
and (B) during the extended lease term from 1
August 2022 to 31 December 2022: (i) total ground
rental of US$3,072.21 calculated on the basis of
US$5,130 per acre per annum, payable in two
instalments of US$1,536.11 each on the first day of
August and November 2022; and (i) total building
rental of US$42,583.54 calculated on the basis of
US$2.30 per square feet per annum, payable in
two instalments of US$21,291.77 each on the first
day of August and November 2022.

As at 29 January 2021 and the date of this
annual report, Textprint and MAS Fabric Park
are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of MAS
Holdings (Private) Limited (“MAS”), which indirectly
holds 49% of the issued share capital of Trischel.
Accordingly, Textprint and MAS Fabric Park
are connected persons of the Company at the
subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing
Rules, and the transaction contemplated under
each of the assets sale and purchase agreement
and the sub-lease agreements mentioned above
constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the transactions were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 29 January
2021.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

BIE » s X gtWeftn H & 5T
N2 fl 78 1 5% 0 Trischel# RIMAS
Fabric Parkx A THE EHZES :
ARERBHE-_Z—-AFENA—BZ
—E_FEA=+—HBR: )ER
FFEFEMS,130% Tt E WA A
22,119.93% 7t ' HEAR S + —HIZAR
EBENA-+—A - ZAKREAH
BRXM: wﬁw FFFHXK2.30
XU E W82 F 1 £306,601.50
o MRS T ZHEARSEEN
A-+—A - ZARKREAMBEARX
0 R(i)E R 3 EE3,600% Tt &
MEHﬁ%$5W4%%E AR %
ZEHXf RBREERBEHBE
:2::$AH AE-_S_-__F+
“A=t—BR:()ERSFEEM
5,1830% JTt 5 & w9 48 #b 7H3,072.213%
JC A5 W Ef &R & H31,586.113% 7T
ERE_—_FNAKT+—AEHBX
: RHEREFEFFHER2.30%
mbraﬁ BIE2Fi$42,583.54% T ¢
B WMER T HI21,201. 772 &R =
7__¢AH&+ AREBXft -

RZEZ—F—A=Z+hAhBEX
FE W E B H - Textprint MAS
Fabric Park &MAS Holdings (Private)
Limited ((MAS]) v B 2EH B A
Al © MMASH # #F BTrischel2 # 17
IRANEI49% o AL - RI|E MR AP
14A.06(9) 1% » Textprint MAS Fabric
Park B A aM B AR EEAREEA
T MBRE EMHRANFE14AF - Lt
EEEEEHELD A ETT
TR SBRARRIHBEER J
ERXHNE—THFBELRAEAR ﬂE%
B_E_—F AT NABZRER
B o

/J‘ n

BERRBRERAR/ 2= —FFR 53

<<«



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

= A+
EEOWE
b. Lease of certain properties in Machong Town

>> 54

On 28 September 2018, Dongguan BPT, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as lessee, and Dongguan Premium Fashion
Company Limited (“Dongguan PF”) as lessor
entered into a lease agreement in relation to the
lease of a property with a total leasing area of
approximately 21,868 square meters at Zhang
Peng Village, Machong Town, Dongguan City,
the PRC (the “Property A”) for the Group’s daily
production and operational use for a term of three
years commencing on 1 October 2018 to 30
September 2021 (the “Previous Zhang Peng
Lease Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Previous Zhang Peng Lease
Agreement, the maximum rent payable by
Dongguan BPT for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 shall not exceed RMB5,715,420
and Dongguan BPT shall be responsible for
all charges for the utility services to be used in
respect of the Property A. The annual cap for the
transaction amounts payable by Dongguan BPT
under the Previous Zhang Peng Lease Agreement
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB6,087,000.

On 30 September 2021, in contemplation of
the expiry of the Previous Zhang Peng Lease
Agreement and the need of additional production
area to cope with the business growth of the
Group, Dongguan BPT (as lessee) entered into a
lease agreement with Dongguan PF (as lessor),
pursuant to which Dongguan PF has agreed to
lease to Dongguan BPT the Property A for a term of
three years commencing on 1 October 2021 to 30
September 2024 and a property located at Zhang
Peng Village, Machong Town, Dongguan City, the
PRC, with a total leasing area of approximately
61,725 square meters (the “Property B”) for a
term of thirty months commencing on 1 April 2022
to 30 September 2024 (the “Zhang Peng Lease
Agreement”). The Property A and the Property B
will be used for daily production and operational
use.
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Under the Zhang Peng Lease Agreement, the
monthly rent shall be RMB546,700 for the
Property A and RMB1,604,850 for the Property
B. Pursuant to the Zhang Peng Lease Agreement,
from 1 October 2022 onwards, the parties may re-
negotiate on the amount of rent with reference to
the prevailing market rents for similar premises in
the same or nearby areas or similar locations in
the PRC, provided that the monthly rent for the
period from 1 October 2022 to 30 September
2023 and the period from 1 October 2023 to 30
September 2024 in respect of the Property A and
the Property B shall not exceed RMB2,366,705
and RMB2,603,375.5 respectively and the terms
shall be on normal commercial terms and no less
favourable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties.

On 30 September 2021, Dongguan NHE, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Dongguan BPT (as lessees) entered into
three lease agreements with Chin Lee Steel
Industry Company Limited (“Chin Lee”) (as lessor)
respectively, pursuant to which Chin Lee has
agreed to lease (i) a property located at Xinsha
Port Industrial Park, Machong Town, Dongguan
City, the PRC, with a total leasing area of
approximately 2,534 square meters (the “Property
C”) to Dongguan NHE; (i) a property located
at Xinsha Port Industrial Park, Machong Town,
Dongguan City, the PRC, with a total leasing area
of approximately 458 square meters (the “Property
D”) and the building located at Xinsha Port Industrial
Park, Machong Town, Dongguan City, the PRC,
with a total leasing area of approximately 4,704
square meters (the “Property E”) to Dongguan BPT
for a term of three years commencing on 1 October
2021 to 30 September 2024 (the “Xinsha Lease
Agreement(s)”’). The Property C, the Property
D and the Property E will be used as showroom,
administrative offices and/or warehouse.
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Under the relevant Xinsha Lease Agreement, the
monthly rent for Property C during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 shall be RMB76,020.
The parties may re-negotiate on the amount of the
rent for the financial year(s) ending 31 December
2022, 2023 and/or 2024 with reference to the
prevailing market rents for similar premises in the
same or nearby areas or similar locations in the
PRC, provided that the monthly rent payable during
the financial years ending 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024 shall not exceed RMB83,622,
RMB91,984.2 and RMB101,106.6 respectively, and
the terms shall be on normal commercial terms and
no less favourable to the Group than those available
from independent third parties.

Under the relevant Xinsha Lease Agreement, the
monthly rent for Property D during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 shall be RMB13,740.
The parties may re-negotiate on the amount of the
rent for the financial year(s) ending 31 December
2022, 2023 and/or 2024 with reference to the
prevailing market rents for similar premises in the
same or nearby areas or similar locations in the
PRC, provided that the monthly rent payable during
the financial years ending 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024 shall not exceed BRMB15,114,
RMB16,625.4 and RMB18,274.2 respectively, and
the terms shall be on normal commercial terms and
no less favourable to the Group than those available
from independent third parties.

Under the relevant Xinsha Lease Agreement, the
monthly rent for Property E during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 shall be RMB164,640.
The parties may re-negotiate on the amount of the
rent for the financial year(s) ending 31 December
2022, 20283 and/or 2024 with reference to the
prevailing market rents for similar premises in the
same or nearby areas or similar locations in the
PRC, provided that the monthly rent payable during
the financial years ending 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024 shall not exceed RMB181,104,
RMB199,214.4 and RMB219,135.8 respectively,
and the terms shall be on normal commercial terms
and no less favourable to the Group than those
available from independent third parties.
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As at 28 September 2018 when the Previous
Zhang Peng Lease Agreement was entered
into, Dongguan PF was originally owned as to
50% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of Mr.
Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company and the mother of Mr. Lu
Libin, the Chief Strategy Officer and an executive
Director of the Company), 30% by Ms. Zheng (the
Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director
of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director of
the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie (the son of
Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping (the nephew
of Mr. Lu). As at 30 September 2021 and the date
of this annual report, Dongguan PF was owned
as to 40% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of
Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company and the mother of Mr. Lu
Libin, the Chief Strategy Officer and an executive
Director of the Company), 40% by Ms. Zheng (the
Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director
of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director of
the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie (the son of
Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping (the nephew
of Mr. Lu). On the other hand, Chin Lee is wholly-
owned by Mr. Lu. Accordingly, Dongguan PF and
Chin Lee are connected persons of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules, and
the transaction contemplated under the Previous
Zhang Peng Lease Agreement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the Company,
and the transaction under each of the Zhang
Peng Lease Agreement and the Xinsha Lease
Agreements constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Further details of the transactions were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
30 September 2021.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021,
rental and charges for the utility services paid to
Dongguan PF by the Group under the Previous
Zhang Peng Lease Agreement amounted to
approximately RMB5,956,582.

Sales of elastic fabric and elastic webbing to
Dongguan PF

On 3 May 2019, Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE (as suppliers) entered into a sales agreement
(the “Sales Agreement”) with Dongguan PF (as
purchaser) in relation to the sale of elastic fabric,
elastic webbing, lace, printing and embroidery for
a term of three years commencing on 4 May 2019
to 3 May 2022. Pursuant to the Sales Agreement,
the selling price for elastic fabric shall be between
the price range of RMB5 to RMB200 per meter
(tax inclusive); the selling price for lace shall be
between the price range of RMB0.5 to RMB80 per
meter (tax inclusive); the selling price for printing
and embroidery shall be between the price range
of RMB5 to RMB40 per meter (tax inclusive) or the
price range of RMB0.5 to RMB15 per piece (tax
inclusive); and the selling price for elastic webbing
shall be between the price range of RMB0.5 to
RMB2 per meter (tax inclusive). The selling price
ranges for the goods under the Sales Agreement
were determined after arm’s length negotiation
between the parties thereto and with reference to
(i) the historical and prevailing market price of the
same and similar goods in the area, (i) the historical
and prevailing selling prices of Dongguan BPT
and Dongguan NHE for the goods, and (i) the
credit worthiness and potential business growth of
Dongguan PF. The annual caps for the transaction
amount under the Sales Agreement for the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB60 million
and that for the financial year ending 31 December
2022 shall be RMB30 million. Further details of the
Sales Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 3 May 2019.
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On 30 June 2021, in view of the more-than-
expected sales of the products by Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE to Dongguan PF and
to allow greater flexibility to cater for the parties’
business needs, Dongguan BPT, Dongguan NHE,
and Dongguan PF entered into a supplemental
agreement to the Sales Agreement, pursuant
to which () Dongguan PF may designate it and
its associates from time to time to purchase
elastic fabric, lace, printing and embroidery from
Dongguan BPT (or any company of the Group
designated by Dongguan BPT) and elastic webbing
from Dongguan NHE (or any company of the
Group designated by Dongguan NHE) and (i) the
annual caps for the transaction amount under the
Sales Agreement for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 was increased to RMB110 million
and that for the financial year ending 31 December
2022 shall be RMB50 million. Further details of
the supplemental agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to
Dongguan PF and its associates by Dongguan BPT
and Dongguan NHE under the Sales Agreement
amounted to approximately RMB97,338,512.
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As at 3 May 2019 when the Sales Agreement was
entered into, Dongguan PF was originally owned
as to 50% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong (the spouse of
Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, the sister of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company and the mother of Mr. Lu
Libin, the Chief Strategy Officer and an executive
Director of the Company), 30% by Ms. Zheng (the
Chief Operating Officer and an executive Director
of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director of
the Company), 10% by Mr. Wu Junjie (the son of
Mr. Wu) and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping (the nephew
of Mr. Lu). As at 30 June 2021 and the date of
this annual report, Dongguan PF was owned as to
40% by Ms. Wu Wanxiong, 40% by Ms. Zheng,
10% by Mr. Wu Junjie and 10% by Mr. Lu Canping.
Accordingly, Dongguan PF is a connected person
of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated
under the Sales Agreement and the supplemental
agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Sales of synthetic fabric and webbing to the
Brandix Group

On 6 November 2020, Best Pacific Textile Holdings
Limited (“BPTHL”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its affiliates (collectively, “BPTHL Group”), as
seller) and Brandix Lanka Limited (“Brandix”) (for
itself and on behalf of its affiliates (collectively,
“Brandix Group”), as purchaser) entered into
a sales framework agreement (the “Brandix
Framework Agreement”) for a term of three
years commencing on 6 November 2020 to 5
November 2023 in relation to the sale and purchase
of synthetic fabric and webbing and any other
products as may be agreed between the parties
from time to time on normal commercial terms and
subject to and upon the terms and conditions to be
agreed between the relevant members of BPTHL
Group and Brandix Group, setting out, among other
things, the products to be supplied, specifications,
quantity, price, delivery method and payment
arrangement.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts
under the Brandix Framework Agreement for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 and for
the financial years ending 31 December 2022 and
2023 shall be US$43 million, US$63 million and
US$64 million respectively. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2021, the sales to
Brandix Group by BPTHL Group under the Brandix
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
US$18,435,275. Further details of the Brandix
Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 November
2020.
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As at 6 November 2020 and the date of this annual
report, Best Pacific Textiles Lanka (Pvt) Ltd is
owned as to 75% by the Company, via Best Pacific
International Sri Lanka (Pannala) Limited, and 25%
by Brandix. Accordingly, members of Brandix
Group (including Brandix) are connected persons
of the Company at the subsidiary level under Rule
14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules and the transaction
contemplated under the Brandix Framework
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Sub-lease of a land for the use of production
plant by MAS Fabric Park

On 22 December 2006, Trischel, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company since completion
of the acquisition on 1 August 2018, entered into
an agreement (the “Sub-Lease Agreement”)
with MAS Fabric Park, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of MAS and a substantial shareholder
of Trischel, for sub-leasing a piece of land, situated
in Nangalla and Thulhiriya Villages in the District
of Kegalle, Sabaragamuwa Province, Sri Lanka,
with an approximate area of 3.37818 hectares,
to Trischel for a term of 98 years and 7 months
commencing on 22 December 2006 and ending on
29 July 2105.

Pursuant to the Sub-Lease Agreement, the initial
ground rent was US$29,218 per annum as at
signing of the Sub-Lease Agreement, which shall
be adjusted annually in line with the ground rent
charged or chargeable at other industrial zones
as published by Board of Investment of Sri Lanka
(“BOI”), a governmental authority in Sri Lanka, and
shall be paid on or before 22 December each year.
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The annual cap for the transaction amount under
the Sub-Lease Agreement for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 was US$81,000 and
that for the financial year ending 31 December
2022 shall be US$97,000. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the ground rent paid to MAS
Fabric Park by Trischel under the Sub-Lease
Agreement amounted to approximately US$42,825.
Further details of the Sub-Lease Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4
December 2017.

Since completion of the acquisition on 1 August
2018, Trischel has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which 51% is
indirectly owned by the Company, via Best Pacific
International Sri Lanka (Thulhiriya) Limited, and 49%
is owned by MAS Capital (Private) Limited (“MAS
Capital”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MAS. Accordingly, MAS Fabric Park, as an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS, has become a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing Rules.

Utilities services provided by MAS Fabric Park

On 22 December 2006, Trischel also entered into
a services agreement (the “Services Agreement”)
with MAS Fabric Park, pursuant to which MAS
Fabric Park shall provide Trischel with electricity,
steam, water, effluent discharge and fire hydrant
water supply. The Services Agreement shall
come into force and will be valid so long as the
Sub-Lease Agreement remains valid and effective.

The initial monthly base service charge payable
by Trischel to MAS Fabric Park was US$5,000 as
at signing of the Services Agreement which shall
be adjusted annually with reference to the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). In addition to
the monthly base service charge, Trischel shall also
pay to MAS Fabric Park the utilities fees in amounts
calculated with reference to the actual number of
units or volume of use.
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The annual cap for the transaction amounts under
the Services Agreement for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 was US$8,093,000 and that
for the financial year ending 31 December 2022
shall be US$9,462,000. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the total service charge
paid to MAS Fabric Park by Trischel under the
Services Agreement amounted to approximately
US$4,579,119. Further details of the Services
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 4 December 2017.

Installation, maintenance and operation
services in relation to a biomass thermic oil
heater provided by MAS Fabric Park

On 15 July 2016, Trischel entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”)
with MAS Fabric Park in relation to provision
by MAS Fabric Park to Trischel of installation,
maintenance and operation services in relation to
a biomass thermic oil heater for a term of 10 years
commencing on 15 July 2016 and ending on 14
July 2026. MAS Fabric Park shall bear the total
cost of investment on purchasing and installation of
the said heater pursuant to the MOU.

MAS Fabric Park shall charge Trischel at a rate
determined according to the MOU for the energy
consumed subject to review (and agreement
between the parties to the MOU) annually in line
with the percentage change in firewood prices and
costs of labour, maintenance and electricity relating
to the operation of the oil heater. MAS Fabric
Park shall in addition to the above costs, charge a
minimal administrative charge.

The annual cap for the transaction amounts
under the MOU for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 was US$2,321,000 and that
for the financial year ending 31 December 2022
shall be US$2,715,000. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the total service charge
paid to MAS Fabric Park by Trischel under the
MOU amounted to approximately US$573,670.
Further details of the MOU were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 December
2017.
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Sales of synthetic textiles and textile related
products to MAS Group

On 4 December 2017, BPTHL, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
framework agreement (the “MAS Framework
Agreement”) with MAS Capital for a term of three
years commencing on the date on which the
completion of the acquisition takes place, i.e. 1
August 2018.

On 31 December 2019, BPTHL and MAS Capital
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “MAS
Supplemental Agreement”) to revise the annual
cap to US$84 million for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 and US$55 million for the period
from 1 January 2021 to 31 July 2021. Save for the
annual caps as amended and decided under the
MAS Supplemental Agreement as abovementioned,
all other terms of the MAS Framework Agreement
remain unchanged.

Pursuant to the MAS Framework Agreement (as
amended by the MAS Supplemental Agreement),
BPTHL Group (as seller) has agreed to sell
synthetic textiles and textile related products
including synthetic fabrics to MAS Capital and its
affiliates (collectively, “MAS Group”) (as purchaser)
from time to time on normal commercial terms
and subject to and upon the terms and conditions
contained in the purchase orders to be agreed
between the relevant members of BPTHL Group
and MAS Group, setting out, among other things,
the products to be supplied, specifications,
quantity, price, delivery method and payment
arrangement. Further details of the MAS Framework
Agreement and the MAS Supplemental Agreement
were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 4 December 2017 and 31 December 2019
respectively.
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From 1 January 2021 to 31 July 2021, sales to
MAS Group under the MAS Framework Agreement
(as amended by the MAS Supplemental Agreement)
amounted to approximately US$47,467,310.

In contemplation of the expiry of the MAS
Framework Agreement (as amended by the MAS
Supplemental Agreement) on 31 July 2021 and to
ensure the continuous supply of the products by
BPTHL Group to MAS Group, BPTHL and MAS
Capital entered into an agreement on 30 June
2021 to renew the MAS Framework Agreement
(the “Renewed MAS Framework Agreement”),
in relation to the sale of synthetic textiles and
textile related products including synthetic fabrics
by BPTHL Group to MAS Group for a term from
1 August 2021 to 31 December 2022. The terms
under the Renewed MAS Framework Agreement
are substantially the same as those under the
MAS Framework Agreement (as amended by the
MAS Supplemental Agreement), save that the
annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the Renewed MAS Framework Agreement for the
period from 1 August 2021 to 31 December 2021
and for the year ending 31 December 2022 shall
be US$50 million and US$115 million respectively.
Further details of the Renewed MAS Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 June 2021.

From 1 August 2021 to 31 December 2021,
sales to MAS Group under the Renewed MAS
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately
US$42,695,162.

Since completion of the acquisition on 1 August
2018, Trischel has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which 51% is
indirectly owned by the Company and 49% is
owned by MAS Capital. Accordingly, MAS Capital,
as a substantial shareholder of Trishel, has become
a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the Listing
Rules.
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Shared services from MAS Capital

On 1 August 2018, Trischel, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a framework agreement (the “MAS Capital
Framework Agreement”) with MAS Capital for a
term of three years commencing on 1 August 2018
to 31 July 2021.

Pursuant to the MAS Capital Framework
Agreement, MAS Capital shall provide centralised
group services in relation to the operation of Trischel
and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Trischel Group”)
in various areas, including legal, corporate finance,
treasury, business strategy, risk and control,
human resources, sustainability, corporate social
responsibility, consultancy services and information
technology, etc. as requested by Trischel from time
to time. The service fees to be charged by MAS
Capital in respect of the services under the MAS
Capital Framework Agreement shall be determined
either at the standard charging rate of MAS Capital
(if any), or if no such rate, at a service fee to be
determined with reference to the costs incurred by
MAS Capital plus a percentage mark-up, which
shall be negotiated between the parties at arm’s
length basis.

The annual caps for the transaction amounts under
the MAS Capital Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was US$441,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
service fee paid by Trischel to MAS Capital under
the MAS Capital Framework Agreement amounted
to approximately US$410,223.

Further details of the MAS Capital Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 August 2018.
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Shared services from MAS Legato

On 1 August 2018, Trischel, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, also entered into
a framework agreement (the “MAS Legato
Framework Agreement”) with MAS Legato (Pvt)
Ltd (“MAS Legato”) for a term of three years
commencing on 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2021.

Pursuant to the MAS Legato Framework
Agreement, MAS Legato shall provide the
centralised group services to Trischel group in
relation to general ledger, account payables and
account receivables processes, etc. as requested
by Trischel from time to time. The service fees to be
charged by MAS Legato in respect of the services
under the MAS Legato Framework Agreement
shall be determined either at the standard charging
rate of MAS Legato (if any), or if no such rate, at a
service fee to be determined with reference to the
costs incurred by MAS Legato plus a percentage
mark-up, which shall be negotiated between the
parties at arm’s length basis.

The annual cap for the transaction amounts under
the MAS Legato Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was US$45,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
service fee paid by Trischel to MAS Legato under
the MAS Legato Framework Agreement amounted
to approximately US$20,978.

Since completion of the acquisition on 1 August
2018, Trischel has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company in which 51% is
indirectly owned by the Company and 49% is
owned by MAS Capital, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MAS. Accordingly, MAS Legato, as
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of MAS, has
become a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level under Rule 14A.06(9) of the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the MAS Legato Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 August 2018.
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Independent non-executive Directors’ confirmation

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions conducted
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and confirmed
that such transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Review by the Company’s auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Our auditor has issued its
unmodified independent assurance report on continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 on pages 54 to 68 of this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent assurance report has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

BYFHATESHER

B ETEEOEN PR RE T —
F+-A=+—AIFEHROBENER
SARRABR S BN TR T -

@ HEARENBEENR-REGBED

b) HEFBEFEMER HMRILETHN
AELERZGNFIE R BIREREHE
fFE - AT EER RSB RBEY S
T RHESNBLIE=TFF (58
) B R

) HEBERATAEAMAARAKRRE
BN S IRRET LR E & 7 HHEEE

1%

RD TR BERE AT R E R

BIE FTREIE14A.561% © NA B L IBZEE
R IEE B MASMER 2 EBREL
EX R E 300058 (KIERT) [ FZHERBE
B ERAINZREBEILIE] R EEKHA
F7409% (LB TR E A L ™R AT
SEEIZZEE ] MAEEFE
FERZERRE - ZERIERIE ETRA
F14A6IGH EEEBEBIREBRE |
EEBAEBEARFRFES4A T FECSH A
ECE-—F+-A=+—BI-EENEE
BER S - NAGEE MR ATIREELIRE
MERIAK -

BEERERERAR / B —FFR

69 €L«



» >y 70

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Yat Ming,
Mr. Ding Baoshan (“Mr. Ding”) and Mr. Kuo Dah Chih,
Stanford (“Mr. Kuo”). Mr. Cheung Yat Ming is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 82 to 98 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15
June 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and its six wholly-
owned subsidiaries (as borrowers) entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with certain banks
in Hong Kong for a syndicated loan comprising HK$1.8
billion equivalent multicurrency term loan and revolving
credit facilities, with a maturity of 42 months from the
date of first drawdown of the term loan facility. The Facility
Agreement contains specific performance obligations
on Mr. Lu, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
requiring that he shall at all times:

i) maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company and that such
issued share capital shall remain unencumbered;
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(ii) be the single largest shareholder of the Company;
(i) be the Chairman of the Board of the Company; and

(iv) maintain control over the management and
business of the borrowers, the Company and the
material subsidiaries.

As of the date of this annual report, Mr. Lu is an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board as well as the
controlling shareholder of the Company, holding direct and
indirect interests in 640,500,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 61.59% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report, and is
treated as the single largest shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, if Mr. Lu breaches
any of his specific performance covenants as mentioned
above, the borrowers shall prepay the syndicated loan
together with the interests and all other amounts accrued
in connection therewith in full within 21 days (or such
longer period as the borrowers and the agent of the
syndicated loan may agree) from the date of the notice
delivered by the agent to the borrowers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had
no other significant events after 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be
submitted at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Lu Yuguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Below is the biographical details of Directors and senior
management of the Group as at 31 December 2021:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Yuguang (E/2), aged 56, is the Chairman of
the Company. He was appointed as a Director on 14
June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director
of the Company on 21 January 2014. Mr. Lu is also the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Lu has approximately
twenty-seven years of experience in the textile industry
and he formulates overall management plans and oversees
the strategic business development of the Group. He
is currently the legal representative and the chairman of
Dongguan NHE, the chairman of the board of directors of
Dongguan BPT and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Lu first started to engage in the textile industry
in August 1994 when he was a chairman of Dongguan
Runda Elastic Weaving Company Limited (“Dongguan
Runda”), a company engaged in the manufacturing,
production and sale of elastic webbing. Throughout the
years, Mr. Lu has been an active entrepreneur in Dongguan
City and Guangdong Province. Mr. Lu has been a member
of the Dongguan High-Tech Industry Association (3 2=
™S M E %1% €) since July 2009 and had been
a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the Dongguan Municipal (5

=M Z B @) from December 2011 to December
2021. Since July 2017 and April 2017, Mr. Lu has been
appointed as the president of Dongguan City MaChong
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment (352
TINEREDEREMBEDE) and an executive director
of World Dongguan Entrepreneurs (it 53 22 7 Bt & €)
respectively. From January 2018 to December 2021, Mr.
Lu had been the vice president of the Dongguan City
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment ((R5e
HNEILE D ZERE). In March 2019, Mr. Lu was appointed
as the vice president of the Dongguan Trademark Brand
Development Promotion Association (REMEZEmEes
RARERES). In July 2009, Mr. Lu was awarded with the
“Chinese Enterprise Management Innovation Achievement
Award” (R B ZEE R AIFT A FLEE) by the China Academy
of Management Science (& EREMFEPT). Mr. Lu
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wu and the father of Mr. Lu
Libin. As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Lu was the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Details of Mr. Lu’s interests in
the share capital of the Company are set out in the section
headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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Mr. ZHANG Haitao (3K/8)%), who was formerly named as
Mr. ZHANG Dahai (55 X/8), aged 51, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He was appointed as a Director on
14 June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director
of the Company on 21 January 2014. He was also
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 20 March 2018. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Dongguan BPT and Dongguan
NHE and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Zhang formulates and executes overall corporate
directions and business strategies of the Group. He has
approximately twenty-seven years of experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Zhang has worked in the Group since
February 2003 and held the position of general manager
at Dongguan BPT. Prior to working in the Group, Mr.
Zhang worked for Pioneer Elastic Fabric (China) Company
Limited (BR¥TsE M4 (R ED) BRAR]) as the business
manager between March 1995 and March 1998. Between
January 1998 and April 1999, and later from July 2001
to May 2010, Mr. Zhang was the general manager of
Dongguan Runda. Mr. Zhang has been a director of the
Guangdong Textiles Association (&R & #7141 2) since
November 2009 and an individual life member of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited (B /#&#%74%mE
@) since September 2013. Since December 2019, Mr.
Zhang has been the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong
Intimate Apparel Industries’ Association Ltd. Mr. Zhang
completed a fashion technology course at Beijing Institute
of Fashion Technology (3t mARZEZER) in July 1992 and
further obtained a master degree in software systems at
the University of St. Thomas in the U.S. in May 2001. Mr.
Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Zheng, the Chief Operating
Officer and an executive Director of the Company. As
at 31 December 2021, Mr. Zhang was interested in the
shares of the Company, details of which are set out in
the section headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND/OR DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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Mr. WU Shaolun (= V@), aged 57, is an executive Director
of the Company. He was appointed as a Director on 14
June 2013 and re-designated as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 January 2014. He is currently a director
and the deputy general manager of Dongguan BPT and
Dongguan NHE, and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Wu is principally responsible for the Group’s
infrastructure and the general management of Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE. He has over twenty-six years of
experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wu worked in Dongguan Runda as the deputy general
manager from April 1995 to May 2010. Since February 2003,
Mr. Wu has been the deputy general manager of Dongguan
BPT. In addition, he has been the deputy general manager of
Dongguan NHE since 2010. Mr. Wu has been a member of
the Dongguan High-tech Industry Association (BRZE T = &t
MTEZ#E) since July 2009 and a director of the Dongguan
City Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment (32
SN B DR E) since November 2013. Mr. Wu is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Lu and the uncle of Mr. Lu Libin. As
at 31 December 2021, Mr. Wu was interested in the shares
of the Company, details of which are set out in the section
headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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ESNSREEEZN

Ms. ZHENG Tingting (£//51Z), aged 46, is an executive
Director of the Company, the Chief Operating Officer and
vice-president (marketing) of the Group and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. She is responsible
for the overall operations, manufacturing and developing
and implementing the sales and marketing strategies of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in December 2006,
Ms. Zheng joined the Guangzhou office of Parker Pen
(Shanghai) Limited as a sourcing specialist in January
2004. In December 2006, Ms. Zheng joined Dongguan
Runda and worked as the vice-president when she left
in May 2010. Since May 2010, she has joined Dongguan
NHE in the same capacity. Also, starting from December
2006, Ms. Zheng worked as a sales manager in Dongguan
BPT. In December 2008, she was promoted as the vice-
president (marketing) of the Group. Ms. Zheng was
promoted as the chief operating officer of the Group since
1 September 2014. Ms. Zheng graduated from the English
department of Xi'an Translation College (78 % & :2 1% 3l
B in the PRC in June 1996. Subsequently in January
2017, she graduated from the Northwestern University and
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with
a master degree in business administration. Ms. Zheng
is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director of the Company. As at 31
December 2021, Ms. Zheng was interested in the shares
of the Company, details of which are set out in the section
headed “DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS - DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND/OR
DEBENTURES” in this annual report.
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Mr. CHAN Yiu Sing (12 £), aged 42, is an executive
Director of the Company, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting, budgeting
control, financing and fund management, as well as
ensuring and maintaining the standards of corporate
governance of the Group. Mr. Chan has over fifteen years
of experience in audit, investment, accounting and finance.
He joined an international audit firm in February 2006 and
was a manager of such audit firm until May 2012 prior to
joining the Group in February 2013. Mr. Chan graduated
from the University of New South Wales in Australia with
a master’'s degree in commerce in June 2005 and a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance in October
2008. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. LU Libin (E3/#), aged 28, is an executive Director
of the Company and has been the Chief Strategy Officer
of the Group since June 2019. Mr. Lu Libin is primarily
responsible for assisting the Board in formulating future
development strategies and directions for the Group.
Mr. Lu Libin joined the Group as the sales manager in
June 2017, and was responsible for coordinating various
departments and operations across different countries.
Since August 2021, Mr. Lu Libin has been the vice
president of Dongguan Dongcheng Young Entrepreneurs
Association (RseMEM T FEEXRHE). Since October
2021, Mr. Lu Libin has been the vice president of
Dongguan Houjie Town Chamber of Commerce (RZm/E
#iEr ). Since December 2021, Mr. Lu Libin has been
a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the Dungguan Municipal (3
=MHIHZ E®). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu Libin
worked as an associate in the investment banking division
at BOCOM |International (Asia) Limited from January 2016
to May 2017. Mr. Lu Libin obtained his bachelor’s degree
in finance from the University of Connecticut in the United
States of America in January 2016. Mr. Lu Libin is the
son of Mr. Lu, the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, and the nephew of Mr. Wu, an executive
Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Yat Ming (55 —"5), who was formerly named
as Mr. CHEUNG Yiu Tai (58#%), aged 53, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 8 May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He has extensive experience in the fields of
investment, real estate and property market research,
corporate finance and auditing. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a staff accountant and semi-senior accountant
at Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China
from August 1991. In August 1994, he joined Citicorp
Commercial Finance (HK) Limited as an administration and
accounting manager and was promoted with Citibank’s
corporate title of assistant vice-president in September
1996. In October 1997, he joined Salomon Brothers Hong
Kong Limited as an equity research associate. He joined
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette as a research associate in
its equity department in May 1999. In November 2000, he
joined HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited as its head of Hong
Kong and China property research. In 2005, he joined
Cohen & Steers Asia Limited as an executive director and
a vice-president in its investment research department
and was promoted in January 2007 as a senior vice-
president and Asia Pacific chief investment officer. In June
2009, he joined DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited as its
head of research. From August 2011 to June 2013, he
worked as the chief investment officer of Neutron Greater
China Equity Long/Short Fund as managed by Neutron
INV Partners Limited. From June 2013 to February 2020,
he worked as the executive director, chief executive officer
and responsible officer of New Century Asset Management
Limited, which is the manager of New Century Real Estate
Investment Trust, a REIT previously listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1275). From March 2014 to March
2020, he served as an independent non-executive director
of Springland International Holdings Limited, a company
previously listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1700). From February 2020 to March 2020, he served as
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the chief executive officer of FEC Hospitality REIT Pte. Ltd.
Since 17 March 2020, he has been the chief executive
officer of Neutron Pacific Limited. Since 20 August 2021,
he has been the responsible officer of Win Full Investment
Management Group Limited. He became a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in January 1995, a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in September 1999
and a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in September 2017. In
June 2010, he received the Outstanding Chinese Business
Leader Award (FFZ= 4 H i £ B EE) from the HongQi (4T
JHE F)) and China Report (FEIZRiE). He graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in accountancy in November 1991.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming was appointed as a director of
Neutron Greater China Equity Long/Short Fund, an
exempted limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 11 June 2010 to conduct securities investment
business. The company had ceased to trade and was
not in operation, had no assets, nor liabilities to creditors,
shareholders or any other third party at the time when
he was one of the directors of the company, and the
shareholders of the company believed that it was for
the best interests of the company to be struck off from
the register of companies in the Cayman Islands. The
company was subsequently struck off from the register
on 31 December 2013. He was also a director of Neutron
Capital Management Ltd., an exempted limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 June 2010 to
conduct securities investment business. The company had
ceased to trade and was not in operation, it also had no
assets, nor liabilities to creditors, shareholders or any other
third party at the time when he was one of the directors
of the company, and the shareholders of the company
believed that it was for the best interests of the company
to be struck off from the register of companies in the
Cayman Islands. The company was subsequently struck
off from the register on 31 December 2013.
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Mr. DING Baoshan (T E1l), aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
8 May 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Ding was an executive director of
Denway Motors Limited from 2000 to 2007, which was
initially listed on the Stock Exchange but was delisted in
2010 upon its privatisation. Starting from July 2000, Mr.
Ding also worked as the chief economist and the deputy
general manager of Guangzhou Automobile Industry
Group Company Limited (EM A BE TEXEEBEHR A
7)), managing various departments until October 2007.
Starting from 2008, he was the general manager of Beijing
Shengshi Huaxuan Investment Company Limited (1t 7 8%
HEEFREFRE AT untl June 2015. From May 2011
to November 2017, he was an independent director of
Qinghai Huading Industrial Company Limited (& /&% &
BE¥AR A7), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600243). Mr. Ding has also taken
up the position as the chairman and an executive director
of Pizu Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8053) since December
2012, and subsequently resigned as the chairman on
15 November 2016, and later resigned as the executive
director on 9 January 2019. From March 2015 to April
2021, Mr. Ding had been an independent director of
Shanxi Guoxin Energy Corporation Limited (LU 78 Ba%7
RERAX DA PR AA]), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 600617). Since June 2021,
Mr. Ding has been an independent director of Shanxi
Blue Flame Holding Company Limited (LLI 78 & & $2 B A%
B ABEMRAT), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 000968). Mr. Ding graduated from
the Beijing Iron and Steel Institute (1t R SMEERT) with a
bachelor degree in mining machinery in July 1985. In June
1988, Mr. Ding completed a master degree in engineering
at Beijing University of Science and Technology
db = EHE A E) in the PRC. Mr. Ding graduated from China
Social Science Institute (B4t & HLE22Fx) with a doctorate
degree in economics in July 1991.

TEWRE 58%x RZZE—HWFRAN
BEZTAEARRBIYIFNITES - BINA
KRR MNEEEER  BERZEERIRES
ZEEKE - TAERMBEARERR K=
TR Fr T FHEARERRRE
BRAR (BEABEAR A A &I FT
E o BEZRARALELEER T —ZFk
) iTES - B _TETEF AL THh
ETRBEMNAETEEBER AR ETEL
R B ALIE - EETRYM AE T
T+FET AR BEZEZTN\FE - BRI
AR ESFREGRARETAKETRRE —
T—RFAABLt -BZE——FHAEC
TE—+F+—A BEREESEREEEFRA
A (LBBAER S EMAR - RO :
600243) HEBYEE - BT —_F
—REE ThARAERAEHEERIERBR AT
(B ZXFr ET A - RS : 8053) /&
FHTES WHERZ-_ZT—XRF+—A+
FEHBREEFR " BAREBER T —hLF—
ANBBEERNTES B KT —HF=
Az -—FWA  ThAAALAEH
RN BRAR (EEFEARXSHETA
Al BRI - 600617) B ESE - 5=
T —FNAR - ThREBILTEGIERR
MERAR (RINEBHEXZHMLETAR - &
5 : 000968) KIIEILES o T AR —
NNREF+ AR RN E BT R - BSE
I E LA - T AEER—NANFERA
TERPBEIE AR ARENTERLTEM - T
EER—NAN—"FLtARPELSHBRE
¥ BEKRESELTEM -

80 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. KUO Dah Chih Stanford (38:X%%), aged 61, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 May 2021. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Kuo has
extensive experience in the textile and apparel industry.
Since 1982, Mr. Kuo has served as a managing director
of Gunzetal Limited, which is a leading worldwide supplier
of high quality thread products to the apparel and non-
apparel industry. By engaging in product development with
retailers, Gunzetal Limited is a vertically integrated thread
producer which provides spinning, dyeing, finishing, and
direct distribution to the end sewing users. Since 1982, he
has also served as a managing director of Woodard Textile
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. which is a leading worldwide
supplier of high quality yarn and thread products to
the apparel and non-apparel industry. In 2010, he was
appointed as a member of the Executive Committee of
Sustainable Fashion Business Consortium. In 2012, Mr.
Kuo was appointed as a member of the Board of Trustees
at Deerfield Academy (USA). In 2015, he was appointed as
the vice-chairman of Federation of HK Jiangsu Community
Organizations and had been serving the General
Committee of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
and as the chairman of Group 17 (Spinning). In 2016, Mr.
Kuo was appointed as the chairman of The Hong Kong
Cotton Spinners Association and a member of the School
Committee of Diocesan Boys' School. In 2017, Mr. Kuo
was appointed as a member of the General Committee
of Textile Council of Hong Kong. In 2019, he was elected
as the vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Intimate Apparel
Industries’ Association and a member of the Vocational
Training Council Fashion and Textile Training Board. In
2020, he was appointed as a member of the Board of
Directors (Class B) of The Hong Kong Research Institute of
Textiles and Apparel Limited and a director of the Diocesan
Boys’ School Foundation Limited and the convenor of
Endowment & Administration Sub-Committee. Mr. Kuo
obtained both of his bachelor’s degree in management
and his bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology in the United States
of America in 1982.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

bEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance which is essential to the
sustainable development and growth of the Company.
The Board is of the view that the Company has met all
the applicable code provisions in force set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors of the
Company and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

The Company has also established a code no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by senior management who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive or inside information of the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board
comprises nine members, consisting of six executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lu (Chairman of the Board), Mr.
Zhang (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Wu, Ms. Zheng (Chief
Operating Officer), Mr. Chan (Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary) and Mr. Lu Libin (Chief Strategy
Officer), and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, Mr. Ding and Mr. Kuo.

The biographical information of the Directors as well as the
relationships between the members of the Board are set
out on pages 73 to 81 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Lu and Mr. Zhang respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations
generally. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Retirement

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at
any time either by the shareholders in general meeting or
by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee.

According to the Articles, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment
with the Company. All Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles.

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions in the Articles, Mr. Lu,
Mr. Wu and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. All the above Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the then CG
Code, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director. The Company updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, in
order to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. The Company
also arranges suitable professional development seminars
and courses for the Directors. For instance, every newly
appointed Director will receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Directors’ responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

The Directors informed the Company that they had
received sufficient and relevant training and continuous
professional development during the Reporting Period.
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Records of training by the Directors are maintained by the
company secretary. Training records of Directors in 2021
are as follows:

EERENRICHRANERT < BF
NF =B IIREmT

Directors Type of trainings
= EINEE
Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Lu Yuguang B A&B
Mr. Zhang Haitao REEEE A&B
Mr. Wu Shaolun Rt E A&B
Ms. Zheng Tingting s ie i+ A&B
Mr. Chan Yiu Sing BRIBE L& A B&C
Mr. Lu Libin EIWEAE A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming RIS AE A B&C
Mr. Ding Baoshan TEL%RE A B&C
Mr. Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford N3 A B&C

A reading materials relating to the Group, general business, A: FEEMASE  —RERK - FHREINK

latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements

B: attending a training session on directors’ duties and latest
development of the Listing Rules conducted by legal advisers
of the Company

C: attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Under code provision A.1.1 of the then CG Code, the
Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and under code provision A.2.7 of the
then CG Code, the chairman of the Board should at least
annually hold meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors.

During the Reporting Period, ten Board meetings were
held. In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors.
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A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings will be
provided to the Directors at the beginning of the year. At
least 14 days’ notice for all regular Board meetings will be
given to all Directors and all Directors must be given the
opportunity to include items or businesses for discussion
in the agenda. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given. Relevant agenda and accompanying
Board papers will be sent to all Directors at least three
working days in advance of every regular Board meeting.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 8
May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the then CG
Code. The Audit Committee has three members, namely,
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, Mr. Ding and Mr. Kuo and is chaired
by Mr. Cheung Yat Ming.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems
and procedures, audit plan and relationship with external
auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held
three meetings for the purpose of, among other matters,
to review annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, the interim results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and significant issues
on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Company’s internal audit function, and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The external auditors attended all the above meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from
the audit and financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 8 May 2014 in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of
the Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2 of the then CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee has three members,
namely Mr. Ding, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming and
is chaired by Mr. Ding.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management, and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
met two times for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management and other related matters.

The details of the remuneration paid to the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the emoluments of every executive Director,
who are the Company’s senior management, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to code provision
B.1.5 of the then CG Code are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
8 May 2014 in compliance with code provisions A.5.1 and
A.5.2 of the then CG Code. The Nomination Committee
has three members, namely Mr. Lu, Mr. Cheung Yat Ming
and Mr. Ding and is chaired by Mr. Lu.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.
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The procedures and criteria for the Nomination Committee REEECHRENEZTIEEZ 2 HFEAN
to select and recommend candidates for being appointed 2R &Tafi EREaian T -

as Directors are summarised below:

()] diversity in all aspects, including but not limited (@)
to skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

(b) ability to exercise sound business judgment and (b)
possess proven achievement and experience in
directorship including effective oversight of and
guidance to management;

()] commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient (c)
time for the proper discharge of the duties of a
Director;

(d) potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if (d)

the candidate is selected;

(e) independence of the independent non-executive (e)
director candidates as required under the Listing
Rules;

] in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an ()

independent non-executive Director, the number of
years he/she has already served; and

(¢) identifying any persons who may be suitable and (9)
qualified to become members of the Board and
select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, any persons nominated for
directorships.

})) a0 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REBHENS T - BEETER
IRIRAMBREE - A 1R E
Bk XILRHBEEE BELEHRR
H it EARE

W
Iy
o

E’JAW}?ZEK&Z‘“% (@?Eﬁ_k
IREERE) ;

REANFFERARERELZ RBITE
ERE

e fmE NSRRI R E £ 2 B BR
FanfEoe

ETBRAUMBRC B LIERITEEH
AV

IREMZIBELIFRTES R
RIBER &

SRAREANEERKA/ESTEK
BMEMAL URBBEBALR
EXEnNEFSFHLBERRHERZE

N
2
e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. A summary of the Company’s
board diversity policy is set out on pages 94 to 95 of this
annual report.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
met two times for the purpose of, among other matters,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee considered the diversity of the
Board is appropriate.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the then CG Code.

The Company has formulated a comprehensive corporate
governance manual containing various policies and
procedures governing the functioning of the Board
and its committees, appraisal and remuneration, risk
management, financial reporting, conflict of interest,
connected transactions, shareholders’ communication and
other aspects of corporate governance and management
of the Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and general meeting of the
Company held during the Reporting Period is as follows:

ESRZEERETRHFETE

BEFHFERREHRAGRNARRES
EREFZR TR MBRRAG RN
T

Meetings attended/Meetings held

HEEEREEHRETRY

Annual
general Nomination Remuneration Audit

Name of Directors Notes meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
=R Mzt BRBEAE Exg REEZEE FWzEg ENZEE
LU Yuguang 11 10/10 2/2 N/A TN N/A T iEF
ZHANG Haitao i 10/10 N/A TE A 2/2 N/A TN iEF
)=
WU Shaolun 1/1 10/10 N/A NE A N/A TN N/A NE
R
ZHENG Tingting 11 10/10 N/A TNE A N/A TN A N/A TNE A
e
CHAN Yiu Sing 1 11 8/8 N/A 1B N/A T iEF N/A 1B
37
Lu Libin 2 11 8/8 N/A RN N/A TNE N/A MNEF
B
CHEUNG Yat Ming 1/1 10/10 2/2 2/2 3/3
KI5
DING Baoshan 11 10/10 2/2 2/2 3/3
TEWL
Kuo Dah Chih, Stanford g} N/A N 6/6 N/A MNEA N/A TNE A 2/2
LIYN
SAl Chun Yu 4 11 4/4 N/A TNEF N/A TNE 11
KT

Notes: PaE

1. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive Director of the 1. R JC £ FR2021F2 A10H E R T AR A R#H

Company on 10 February 2021. {TEE -
2. Mr. Lu Libin was appointed as an executive Director of the 2. EW R AER2021F 210 ELZ T AARR
Company on 10 February 2021. ABITES -
3. Mr. Kuo was appointed as an independent non-executive 3. SRHAEF2021F5 A28 HE LT AR AR TS

Director of the Company on 28 May 2021.

4. Mr. Sai retired as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 May 2021.

MIERITES ©

4, A HER2021FE5 A28 REAR R T B IE
%ﬂﬁé%
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 99 to 105 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services (mainly for review of the condensed consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2021 and tax compliance services) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$2.2 million and approximately HK$0.7 million
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has in place the sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group.
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
From time to time and at least once a year, the Board
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure
that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment as well as the requirements under
the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and
creditability of the review, an independent audit firm has
been engaged to conduct the appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee, with reference to and based on the internal
audit report issued by the independent audit firm,
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal control and financial reporting
functions, and training programmes and budget. The
Board has considered and discussed the internal audit
report issued by the independent audit firm, the work
conducted by the independent audit firm, the Audit
Committee’s view on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and their effectiveness. The Board
and the Audit Committee are satisfied with the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) on 23 May 2014. A summary of this Diversity
Policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
corporate governance report, on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Diversity Policy.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board’s diversified
composition was summarized as follows:

10

EEHA

Executive Directors (6)
HITEE(©)

Number of Directors

Designation Gender

75 MR

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine Directors. Three of them are independent non-
executive Directors, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yiu Sing, the Company Secretary appointed by
the Board, is a full-time employee of the Company; and
in the opinion of the Board, possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. During the
Reporting Period, Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15
hours of professional training. The Company will continue
to provide funds for Mr. Chan to take not less than 15
hours of appropriate professional training in each financial
year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
its corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company maintains a website at www.bestpacific.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the Group’s
business developments and operations and other
information are available for public access.

Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders or investors
to the Board are welcomed by mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 38th Floor,
No. 9 Wing Hong Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong or via email to ir@bestpacific.com for the attention of
the Investor Relations Department. Inquiries are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
It is the Company’s general practice that the Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, their duly appointed
delegates, who are members of the relevant committees,
will be available to answer questions at the general
meetings of the Company. In addition, the Company will
invite representatives of the auditor to attend its annual
general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of the auditor.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Director, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. The
Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(1)

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene an EGM pursuant to Article 58 of the
Articles by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
purpose of requiring such general meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the general meeting shall send a written
notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of such general
meeting and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name(s), contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by law. Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings
of the Company shall be voted by poll except where
the chairman decides to allow a resolution relating to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands pursuant to the Listing Rules and the
Articles. The poll results shall be posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company after each
shareholders’ meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant
change in the Articles of the Company.

The latest version of the Articles of the Company is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 274,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
Key audit matter

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
losses (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounting to approximately HK$821.2 million
and out of these trade receivables of approximately
HK$58.7 million were past due.

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group identifies
trade receivables that are credit-impaired under HKFRS
9 and assesses their ECL individually. The management
of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the
remaining trade receivables based on provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar
loss pattern, after considering internal credit ratings of
trade debtors and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables. The credit loss allowance amount is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The
assessment of credit risk of trade receivables involves high
degree of estimation uncertainty.

As disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2021 amounting to approximately
HK$24.6 million.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables (Continued)
How our audit address the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

° Understanding key controls on how the
management of the Group estimates the credit loss
allowance for trade receivables;

o Testing the accuracy of information used by the
management of the Group to develop the provision
matrix, including past due trade receivables as
at 31 December 2021, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales invoices and monthly statement for
sales;

° Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade receivables
which are assessed for ECL individually, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix by internal credit ratings of
trade debtors and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix; and

° Testing subsequent settlements of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, by inspecting
supporting documents in relation to cash receipt
from trade debtors subsequent to the end of the
current reporting period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ °
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and °
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence °
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBmkEtEmRaR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZ—FT - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B--F —ZT_TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bi=E FTET FET
Revenue WA 5 4,792,661 3,494,274
Cost of sales SHERK AR (3,680,829) (2,650,914)
Gross profit EH 1,111,832 843,360
Other income ElA 7 50,694 43,806
Other gains and losses Hipss RkIEE 8 1,906 (25,717)
Impairment losses under expected credit HHEEEEEBETRE
loss model, net of reversal B8 (HBR#EE) 38 (11,967) (6,282)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R Y (202,647) (156,484)
Administrative expenses IEBRFEX (336,170) (253,866)
Research and development costs HEEE A (99,205) (81,134)
Share of result of a joint venture DMEEELERE 3,906 1,983
Finance costs AR AR 9 (61,732) (75,700)
Profit before taxation B AR AT ) 12 456,617 289,966
Income tax expense PSR 13 (55,271) (40,773)
Profit for the year FERF 401,346 249,193
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hib2mEE (Bx) :
ltems that may be reclassified Hign[ge BN BRE
subsequently to profit or loss: BRMIER
Exchange differences arising on BEBINETSEER
translation of foreign operations b H = 98,201 204,146
Share of translation reserve of DMEEETENBRE
a joint venture ] 918 1,360
ltems that will not be reclassified to HgE T egmnERIERN
profit or loss: IHE :
Remeasurement of retirement benefit BEFEERESR
obligations, net of tax & (EHMERTIE) 1,887 (842)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year 101,006 204,664
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEWZETE 502,352 453,857
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to FRELER (EE)
— Owners of the Company — KA ﬁ%ﬁ A 401,794 257,769
- Non-controlling interests — IR (448) (8,576)
401,346 249,193
Total comprehensive income (expense) FRELZE RS
for the year attributable to (%) #%
— Owners of the Company —KREEAA 502,086 462,717
- Non-controlling interests — IR fE R 266 (8,860)
502,352 453,857
Earnings per share BREF 15
— Basic (HK cents) — 5 (L) 38.64 24.79
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB

As at 31 December 2021 A= =—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET FBT
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE R 16 2,925,355 2,970,302
Right-of-use assets REEE 17 350,376 272,109
Interest in a joint venture REETENERS 18 38,669 34,751
Deposits e 21 58,349 25,668
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE = 30 5,576 5,387
3,378,325 3,308,217
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 19 1,456,797 922,301
Trade and bills receivables = NS S 20 849,430 807,898
Other receivables, deposits and HEbEWERIE « e K&
prepayments TE(TFRIA 21 128,194 98,521
Tax recoverables EIEE 4,783 10,773
Pledged bank deposits BIRIPRI TR 22 121,607 77,944
Short term bank deposits RHRSRTTE K 22 163,814 8,338
Bank balances and cash RITEREIRE 22 898,868 1,092,855
3,623,493 3,018,630
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables 2 SR HIE 23 370,193 243,050
Bills payables FERT =R 24 444,038 323,248
Other payables and accrued charges  H i e~ 7X18 K FEE+ & F3 25 357,062 280,981
Contract liabilities BHBE 26 34,855 33,267
Bank borrowings RITIER 27 1,511,615 1,313,569
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 42,743 13,485
Tax payables BT IE 46,745 15,351
Derivative financial instrument TSR T A 29 1,092 1,402
2,808,343 2,224,353
Net current assets hEEEFEE 815,150 794,277
Total assets less current liabilities #&EERREEE 4,193,475 4,102,494
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R

As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE-—F+—-H=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e FTERT T
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMIEFK 27 648,789 972,952
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 128,972 76,647
Deferred income TEIEUT A 15,390 16,340
Deferred tax liabilities BIEMIBRE 30 9,698 5,758
Retirement benefit obligations RINEMEE 32 9,789 9,060
Other liabilities HEiEE 7,591 3,556
820,229 1,084,313
Net assets EEFE 3,373,246 3,018,181
Capital and reserves BEARR #E
Share capital %N 31 10,398 10,398
Reserves e 3,271,060 2,923,905
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE ABERER
the Company 3,281,458 2,934,303
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RERR 91,788 83,878
Total equity Rz 3,373,246 3,018,181
The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to FI06B E2TAB MMM BRI EESS
274 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March RZBE-_—F=ZA -+ \BHERENATRK
2022 and are signed on its behalf by: RERE
Lu Yuguang Zhang Haitao
EEX (359
Chairman Executive Director
EY HITESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

4= A T—ﬂ- WA

iy 3

Z X\ mam

FE)R

m 5
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

ADTRE AL
Retirement PRC Non-
Share Share Other benefit Special  statutory Translation  Retained controlling Total
Capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RIER HEEE FER
BE  ROEE  Rftfk R KRR #E BERE REEA st BiE  EEeE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEn TFiEn TFiEn TiEn Fhx T T Fx FEx FEx TFiEgn
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Wit ) (Marb)  (MiEc)
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hE+ZA
=t-H 10,398 593,250 106,715 1,134 (13,070) 182,393 (222,428) 1,873,503  2,531,89% 83,183 2,615,078
Proft (loss) for the year FREMN (B5R) - - - - - - - 257,769 257,769 (8576) 249,193
Exchange differences arising on BEENEBELR

translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - = - 204146 - 204,146 - 204,146
Share of tranglation reserve of AERELFAERE

a joint venture - - - - - - 1,360 - 1,360 - 1,360
Remeasurement of retirement RINERIEANER

benefit obligations, net of tax iH8 (HMRHIR) = - - (568) - - - - (558) (284) (842)
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMRE (AR)

income for the year gk - - - (558) - - 205,506 - 204,948 (284) 204,664
Total comprehensive (expense) FR2E (Ax%) kagE

income for the year - - - (658) - - 205,506 257,769 462,717 (8,860) 453,857
Capital injection from non-controling ~ —FIMIEA AFHERRER T &

shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 9,655 9,665
Transfer from retained profits to BRBEFEBZREETRHE

the PRC statutory reserve - - - - - 16,686 - (16,686) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ BEZNERIRE. (FiHE14)

(Note 14) - - - - - - - (60,309) (60,309) = (60,309)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+-A=1+-H 10,398 593,250 106,715 576 (13,070) 199,079 (16,922) 2,054,277 2,934,303 83878 3,018,181
Profit (loss) for the year FERF (B8) = = = = = = - 401,794 401,794 (448) 401,346
Exchange differences arising on HEENEBEENEL R

translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 98,201 - 98,201 = 98,201
Share of tranglation reserve of AERELFAERE

a joint venture - - - - - - 918 - 918 - 918
Remeasurement of retirement RIMERIEANER

benefit obligations, net of tax it8 (EHibR) - - - 1,173 - - - - 1,173 714 1,887
Other comprehensive income FREM2ERE

for the year - - - 1,173 - - 99,119 - 100,292 714 101,006
Total comprehensive income FRZENEEE

for the year - - - 1,173 - - 99,119 401,794 502,086 266 502,352
Capital injection from non-controling ~ — K BA R ERRETE

shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 7,644 7,644
Transfer from retained profts to BRBEHEZHEETERE

the PRC statutory reserve - - - - - 18,518 - (18,518) - - -
Dividends recognised as distrioution ~ #:2AREIRE. (HHzE14)

(Note 14) - - - - - - - (154,931)  (154,931) = (154,931)
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-§+ZF=+-H 10,398 593,250 106,715 1,749 (13,070) 217,597 82,197 2,282,622 3,281,458 91,788 3,373,246
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Notes:

110

Other reserve of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$106,715,000 represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company and
the carrying value of the non-controlling interests held by
Sunbrilliant Capital Investment Limited and Lakefront Capital
Investment Limited and the share capital of Best Pacific
Textile Holdings Limited (“BPT Holdings”) prior to the
completion of a group reorganisation on 16 January 2014.

Several subsidiaries of the Company provided financial
guarantees to its related companies and the fair value of the
financial guarantees was recognised as deemed distribution
to the shareholders at initial recognition. These financial
guarantees were released in previous years.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory reserve
is non-distributable until the end of the operation periods of
respective PRC subsidiaries. The transfer to this reserve is
determined according to the relevant laws in the PRC and by
the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries. It can be
used to make up for previous year’s losses or convert into
additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
upon approval from the relevant authority in the PRC.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

"b/\
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B--F it Sk 323
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THL
Operating activities geEy
Profit before taxation BRI ADE A 456,617 289,966
Adjustments for: BTYIRIEEL
Interest income A BUA (21,850) (8,238)
Finance costs ﬁi‘lé“ﬁﬁm 61,732 75,700
Share of result of a joint venture PMEEELERE (3,906) (1,983)
Depreciation of property, hE - BERRENE
plant and equipment 333,972 308,728
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 30,689 23,288
Change in fair value of a derivative TEER T AR
financial instrument ATEEE (310 (1)
Gain from bargain purchase from acquisition Wik —EE B R Z B s
of a business (3,900) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HENE - BER
plant and equipment FEBE (W) 135 (72)
Impairment losses under expected credit BHEEEBRAETRE
loss model, net of reversal B8 (eREE) 11,967 6,282
Amortisation of deferred income 313N (2,883) (1,789)
Allowance for slow-moving inventories 7%*%’? R 35,151 24,288
Unrealised exchange (gain) loss arising on translation RS BB RRARER
of current accounts within group entities EXNREREL (W) BiE (17.173) 26,051
Operating cash flows before movements HBESEAIN
in working capital REBRenE 880,241 742,220
(Increase) decrease in inventories =E (Em) md (533,084) 159,222
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 UG IE M E 1 (45,788) (46,049)
Increase in other receivables, HiRHE  RER
deposits and prepayments TR IR (49,036) (8,000)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables B SR FIELEM (RD) 123,576 ©,177)
Increase (decrease) in bills payable FENZEEEM ORd) 111,146 (83,136)
Increase in other payables and HihERZUB L ETER
accrued charges Zm 48,434 49,784
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities BHBEEM ORD) 1,360 (8,134)
Increase in retirement benefit obligations RKEHIE EE 1,041 1,651
Cash generated from operations RaXEmERE 537,890 798,381
Income tax paid B FTEH (15,217) (44,158)
Net cash from operating activities RETBMERETE 522,673 754,223
BRBBIERAER AR /| — T —FFR 111
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:\\/\ Eﬁz 7 //ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bzt TER THL
Investing activities REED
Placement of pledged bank deposits BFREERRITER (233,410) (132,599)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REE BRI T 191,050 136,401
Interest received B S 20,509 8,261
Payment for right-of-use assets XIEREEE - (7,368)
Addition of property, plant and equipment NENE - BE K (224,599) (239,225)
Cash outflow on acquisition of business WEEEB REN 33 (27,598) -
Government grants received BB EE 2 1473 13,370
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BEX
plant and equipment REMEHE 7,254 4,570
Placement of short term bank deposits with R B RE=187
original maturity over 3 months ZRHRITIER (161,645) (141,164)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits RRRZHABA
with original maturity over 3 months =Rz RERITER 8,536 145,066
Dividend income received from interest KEARGEERERN
on a joint venture BEHA 906 -
Repayment from related companies REBHAANER 385 -
Advance to related companies LN (26) =
Advance form related companies IR B B A B EA R 2,890 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMARETE (414,275) (212,684)
Financing activities REEE
Interests paid ERFIE (66,221) (81,014)
Dividends paid BERIRE (154,931) (60,309)
Capital injection from a non-controlling —RM B A AR
shareholder of a subsidiary BERIE 7,644 9,555
New bank borrowings raised HIERITIE TR 2,652,182 534,223
New syndicated loan raised B REER 873,656 2,532,359
New other borrowing raised g E M iE R 25,116 25,408
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMERRE (20,745) (14,903)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (2,560,939) (562,380)
Repayment of syndicated loan ERREER (1,148,781) (2,430,779)
Drawdown of bank overdrafts RBTER 29,111 -
Net cash used in financing activities RETHRARSTFE (363,908) (47,840)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReRBELEEN
cash equivalents (R2) BmEs (255,510) 493,699
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FENNRLERALZEY
of the year 1,092,855 544,548
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes PE RN R/ 61,523 54,608
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% '
the year, represented by DR 898,868 1,092,855
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 22 898,868 1,092,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Best Pacific International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public company incorporated
as an exempted company and registered in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on
14 June 2013. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Grandview Capital Investment Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI’) and is wholly owned by Mr. Lu Yuguang
(“Mr. Lu”), who is the Chairman and executive
director of the Company. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 23 May 2014. The address
of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 41.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements.

—REH
HBREBEEZERER AR ((F28])
R—ERZZE—=F A THEARE
eSS EMFE2FE R AE (— X
—FEZFRR - BEFEERER] &
MEeEHSTMAIRERRZER AR
WARAR - AHEERKRKEIERAT]
Grandview Capital Investment Limited
RRNEBELHS ([REBELXEE])
AMKZY AR RAERRATES
ERiEE (TEEE]) 2EBEANR
Al ARRIRHEB-_ZE—WHERHA
_T=HREBEEHMERIMERA
a] ([H$3ZAr ) MR ET - ARRIGEM
MERRFEZLEMBA I FER
RERARER—E o

ARmREMBAR ([AEH]) O
EERPRRENEEEEEYEE
BMREEET MBARNTIEE
B BEENHI 4 -

ARRNIEEE RET ([Ex])
TRFEVBEHRRNZINER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. ERAEBRUKERESERN (HE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL M| ERERA ) (BETA)
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are 21 AFEEERHIERNEEBHE
mandatorily effective for the current WEER (BFTA)
year
In the current year, the Group has applied RAEE  AEEEBXER
the following amendments to HKFRSs LNTHAESEHMAE (BB
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of SMAE)) BHRERZE
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for T—F—A—HBRZENFE
the first time, which are mandatorily effective HF B G LN BBV BRE
for the annual periods beginning on or after R (BETAR) - NREEZE U
1 January 2021 for the preparation of the U E

consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent EBMBREE HCovid-19f8BMA
Concessions 2165 (8 <=
HEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate RS REE FIREENE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Benchmark Reform A9 - & — F2RER
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 - Phase 2 e
£395 - &
BYERE
RRIETSR -
BB
ERBIEAR
RE B
&tﬂ: EE\J
16%5% (1E7]
x)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year (Continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda
decision of the IFRS Interpretations
Committee of the International Accounting
Standards Board (“Agenda Decision”)
issued in June 2021 which clarified the
costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

The application of the amendments to
HKFRSs and Agenda Decision in the
current year has had no material impact
on the financial position or performance of
the Group for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.

21 FEECABEMNERME
BEER (BETA)
(&)

gEAN - ANEEER A B e ET
ZRBEe  HERMEHRELE
BREZEeRN T - —F X
BEHBRNZERE([BRER
B ZArAEEA BEEER

SRS BB ER  ERANA
B [ E I 38 BT AR A |
B -

REERAEBME RS ER
(BRTA) MERRH I ARE AR
SEAFREEBEFENTBE
KRERRE /HzEGa M
BRRABZBEBEERTE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

116

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 /nterest Rate
Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments
for the first time in the current year. The
amendments relate to changes in the basis
for determining the contractual cash flows
of financial assets and financial liabilities as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
specific hedge accounting requirements and
the related disclosure requirements applying
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(‘HKFRS 7”).

As at 1 January 2021, the Group has several
bank and other borrowings, the interests of
which are indexed to benchmark rates that will
or may be subject to interest rate benchmark
reform. The following table shows the total
amounts of these outstanding contracts. The
amounts of bank and other borrowings are
shown at their carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. EAEAUBREER ([FE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL B R EZER |) (BETA) (82)
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)
21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are 21 XFEECRHEIERNEBME
mandatorily effective for the current WEER (BFTZ)
year (Continued) (&)
Impacts on application of Amendments EREBMEREEREIR -
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, EBSTTERE395% - HEH
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate B|EERETS  BEEVBER
Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Continued) FREBEAEREAMBEREE
BlZE165% (BRI &) FIEHEEXK
B-ZoEER R (F)
HK$ uUs$
Hong Kong London
Interbank Interbank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) (“LIBOR”)
BT Ep
EBRIT RBERIT
EEFE BEERFE
(TBBHRIT (IMmZER1T
EEZ3-W)) BEFL ]
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT FET
Financial liabilities cHEeE
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R AL MR FE R 1,427,178 859,343

The amendments have had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements as
none of the relevant contracts has been
transitioned to the relevant replacement rates
during the year. The Group will apply the
practical expedient in relation to the changes
in contractual cash flows resulting from the
interest rate benchmark reform for bank and
other borrowings measured at amortised
cost. Additional disclosures as required by
HKFRS 7 are set out in Note 38.

HRNFABEERESORBES
HEZ R E - B e AN
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20211
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies®
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20207
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. ERBEMBHREED (FHE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL MR EER ) (BRTAR) (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)
2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in 22 EEGEERERNHITESE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) B SREERREBSE K (&)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 RZE-—FMA—Hkz’&
after 1 April 2021. s 2 G2 B AR -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2 R-ZE-_—_F—H—HBzz’&
after 1 January 2022. s 2 G2 B AR -
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 3 R-EBE-_=—F—F—HBziz’&
after 1 January 2023. Fth 2 FE BRI AER ©
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 4 REEBETZ B 2 B HE 2
after a date to be determined. FEHIMAERK -
The directors of the Company anticipate AARESTEE  EREEH
that the application of these new and BBV BREELNKREERT
amendments to HKFRSs will have no AR A B8 kT & 4 A B %
material impact on the consolidated financial WEERBERATE o

statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to

the Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in HKFRS 3
Business Combinations (“HKFRS 3”)
so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting
2010 issued in October 2010);

° add a requirement that,
transactions and other events within
the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets (“HKAS 37”) or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 Levies (“HK(IFRIC)-Int 21”),
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business

combination; and
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to
the Conceptual Framework (Continued)

o add an explicit statement that
an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2021)

The amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of
right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

ERAEEUMBREED ((FE
MBHERED ) UBRTA) (#)

22 CEHEMEEMKRERNHITER
BB EERNREETE (F)

BRMBREEUEIR (B
x) BERERAYIEAE (47)

O iEI/J\ Iaﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ EHL&
BATEBREEBE O
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2021) (Continued)

specify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

U)

(i)

the classification should not
be affected by management
intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12
months; and

if the right is conditional
on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if
the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period,
even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date;
and

2.

22 EHEMEEKRERNHIERE
BB EENREBTE (F)

BRBEERF1H (BT X)
HEEBZBEBTRE KT E R
EBEREESH (—F-—F)
1E15ET (48)

s HMEREIBERRBNIE
MEEENRERRAE
HERRER - ABME - %
SACHIRNGLER

() DETEXIER
EE A 12(E
ARNBFEARENY
2k

(i)  fHRRIERIAR ST R
KR A At - RIBIE
ETRBE BT
AFABSTER - W
IR ¥R & B M 2 15
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2. [
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL B
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2021) (Continued)

° clarify that if a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement
by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities
as at 31 December 2021, the application
of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

22 EHEMEEMRERNHITER
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BBEFERFE1H (BT X)
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies”
with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating
to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy
information.

2.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements (the “Practice
Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information
about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the
Group’s significant accounting policies.

2.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting
estimates as “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements
to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items
to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must
instead be estimated. In such a case, an
entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the
accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or
assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in
accounting estimates in HKAS 8 is retained
with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decision made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBBRRGEREERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETHEE (#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 HKEMBHRRNVEREE (&)

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment (‘HKFRS
2"), leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases
(‘HKFRS 16”), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets (‘HKAS 36”).

A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

3. GEMBBREREEREER

SETHEE (#)
3.2 FESIHEXE
REEE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMAEVBKBRGEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETHEE (#)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
Business combinations XKE6t

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities,
and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes (“HKAS 12”) and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits (“HKAS 19”)
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respectively; 1955 ) BRKETE
. liabilities or equity instruments . 5 N A W BS 5 AR 1 A 2

related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below);

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

T B0 5 R 2 B S AR ER AR
YR 07 DA £ A B R RO
KL BRI AN A
B RERN N R L TR
BEXRATA  RkiE
B 8RB MRS £
F2 T E (B P XEA
B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

° assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and
measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms
of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of
joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted
in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that joint venture (which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HRENBBERGEHREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SRR (#)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 IEESHHE (&)
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Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture or acquisition of additional interest
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a
joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or
purchase), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods
or services that are substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBBRHFEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBGR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEEHZBA (&)
(Continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue THIERERFEER - MW~ E
is recognised over time by reference to the HAf—IHATELE - BIATS
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progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or
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. the Group’s performance does not . AN B B AN R A
create an asset with an alternative rEBEBERAENE
use to the Group and the Group has E - BARSEARFIBT
an enforceable right to payment for AW ER 2 S BB A ERH

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.

The Group’s revenue from sales of goods is
recognised at a point in time when goods
are delivered and control has been passed
to customers.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss (as other
income) in the period in which they become
receivable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEUNBBRGHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETHEE (8)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 IFEEBEX (28)
Research and development expenditure B
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Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset
arising from development activities (or
from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;
° how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of
the expenditure incurred from the date
when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Properties in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for their intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

REMBBRREREERTE
S BE (&)

3.2 EEIHEE (&)
W - BERRE

BRRELE HEXTHRAR
MERMEIIN W - BE
RIBRAANBILBREITE
MigHRFHRERBE (1F) 1
REPBARRKRINE

RELE HEXITHRRAZN
TR W) IR PR R B R R R (E
BERIIE - AABRREEEE
Fe R EREREN TR
FREKEMLENNE RIRM
mEEEENEMKAR (Bia
BREEMS) REAKREST
BRERCEFRRAN - ZF
MERTITRIZZHTERE
REDAME - BERERED
BEER - HEMYEXEEN
HEEHER  ZFEENEZ#
ERZRRFRBITE

BERRERERAT / —E=—FER 141

€<«



»>D>

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets (other than the construction
in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation
of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Short term leases

The Group applies the short term lease
recognition exemption to leases of staff
quarters, warehouses, office premises, motor
vehicles and machinery and equipment that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short
term leases is recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

REMBBRREREERTE
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3.2 FESHHEE (&)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) KEFIEBEABA (&)
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FHREEENKARTE

° the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received,;
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g

R FA%s B Bk 2 AT 1EH A
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HEER:

o any initial direct costs incurred by the o AREEBEANTRYVIIEE
Group; and BER &
o an estimate of costs to be incurred . AEEFKR EBRARE

by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any

E - WERBEEEMES
kK ERE EREEH
B 1R B A5k AF P AR RE IR A8
1 E AR EFT A

EREEERNABEM R
FrERRERBETE LA
ERBENERENTEFRLH

remeasurement of lease liabilities. B’ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease,
the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEUBRREHREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST ER (8)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHBEX (£8)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REFEBAAN (&)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HERE (&)
The lease payments include: MENREE :
. fixed payments (including in- BEMK (BEELEREE

substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase

option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there
is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

° the lease payments change due
to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review in
which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification
as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope
of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the
leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets
may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. SEUBBRGHRHEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EBGR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

iy [

162

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. WMEVBEBRRGEREERFTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBGR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
Foreign currencies I

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s
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foreign operations are translated into the EMERAEENINEREY (B
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. BIT) c MERA KRS H &%
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange FEMFHEXRETRE - K&
prevailing at the end of the reporting FE [ = P 5% HA R A K 8 R B A
period, and their income and expenses are ERIER » RULIBER T @ BIER A

translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans (such as state-managed
retirement benefit schemes, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and the State
Social Insurance Fund) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans,
the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest),
is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained profits and will not
be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of a plan amendment or
curtailment and a gain or loss on settlement
is recognised when settlement occurs.
When determining past service cost, or a
gain or loss on settlement, an entity shall
remeasure the net defined benefit liability
or asset using the current fair value of plan
assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement,
without considering the effect of asset ceiling
(i.e. the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Employee benefits (Continueq)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
However, if the Group remeasures the net
defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement,
the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure
such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability or asset during the
period resulting from contributions or benefit
payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

o service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);
° net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEUBRREHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EBGR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Discretionary contributions made by
employees or third parties reduce service
cost upon payment of these contributions to
the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans
specify that there will be contributions from
employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are
linked to service, as follows:

° If the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit arising
from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in
the remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

° If contributions are linked to services,
they reduce service costs. For
the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service
cost by attributing the contributions to
periods of service using the attribution
method required by HKAS 19
paragraph 70 for the gross benefits.
For the amount of contribution that is
independent of the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service
cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is
recognised at the earlier of when the Group
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Short term and other long term employee
benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short
term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires
or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries
and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group
in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from
service cost, interest and remeasurements
are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBBRHFEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBGR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
Taxation ’TRIE
Income tax expense represents the sum of FMF S JhtE AN B fE P A 1R

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in joint venture, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories mainly consist of textile products
and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories
is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

F_—F+-"A=t—BHLHFE

REMBBRREREERTE
B BUR (4)

3.2

ETBREBE (F)
BE (&)

EHATE TN E B
HEERHERRREER -
A K 8 e P B [R) — 5 55 1 R X
[Fl— BRI B BRI TS
BRR BELMBHEENA
&9 T LA EH o

EUHE&LLﬁIEEAT%EWEE
u/u H;Em/\ﬁ/\\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁj‘&m
IEEEERATHEANIEESE
M EERT - BNE REE
MIA TR 5 Bl 7 H 2 E W a5
BEEEERTER -

#E
FEEEOEHMESD LA
A T S 5 (8 M B 1

i - Tfﬁk$)§%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬂ?i@
AR E o AR IFEE G
FEEBRAAB G TRKA
RAEHSHEMPTRAA » b5t
FHHEMBORABRER
RAHENBEXNARANEE
SIELEERAELNIFEEK
K o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
15”). Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEAMBRRGHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST ER (8)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHKE (&)

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating

SWMIA (&)

ERMBARFTECTREEN
T BB E AN AR B B
M 2B KRB BN T

interest income and interest expense over E o BEMERTIEREEIRS
the relevant period. The effective interest rate MEEN SR BETETEH K

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.
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164

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEVBBRHFEREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEBGR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) SWMIA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model
on financial assets (including trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposits, bank balances) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables. Trade receivables that
are credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The ECL on the remaining trade
receivables are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets at amortised
cost, the Group measures the credit loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVBHRREHREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ST ER (8)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FE®FEE (&)
Financial instruments (Continued) eWMIA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ir@ﬂé}z/)ﬂﬁ (&)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (i) =E R ARIBIE N (&)

(Continued)

In particular, the following information ?T)DJ‘JXE A E R

is taken into account when assessing BRIBIEZNESZERE L/(

whether credit risk has increased —l—ﬁﬂ

significantly:

. an actual or expected significant . & BT H AN
deterioration in the financial (nE) KAFEE
instrument’s external (if 2 4% 1 B BR 2k 78 B
available) or internal credit wmEE
rating;

. significant deterioration in . HNER T IS (5 B A e
external market indicators of BEEEERL H
credit risk, e.g. a significant WMEEBEZRER
increase in the credit spread, AREEENER
the credit default swap prices E& KRN

for the debtor;
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

° existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

° an actual or expected
significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
and

° an actual or expected
significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a
debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a
low risk of default, (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group
considers bank balances and cash
and other receivables to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEUBRREHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETHEE (8)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 IFEEHBEX (28)
Financial instruments (Continued) £®IE (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) CRIEERE (&)
0] Significant increase in credit risk (i) FEERRAIEEIN ()
(Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the AEEFHEERAAER
effectiveness of the criteria used to FEREETAZE N
identify whether there has been a BENBRM  YREE
significant increase in credit risk BHR S 5] AR (R 2
and revises them as appropriate to HEBE S 1E TR IE 8 A A E R
ensure that the criteria are capable of FERRHEZEIZG -
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.
(i)  Definition of default (i) BHAZER
For internal credit risk management, AL EERREEM
the Group considers an event of S AREBRE - HAED
default occurs when information A K 3k B S BF 2R R & 15
developed internally or obtained from ZEMBREBHBATKN
external sources indicates that the Al gEmEEE A (B R
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, £8) 2HEXR(TEE
including the Group, in full (without AEBFKA 2 EMER
taking into account any collaterals m) ' BIBEAEBRNEM -
held by the Group).
Irrespective of the above, the Group i B E e - AR
considers that default has occurred ERA WemEEsH
when a financial asset is more than #B@BO0H - BIEEEE D
90 days past due unless the Group B2 BIERERFSIE
has reasonable and supportable EEERIEEHAE EEH
information to demonstrate that a BAZES A& - BlfE
more lagging default criterion is more el

appropriate.

»>»> 170 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEVBHRREHREERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SFBER (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHBXE (£8)
Financial instruments (Continued) £®IE (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) CREERE (&)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EEREREE
A financial asset is credit-impaired B —ITASZIEE SR
when one or more events of default BEMTARESREA
that have a detrimental impact on TR B2 BHEMHE -
the estimated future cash flows of TREELREERE -
that financial asset have occurred. TREEFEREBEFR
Evidence that a financial asset is BREATAEREMS
credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:
(@  significant financial difficulty of @ BITAHBABA
the issuer or the borrower; BERYBREE
(b)  a breach of contract, such as b) EBEREL  WMEX
a default or past due event; A S
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Credit-impaired financial assets
(Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable
that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a
function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade
receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such
as forward-looking macroeconomic
information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

174

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of
debtors; and

° External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure the
constituents of each group
continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a credit loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a liability and on equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term;

° on initial recognition it is a part of

a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

For financial liabilities that are designated
as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss; instead, they are transferred to retained
profits upon derecognition of the financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accrued
charges and bank and other borrowings, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HRENBBREREERIE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEEEK (&)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEIHE (&)

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Financial instruments (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or
financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to account for these
changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate
normally has no significant effect on the
carrying amount of the relevant financial
asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by interest
rate benchmark reform if and only if, both
these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a
direct consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis (ie
the basis immediately preceding the
change).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
management of the Group is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that has a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK

FERBEMFT IR

RERAKBH SRR (ERH RS
AR & AKREEEEAELR
EEEMRREZESNEREERK
BEREERNHE - G5t RREK -
T RAERE R AR T A B 5 MR
SERNEMEE - BEREE R EHE
SEMETERER -

At MEEBRR I RFELEEET
st o W& st At BT ER &b
SHEEETOEIRE - RIS s ER]
Rz B T ARERR - HWIERT R ER
R R RREAME - Bl @t ST RERTR
{EET R AR R ERFR A T LARERR ©

T X ARV HE HE & RE G T HE
REMEZRIR - MaxF AT THEE
AEIEEKREH N —EFBFEDN
BEREEFHECHBRNERER

179 LL<£



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

(]

180

e R M

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The management of the Group identifies trade
receivables that are credit-impaired and assesses
their ECL individually. The management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the
remaining trade receivables based on provision
matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss pattern, after considering internal
credit ratings of trade debtors and/or past due
status of respective trade receivables. The credit
loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows. The
assessment of credit risk of trade receivables
involves high degree of estimation uncertainty. VWhen
the actual future cash flows are less than expected
or more than expected, a material impairment loss
or a material reversal of impairment loss may arise
accordingly in future periods.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 20
and 38.

There is impairment loss under ECL model,
net of reversal of HK$11,967,000 (2020:
HK$6,282,000) charged to profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$821,163,000
(2020: HK$793,497,000) (net of allowance of
HK$24,636,000 (2020: HK$12,669,000)) as at 31
December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowance for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period
and identifies the slow-moving or obsolete
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use
in production or sales. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices, estimated
costs of completion and current market conditions.
In addition, the Group carries out regular inventory
review with reference to inventory ageing analysis,
management experience and judgement on the
expected future saleability of goods and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is
estimated to be below the cost.

There is allowance for slow-moving inventories of
HK$35,151,000 (2020: HK$24,288,000) charged to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2021. The carrying amount of inventories is
HK$1,456,797,000 (2020: HK$922,301,000) as at
31 December 2021.

FERBEMFTRER (4#)

FERE
AEBEERERNRS HEEREEH
FERERON - BRI TBESBIELE
Ei%ﬁm%%iﬁﬁr SR - '
BEEXTEREBHOBZMERE - AT
m%%ﬁ&“**%#ﬂﬁﬁai
SR ERFE - U AEEES
%TE%@%W EEELRNMYE
mﬁ%*XL%ﬁmﬂ%m%%%ﬁ
I Rl 51 AT B3R F E RHE R AR
@%ﬁh%x%ﬁ

HE—_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE -
&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁm%mﬁmrﬁ%nmpm
BT (Z T = T 4F 1 24,288,000/5 JT)
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ R_E-—F+_-_A=+—
H  GFERMEEA,456,797,000/ T
—E-mE 922,301,000/ 7T) °
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is derived from manufacturing
and trading of elastic fabric, lace and elastic
webbing in the PRC, Hong Kong, the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) and the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (“Sri
Lanka”) , net of discounts and sales related taxes.

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers

Revenue from manufacturing and trading of
elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing are
recognised at a point in time.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. WA

AEEBPAKXERTE - FE - B
HEERHANE ([HE]) RMTERFR
REterm#MNE ((HEWF]) &
ENEBEEEEESYEA  FHEE

) At
s

(i)

BRI 0 R SH EERARA

REEFEHNZBAHAD

KEHENREEEEZD@E
B BB E AR
B AR

BE-_F-——-Ft=-A=+-—
HIE&EE

Manufacturing Manufacturing
and trading of and trading of
elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing Total
HEREE
BHAYER HEREE
RE# BT et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Types of goods ERER TR TET TET
Sales of products EmHE
Elastic Fabric B R
- Sportswear and apparel  — :EB)ARE M ARE 2,438,897 - 2,438,897
- Lingerie — AR 1,183,780 - 1,183,780
3,622,677 - 3,622,677
Lace B4 89,784 - 89,784
Elastic webbing SR LS - 1,080,200 1,080,200
3,712,461 1,080,200 4,792,661
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE—

B e e

REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA &)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from (i) XREBEFEHZWA#LD (&)
contracts with customers (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 E-E_FEF+-RA=1+-—
HLEFE
Manufacturing ~ Manufacturing
and trading of  and trading of
elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing Total
HEREE
M E R HNEREER
REH 588 1 A S BEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Types of goods EmER FET FHET FET
Sales of products EmHE
Elastic Fabric B YIE R
- Sportswear and apparel  — EB)IRE K& RE 1,696,016 - 1,696,016
- Lingerie — ZERK 964,910 - 964,910
2,660,926 - 2,660,926
Lace o 84,323 - 84,323
Elastic webbing g8 |4 A 7S - 749,025 749,025
2,745,249 749,025 3,494,274
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

The Group manufactures and trades the
elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing to the
wholesale market.

For manufacturing and trading of elastic
fabric, lace and elastic webbing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has
been transferred, being the point in time
when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery).

Following the delivery, the customer has
full discretion over further processing, the
manner of distribution and sales price of the
goods and has the primary responsibility
when selling the goods and bears the risks
of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 90
days from the date of issuance of a monthly
statement for sale delivered in that month.

The Group applies the practical expedient
of HKFRS 15 which allows the Group not to
disclose the information of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customers,
as the original expected duration of the
performance obligation arising from the
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric,
lace and elastic webbing are all within one
year.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The financial information reported to executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”), for the purpose of
assessment of segment performance and resources
allocation focuses on types of goods delivered.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as
follows:

° Manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic fabric
and lace made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used in high-end knitted lingerie,
sportswear and apparel products.

° Manufacturing and trading of elastic webbing

This segment derives its revenue from
manufacturing and trading of elastic
webbing made from synthetic fibres that are
commonly used as shoulder straps, lingerie
trims and waistbands.

7 B E

AARBRTES (A EBLERE
E((EEEERKE])) 2RI
DHRBRERS NI B ER T

RENEmIOER -

REBRIZEE LM IS ERFESIRAL
BN E R AT REDEAT

e HENNBEEEUHGBMEHK

=

D BRAKBRENEES
P 4 A 0 B 588 M A3 D TED R K
B4 —RARS KRB
AKX - EBREFREERS °

e BUERBEBUEES

o RMBEAKRBEREREER
PREIHESUER BT - — R
ARB®  KHEAKEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHER (&)
Segment revenue and results D EBURA R ELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue N T RAEEREE R @GS HE
and results by operating and reportable segments: DEA R EE ST

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_FE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

>>>

186

Manufacturing
and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
HEREE
B HEREE
ER R E# et “st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TET TET
Segment revenue from REINAEEH
external customers DEBULA 3,712,461 1,080,200 4,792,661
Segment gross profit D EER 763,743 348,089 1,111,832
Segment profit D285 A 327,072 207,991 535,063
Unallocated other income ROBEAMUA 27,542
Unallocated other gains AOBEMUE K E1E
and losses 2,041
Unallocated corporate expenses RO RCRER (50,203)
Share of result of a joint venture ~ D{EA & EEE 3,906
Finance costs AR (61,732)
Profit before taxation BR 7 A A 456,617

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

6. ZOHER @)
ABBRAREE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLEE

Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
and lace  elastic webbing Total
B BEREE
R E BB fEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET
Segment revenue from REINREFH
external customers RPN 2,745,249 749,025 3,494,274
Segment gross profit DEEH 604,626 238,734 843,360
Segment profit D EEF 257,878 144,798 402,676
Unallocated other income AROBEMBA 18,576
Unallocated other gains KOBLEfb Uz K EiE
and losses (25,642)
Unallocated corporate expenses RO B ERFS (26,927)
Share of result of a joint venture DA S EE 1,983
Finance costs BEMK A (75,700
Profit before taxation BR % A A 289,966

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment profit represents
the results of each segment without allocation
of corporate items including mainly bank interest
income, change in fair value of a derivative financial
instrument, net foreign exchange gain (loss),
corporate expenses, share of result of a joint venture
and finance costs. Corporate expenses include
directors’ remuneration paid or payable by the Group
and certain administrative expenses for corporate
function. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK

RENARED BN THREARE

SETHRER - DBEEAIE R D&
MRS EFEARDELREAR - H
TEBRRRITMBWA  TESRT
ARFEZE  EKE (BR) F
B hEAX DEAERERER
BMEXAN - EERAXBRERAKEEN
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TITHRAS - W HRAEERERRE
[EHDECER R HERBNFTEIDEA

187 L LL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. OHER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets N T RAEEREE R @GS HE
and liabilities by operating and reportable segment: DTHEERBEDI
As at 31 December 2021 R=-B=-_—%+=-A=+—H
Manufacturing

and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace elastic webbing Total
HEREE
BHEEY HEREE
R R E#% B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DESBE 4,926,126 787,685 5,713,811
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB RS 6,054
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18,595
Interest in a joint venture REEahERERE 38,669
Deferred tax assets EREBIEEE 5,576
Other receivables, deposits and ~ E b fElk 3B -
prepayments Be RIEMFE 30,041
Tax recoverables Ak EIFiIA 4,783
Pledged bank deposits EIKIFRITER 121,607
Short term bank deposits RERITER 163,814
Bank balances and cash RITEBREA S 898,868
Total assets BERE 7,001,818
LIABILITIES =i
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,062,375 281,469 1,343,844
Other payables and accrued HoAh e~ FRIE K
charges FEEtER 46,581
Bank and other borrowings SRIT R E M {E K 2,160,404
Lease liabilities HEAE 20,208
Tax payables FERFIA 46,745
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEEE 9,698
Derivative financial instrument THESRTA 1,092
Total liabilities BEQE 3,628,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

6. THEH (&)
DHMEERER (&)

R-B-BF+-A=+—H

Manufacturing
and trading of
elastic fabric

Manufacturing
and trading of

and lace  elastic webbing Total
HEREE
B HEREE
EHREH s L Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET FHBT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 4,372,162 678,550 5,050,712
Property, plant and equipment e ER ) 2,127
Right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁé BE 13,982
Interest in a joint venture REE L ERNER 34,751
Deferred tax assets ERFBEE 5,387
Other receivables, deposits and ~ E.fh JEUL IR
prepayments Be RIERFIE 29,978
Tax recoverables AR eI IR 10,773
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 77,944
Short term bank deposits RERIRITER 8,338
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LR S 1,092,855
Total assets BEMAE 6,326,847
LIABILITIES =L
Segment liabilities DEBEE 756,218 203,552 959,770
Other payables and accrued HoAh &R RIE K
charges Bzt EH 25,713
Bank and other borrowings RITREMIE 2,286,521
Lease liabilities HE&E 14,151
Tax payables AR 15,351
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIBAE 5,758
Derivative financial instrument MEEBMITA 1,402
Total liabilities BfEE5E 3,308,666
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190

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating and
reportable segments, other than certain
property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets for corporate use, interest
in a joint venture, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverables, pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash
and certain corporate assets.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments, other than bank
and other borrowings, lease liabilities for
corporate use, tax payables, deferred tax
liabilities, derivative financial instrument and
certain corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

4= A

iy [

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEHER (&)
Other segment information H#oIpaEr
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—E-—®+=-B=+—HIEE
Manufacturing
and trading of ~ Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
and lace elastic webbing  Unallocated Total
HEREE
EEY HEREE
ARREH BEHAT RAE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T T TEn
Amounts included in the measure of SEDTEMZ DS
segment profit or segment assets: BERTARNSE -
Additions of property, plant and RENE - BERXE
equipment 191,828 33,151 5,650 230,629
Additions of right-of-use assets NERFESE 93,229 4,324 8,924 106,477
Depreciation of property; 0% BERENE
plant and equipment 267,666 64,583 1,723 333,972
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 19,741 6,637 4,311 30,689
Impairment losses under ECL model, BOEEEEEIET
net of reversal WEEBE (kD) 11,204 763 - 11,967
Allowance for slow-moving inventories R ERE 33,940 1,211 = 35,151
BRBBIERAER AR /| — T —FFR 191
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6.

192

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEHER (&)
Other segment information (Continued) B#oIpEaR (£)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—E-—ZEF+=-B=+—HIEE
Manufacturing
and trading of Manufacturing
elastic fabric and trading of
andlace elastic webbing Unallocated Total
HEREE
EIEED BEREE
EHREHA BN RAR Bzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THr T THT
Amounts included in the measure of HEN RS E
segment profit or segment assets: BERTARNEE -
Addttions of property, plant and RENE - BERXE
equipment 253,320 34,697 2,876 290,893
Additions of right-of-use assets RERAEEE 10,240 18,300 15,131 43,671
Depreciation of property; 0% BERXETE
plant and equipment 243,484 64,943 301 308,728
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 15,125 5,842 2,321 23,288
Impairment losses under ECL model, BHEEEEEIET
net of reversal WEBE (MNkEm) 4,114 2,168 - 6,282
Allowance for slow-moving inventories G ERE 22,284 2,004 - 24,288

Other than the segment information disclosed
above, there was no other information reviewed by

the CODM for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Vietnam, Sri Lanka and the
United States of America. The Group’s revenue
from external customers based on the location of
the customers are detailed below:

DEHER (#)

HEEH
AEBEXRBURTEAM - FE -
Mo BB RMEE - REERA I

AEFPHWRATIRERFATEDES
o FIBT

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t+—ALFE

2021 2020

—E=--F —ZETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHT

Hong Kong BB 989,605 774,633
Mainland China R A 961,213 754,424
Sri Lanka HEE-R 909,576 542,144
Vietnam ez 423,498 332,264
South Korea FARE 328,232 177,954
Taiwan =) 322,406 246,466
Indonesia ENfE 157,547 84,267
Macau P 136,328 86,184
Bangladesh A 113,473 69,670
Others Eih 450,783 426,268
4,792,661 3,494,274

Non-current assets (excluding financial assets and
deferred tax assets) by geographical location of
assets are detailed below:

REEAMGEHRIESMIETRBEE
(TEEERMEEMEEHRBEEE) &
EROENE

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=1+—8
2021 2020
—B-—-F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Mainland China B A 1,822,655 1,759,666
Vietnam B 883,533 925,058
Sri Lanka HER 606,209 592,042
Hong Kong BB 35,208 23,088
3,347,605 3,299,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

DEHER (&)
FRETEEFHNEHR

REBEE-_ZT-_—FR-_ZF_FTF+=
B=+—BILFE  EASEEAEK
AB10%HEFWALT -

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1T—-HLHFE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue from manufacturing and RERERE BB
trading of elastic fabric and lace RATE R KB RV UA
— customer A —XFH 441,546 396,363
— customer B =V 616,527 400,151
Revenue from manufacturing and RERENEEEN
trading of elastic webbing EEESEU A
— customer A —EPH 112,103 79,779
— customer B =V 54,479 25,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 7. HRA
2021 2020
—E=--F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Government grants (Note) BTwBh S (PfzE) 12,250 13,036
Compensation income from customers RERFREERA 1,284 11,584
Bank interest income RITHEHA 21,850 8,238
Net proceeds from sales of scrap materials 6 BERI PT1S B H 48 4,404 5,547
Gain from bargain purchase from IR —TH SRR B
acquisition of a business (Note 33) B e (M7E33) 3,900 =
Others Hith 7,006 5,401
50,694 43,806
Note: ffaE -
The amount includes HK$9,367,000 (2020: HK$11,247,000) fEcHEBEEEBEE_ZE_—F+-_A=

unconditional government grants received during the year
ended 31 December 2021. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group also received government grants
of HK$1,473,000 (2020: HK$13,370,000) in relation to
purchase of equipment.

Government grants in relation to purchase of equipment
received in current and prior years of similar nature are
deferred and are released to other income over the useful
lives of the related equipment. Amounts of HK$2,883,000
(2020: HK$1,789,000) were recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2021. As at 31 December
2021, amounts of HK$15,390,000 (2020: HK$16,340,000)
remained to be released and are included in deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

BRERZERERAR/ —F——

= Hiﬁrmeuﬁzﬁﬂﬂiﬂuﬁﬁﬁj@
9,367,000/ 7C (ZZE=Z4F : 11,247,000/

) c REBEZE—_E-_—F+_A=+—HI1
FE - AEEIHE B K& W FT B &
1,473,000/ 7L (ZZ == : 13,370,000/
JL) °

RAFERBEFERIINERRERE
ERBUMENRA/BEHBEL - RE
BRENATERFHEREEBEA - &
E-F-_—FT-A=ZT-ALFE B

MIBRER S 582,883,000 L (ZE =&
F 11,789,000 7L) c R=_E=_—F+—A
=+—H8 15,390,000 L (ZTE=_FF :

16,340,000/ 7T) 1B FEBR © WHRERE R
TR R AT ABIEWA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

196

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HtthmkEiE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAT
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, HEDNE  MEK (135) 72
plant and equipment £t (U51E) e
Change in fair value of derivative THES BT BN (EEF
financial instrument (Note 29) (Ff5%29) 310 1
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SNEUES (E518) /F5E 1,731 (26,327)
Others Hi - 537
1,906 (25,717)
FINANCE COSTS 9. ®EMRK
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Interests on: Y EIEHFE
Bank borrowings RITER 58,936 74,313
Other borrowing HABIERR 1,002 759
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,283 5,131
66,221 80,203
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost of B BEREERAZ
qualifying assets B b eFE (4,489) (4,503)
61,732 75,700

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended
31 December 2021 arose on the general borrowing
pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation
rate of 2.05% (2020: 2.20%) per annum to
expenditure on qualifying assets.
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e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the directors
and chief executive officer (‘CEO”) of the Company

was as follows:

10. EERFETHAEME

SEDI
(r47

RN ARAES RITHRAR

BAR]) nBEsmT

Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors
UEs BUFHAES
Mr. Zhang
Hatao ~ MrWu Ms.Zheng MrChan  MrLu Mr.Cheung MrDing  MrSai  MrKuo
Mr. Lu (CEQ) ~ Shaolun  Tingting  Yiu Sing Libin ~ YatMing Baoshan ~ ChunYu Dah Chih Total
Eit (THER) ROMRE BEErt REERT RUWAE R-Bit THLRE REFRE FAMRE a5t
HK$000  HKB000  HK$O00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$O000
Thr  Tén TEr Thr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEn
Forthe yearended EHZE=F=—%
31 December +ZA=1-H
2021 LLEE
Fee we - - - - - - 300 200 83 148 &)l
Salaries and TRy
allowances 3623 4916 3,136 2,351 2,281 1493 - - - - 17800
Discretionary REFAET
performance
bonus* 6,000 - 3,500 4,000 3,000 2,000 - - - - 18500
Contrbutonsto ~ RUAGER
retfement benefs &l
schemes 60 2 60 18 18 9 - - - - 212
9,683 4983 6,696 6,369 5,299 3,522 300 200 8 ) A4
Fortheyearended EHZ-2-%%
31 December +Zh=1-H
2020 LEE

Fee g = = = - NAMNER NADER 300 200 200 NATER 700

Saaries and EoREH

alowances 2,949 3,561 2,550 1908 NARER NAZTER = = - NARER 10983

Discretionary BRI

performance
bonus* 5,000 - 3,000 3500 NAMNER NASER - = - NATER 11500
Contrbutionsto ~ EVETEEI
refiement henefts
Schemes 0 % )] 18 NATEE NATER - - - NATEE 141
7,999 3,084 5,600 5421 NATER NATER 300 200 0 NATER 23

# Executive directors of the Company are entitled # RARITESHREWEBIBRIFIE
to discretionary performance bonus which are 41 HITHAAFIEFEMEE 2 RKR
determined by the remuneration committee of the TR EERANEBNERIRET -
Company with reference to market conditions and
financial performance of the Group.

* Mr. Chan Yiu Sing and Mr. Lu Libin were appointed * BREELEREUWEEN T ——
as the executive directors of the Company on 10 FE-_A+HEZEARRTHNITE
February 2021. Mr. Kuo Dah Chih was appointed FEooFABEENR S -_—FRA=
as the independent non-executive director of the +NBEZEEBIIEHTES -

Company on 28 May 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

10.

198

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
remuneration shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors or chief executive of the Company has
waived any remuneration during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 11.

During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the five individuals with the highest
remuneration in the Group include five (2020: four)
directors of the Company. The remuneration of the
remaining is individual, which was individually within
the range of HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 in
2020, was as follows:

& & % N
RBlE=—2—" T -7
A=+—HIEEE FAEEREEmS
FMALEEARARAR (ZZE=F
F:NHZ)EFT - BITALTRZZZEZ
T 1 BE R 1 3,000,001 BT E
3,500,000 7T + 3w -

2020

—E-TF

HK$’000

FET

Salaries and allowances 4 KoERL 1,882

Discretionary performance bonus? )15 RIBIEAT 1,250
Contributions to retirement RKEFFTEI TR

benefits schemes 18

3,150

i The discretionary performance bonus is determined
by the board of directors of the Company with
reference to market conditions and financial
performance of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individual as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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REBEE_ST-_—FR-_FT_FTF+=
A=+—HLEHFE AEEHMERTR
AEET AT SEREM - 1EA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

12.

>>> 200

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

12. BRBLADER

2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at  READ&A B FIK% (T A)
after charging (crediting): TF|&IE :
Auditors’ remuneration TZERAD BN < 2,510 2,437
Staff costs BTRA
Directors’ remuneration EFEMe 37,243 23,304
Other staff costs BB TR
— salaries and other benefits - e NEMER 820,997 605,392
— contributions to retirement — BRIKEREHEI TR
benefits schemes 60,464 32,347
918,704 661,043
Depreciation of property, Y - B MEREITE
plant and equipment 333,972 308,728
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 30,689 23,288
Depreciation capitalised in inventories REERNENMEFTE (288,210) (269,337)
76,451 62,679
Cost of inventories recognised R AR FEKA
as an expense (Note) EES) 3,680,829 2,650,914
Note: The amount includes allowance for slow-moving Mz Z2exmeEaREREE2E_ZT - —F 1+
inventories of HK$35,151,000 (2020: 24,288,000) for — A=+ Bl EEEEES
the year ended 31 December 2021. B B35 B 7T (2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=)
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IR ESE Y

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FIfB%iFAx
2021 2020
- ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax: BIHAFRIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABFEN 34,724 6,814
The PRC Enterprise Income PR FERTEE
Tax (“EIT”) ([EEFREH]) 13,965 24,551
Withholding tax on dividends from MEBARIREZ
subsidiaries TEHFE 943 8,147
Income tax in other jurisdictions Eh R AR PSR 193 60
Under provision in prior years: BEFEBETR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABNEH 1,783 3,021
The PRC EIT PR ERAET 784 533
52,392 43,126
Deferred taxation (Note 30) EERIIA (FI7E30) 2,879 (2,353)
55,271 40,773

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of the

Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on
the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

REFBNEHNMESHRAS - &
EREEEBNE2A BB L& MK
1%8.26% MR HH - MiBE2H &E
TCHY ) A 4R 16.5% ) B R T
HEZMEHMAFEBNEEERS
2 5 ) 7% ek 4B 1216.5% 2 B — Bt R
B Hlt AEREEERE2AER

TCH) i ET R TR

HEEBMNER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

13.

»>> 202

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies
is 25% for both years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, unless there is any applicable preferential
tax treatment.

The Company’s subsidiaries, Dongguan Best Pacific
Textile Company Limited (“Dongguan BPT”) and
Dongguan New Horizon Elastic Fabric Company
Limited (“Dongguan NHE”), had obtained the
qualification as high and new technology enterprises
since 2010 and 2016, respectively, which were
renewed for an additional three years from the year
ended 31 December 2019. Hence, Dongguan
BPT and Dongguan NHE had been subject to the
preferential tax treatment and the applicable tax rate
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
was 15%.

Withholding tax on dividends was calculated at 5%
of the estimated dividends to be received from the
subsidiaries in the PRC during the year.

13.

FREMRAX (&)

BIEFBRCEMERE ([REMBH
D REFEFASFRENEHEAL - Bk
IEEMEMEREEREFSE &
BEARRNEE_E-_—FR_F
—EF+_A=+—HItMEFEHN
FHE B25% °

ARARKKB AR REBANHEER
e ([REER]) REEHEE S
MBERAR ([REBE] sRlE=Z
—EFR T -AFRESS RN
TEERE  ERBEaEE=—ZF—N
F+_A=+—HLEFEBINER=
FoREN REBRALEZHEEE
BEMEGFE REBEE-_ZE=-_—FK
—ECEFF+_HA=T—HIFEXN
HEABER15% °

R TR 53R F A K B o BB
WBR 2 b5t BB BI5%ETH -

RE=)
yNC]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant Vietnam Enterprises Income
Tax rules and regulations, the applicable tax rate
for the subsidiary operating in Vietnam is 20%. The
subsidiary in Vietnam is eligible for a tax holiday for
two financial years since the first financial year of
taxable profits and a tax concession at a tax rate
of 10% for the following four financial years. With
the new incentive in place during the year ended
31 December 2018 and by fulfiling certain stated
requirements as set by the Ministry of Industry and
Trade, the subsidiary in Vietnam had been eligible for
a tax holiday for four financial years since 2018, a tax
concession at a tax rate of 5% for the following nine
financial years and a tax concession at a tax rate of
10% for the next following two financial years.

Pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act,
No. 10 of 2021 in Sri Lanka, the applicable tax rate
for the subsidiaries operating in Sri Lanka is 24%
for both years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
By fulfiling certain export requirements as set by the
Board of Investment of Sri Lanka, the subsidiaries of
the Group in Sri Lanka had enjoyed a preferential tax
rate of 14% for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020. In addition, one of these subsidiaries is
currently eligible for a tax holiday till the year ending
31 December 2024.

Taxation arising in any other jurisdiction is calculated
at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

13.
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B E -

BEFEBRBEARY (KER]) &

—E-—FF10%) c RITEBRRE
B MBARREBE-_ZE-_—F K=
E_EF+ A+ —HIEMEAFE
REAMEE24% - AEBNETEHE
RHNBAREZERRCHEFHREE
BHlEmETEHOERMREBEE-Z
T FERFTFTFF+_A=1+—H
IFFEZE14%NEBEIFHE o 1t -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FIEBiBxX (&)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year can be AREEREBRBEY (%) ajEEg518
reconciled to the profit before taxation per the 5 N EH b A T UK 38 3R B9 BR B A ) S
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BE - ST

comprehensive income as follows:

Hong Kong The PRC Others Total
g4 HE At Ch
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f -%-%F Z§--F -E-FF CBEc--f —%-%F CZE--F -E-%

HK$000  HKSO000  HK$'000  HKSO000  HK$'000  HKSO000  HK$'000  HKS00
TRn TR TRn TR TEx  TAT TR TER

Profit before taxation BiRALR T 225,453 66,805 137,560 168,308 93,604 54,803 456,617 289,966
Taxation at the domestic REIRETEHE

income tax rate STERTE 37,200 11,031 34,390 42,017 19,632 13,013 91,222 66,121
Tax effect of expenses not A HIBFERA

Oedluctible for tax purpose fikze 1,872 2409 5,616 3,145 6,620 2,168 14,108 1,722
Tax effect of income not BERHMAL

tavable for tax purpose Bhye B205) (1734 - - B 60 66%) (1794
Taxefectof share of result ~~ HEASREEE

of a joint venture ity 7 (645) (327) - - - - (645) (327)
Tax effect of estimated tax AR

losses not recognised FRNTE2 3 3873 3 = 6,050 5,140 6,452 9,013
Utlisation of tax losses BRI RRERY

previously not recognised HEBE ¢ - (131) - (11,167) - (11,307) -
Tax effect on deferred tax WEBAREXDE

lablties resuting from B

withholaing tax on undistiouted ~ SERERERE

profits of subsidiaries mbife 2 - - 1,008 (5,640) 273 465 2,181 (5,175)
Withholding tax on didends ~ HBATIREZ

from subsiciaries B - - 043 8,147 - - 943 8,147
Under provison nprioryears BAEEBETR 178 3021 784 53 - T Y.
Effect of tax concession TiBEEns2 (165) (165)  (28814) (24959 (14,635 (21364  (43614) (46489
Income tax expense (credlt)  AEEFER

for the year Ax (£2) 36,862 18,108 15,067 23,303 3,342 (63%) 55271 40,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. KRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of FRFER D IKAIAA )
the Company recognised as TR R AR B, ¢
distribution during the year:
2021 Interim dividend — HK7.5 cents —ZE = —FHHIRE —
(2020: nil) per share BR%7 .58
(ZZ=TF : |) 77,985 -
2020 Final dividend — HK7.4 cents “ECTFRHRE —
(2020: 2019 Final dividend 748 (ZF=ZF :
HK5.8 cents) per share —E-NFEREABREER
5.87811) 76,946 60,309
154,931 60,309

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 of HK11.8 cents per ordinary share
(approximately HK$122.7 million in aggregate) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company

=2
2523

and is subject to approval by the shareholders in

the forthcoming general meeting.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

15. BREF

RBEHABERE  NARESERE
2T —F+-_A=+—HL
FEZAREREAEREBER11.88
b (BEHM122.7EEBT) » AR
EERE RS FEE K

RHLAE o

AARAEAEEERERREEER
FITYIR A T BB -

2021 2020
B T -TF
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purposes of the basic ~ BLEAREARZEF| T = HY
earnings per share (profit for A (RREHEA AEG
the year attributable to owners of FE&uH) (FBT)
the Company) (HK$’000) 401,794 257,769
Number of shares ROEE
Number of ordinary MEREARRFIM S A E B
shares for the purpose of basic 2B

earnings per share

1,039,808,000

1,039,808,000

No diluted earnings per share for both years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 were presented as

RBE-_T- SR T -_TF+—
A=+—HALMESEE XE25|E

there was no potential ordinary shares in issue for REERF - ARARESFEIEET

both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y%  BENRRE

Computer
and office Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  Machinery in progress Total
ElK
BF BWOERE HE WE  HEERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TR TR TET
COST AR
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+=-RA=1—H 1,122,374 106,053 72,214 2,533,332 307,647 4,141,620
Exchange adjustments [ 5 47,843 3,541 3,865 113,131 9,925 178,305
Additions NE 14,064 13,121 2,051 160,665 100,992 290,893
Transfer upon completion SEAK I EE 51,564 882 - 267,215 (319,661) -
Disposals e = (1,083) (305) (4,671) = (6,029)
At 31 December 2020 3
+-A=+—H 1,235,845 122,544 177,825 3,069,672 98,903 4,604,789
Exchange adjustments & 5 % 23,146 1,565 1,864 52,185 3,430 82,190
Additions NE 8,204 14,286 639 67,887 139,613 230,629
Acquisition of business (Note 33) IBE %7 (Fiz33) - 3471 - 20,248 - 23,719
Transfer upon completion SR 184,559 - - - (184,559) -
Disposals HE - (3,950) (1,854) (17,299) - (23,103)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=t—H 1,451,754 137,916 78,474 3,192,693 57,387 4,918,224
ACCUMULATED RithE
DEPRECIATION
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=+—H 191,706 40,748 39,764 975,500 - 1,247,718
Exchange adjustments [ 5 AR 12,902 2,207 2,284 62,179 - 79,572
Provided for the year FERE 53,358 17,918 5,048 232,404 - 308,728
Eliminated on disposals HER Y = (1,023) (199) (309) - (1,531)
At 31 December 2020 i
+-A=+—H 257,966 59,850 46,897 1,269,774 - 1,634,487
Exchange adjustments [ i 6,772 1,090 1,186 31,076 - 40,124
Provided for the year FERE 66,954 19,236 6,290 241,492 - 333,972
Eliminated on disposals HE R S - (3,531) (1,589) (10,594) - (15,714)
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-f
+=A=1+-H 331,692 76,645 52,784 1,531,748 - 1,992,869
CARRYING AMOUNTS RHE
At 31 December 2020 W_E-TF
+-A=+—H 977,879 62,694 30,928 1,799,898 98,903 2,970,302
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-f
+=A=+-H 1,120,062 61,271 25690 1,660,945 57,387 2,925,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &ZE T - —F+—

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated
on its cost less their residual values on a straight-
line basis at the following useful life or rates per
annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 20 to 25 years
Computer and office  20%-50%

A=+—BItFE

16. % - BMERR®E (&)

LA E - BE k&

mBEE (BT

FRRRON) To 1R E B AR &R (B 3R A B 4R
ERA TR A FHRFRITE -

e
i

i)
N’M E‘ké
>

A EAsk 20254
(AR & A%)
20%-50%

equipment NE ]
Motor vehicles 10%-20% B8 10%-20%
Machinery 6%-20% 2R 6%-20%
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FAEEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
FHE b HEWE ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-HA=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 185,468 164,908 350,376
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZF+_-_A=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 185,598 86,511 272,109
For the year ended BE—Z2-_—%t+=A
31 December 2021 =+—HIEEE
Depreciation charge Tﬁg;%?ﬁﬁ 6,471 24,218 30,689
For the year ended HE-Z-_ZTF+—_HA
31 December 2020 :+ EIJJ:EV
Depreciation charge WEEH 6,093 17,195 23,288
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Expense relating to short term leases RS HITRE A MR 7,207 8,929
Total cash outflow for leases HERES R HEEE 25,093 36,331
Additions to right-of-use assets INEEREEE 106,477 43,671
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

17.

»>> 208

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leased various offices
premises, staff quarters, warehouses and leasehold
land for its operations. The lease terms of leasehold
land used for factories ranged from 40 to 99 years.
A lease for a piece of land used for warehouse was
negotiated for a term of 40 years. The lease terms
of factory premises were negotiated for terms of 3
years. Lease for office premises, warehouse and
staff quarters were entered into for fixed term of 2
to 6 years (2020: 2 to 5 years). Lease terms were
negotiated on an individual basis and contained
a wide range of different terms and condition.
In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition to the leases mentioned above, the
Group regularly entered into short term leases for
staff quarters, warehouses, office premises, motor
vehicles and machinery and equipment. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short
term leases is similar to the portfolio of short term
leases to which the short term leases expense
disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. REELENER
Details of the Group’s interest in a joint venture are AEBREELENERFBROT ¢
as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FBT
Cost of interest in a joint venture REETERNER 2 KA
Unlisted JEETH 15,434 15,434
Share of post-acquisition profits and 9 {5 U 18 i 1) K H Ath
other comprehensive income, 2 HEEE
net of dividends received (F&MNBR B W ER &) 23,235 19,317
38,669 34,751
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the RREHRGERE  AEBEEEDE
reporting period are as follows: ZEEBWE
Proportion of
Place of Principal ownership
Form of incorporation/ place of class of Proportion of interest Voting rights Principal
Name of entity entity registration  operation  sharesheld  held by the Group (Note) held by the Group (Note)  activity
e/ FeROER  AREEECRELA  AREEEIRER
ERER ERER  aMME ITEERY  FERELH (M) (&) IEEH

2021 2020 2021 2020
Z§C-F CTCTE OCEC-FE CRCERE

Charming Elastic Fabric  Limited Liabilty HongKong ~ Hong Kong ~ Ordlinary 51% 51% 60% 60%  Trading of elastic
Company Limited Company &3 B Lk webbing and
(‘Charming Elastic’) ~ BRAF investment

FEBRTAM holding
ERAR EERIARR
([EBERT ) RERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE
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18.

>»>> 210

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Note:

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

On 4 November 2015, the Group acquired 40% equity
interest in Charming Elastic from an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$10,000,000.
Charming Elastic also owns 100% equity interest
in Jiangxi Charming Elastic Mfg. Co. Ltd, which is
engaged in manufacturing of elastic webbing in the
PRC.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement entered into
among a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
the other shareholder of Charming Elastic who by
then held 60% equity interest in Charming Elastic and
Charming Elastic on the same date (the “Charming
Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement”), the shareholder
who holds more than 50% equity interest in Charming
Elastic (the “Majority Shareholder”) and the Group
were entitled to appoint or remove three and two
directors out of the five directors at the board of
directors of Charming Elastic respectively.

The shareholders of Charming Elastic (the Majority
Shareholder and the Group) had also contractually
agreed sharing control over Charming Elastic, as
certain decisions about the relevant activities, including
but not limited to business, financial and operational
matters of Charming Elastic, require unanimous
consents from at least two directors appointed by the
Majority Shareholder and one director appointed by
the Group. Accordingly, the Group has joint control
over Charming Elastic and the investment in equity
interest in Charming Elastic is accounted for as an
interest in a joint venture.

The Charming Elastic Shareholders’ Agreement also
involves terms that granted rights to the Group to
purchase additional equity interest in Charming Elastic
and rights to the other shareholder of Charming Elastic
to exercise to sell equity interest of Charming Elastic
to the Group, accordingly, the Group recognised
derivative financial assets and liabilities since the date
of acquisition of Charming Elastic at the consolidated
statement of financial position (details as set out in
Note 29).

18.

REELXENESR (&)

i

RZZE—AF+—HAMA - KAEEMN
3 < X f810,000,0007% 7t B B 7
= H B A BRRE T R40%% H
FBRIB A I A Jiangxi Charming
Elastic Mfg. Co. Ltd (ERFREKEE
BUEE AT ) 100% M ARAE o

BREBEARRZZEWBAR - BBIR
RENS —UBRER (KERFHERE
BARO0%HI A1) A RAEBIRT
KRBTSR G ([FERR
TRERBE])  HEBEERRTK
0% A LR (EBERR]) &
REBD R ARRERERLGBBIZIR
HEERAVERTTN UL MUE
=

FEBBRENRE (EERERAE
) REFHNRERAZABRRTH
ZHIE - BABEREE (BREENR
RBBRRENER MIEHLESR
H) WETREAKRAEIZRRERE
NELRUESERHAEEZEN—
NEE—HEE - Bt XEEHF
BRI A LA bl RN A ER
RERENREARIAREGEDRE
HIMEDS ©

FBBARHERRGHE TS R T AL
BN EEESESRRTRERETH
BIRIRTE S — (IR RENIA M AL E
HEBBBRRT NG - Bt
AEBE B KBEAERRS B HERR
BHMBIRARERTLESREENE
& (FEBENHE29)
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. NEE

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of Charming
Elastic, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

EENER (£)

FEBRTCVBENME (Bt
ARRZEMEZEMEAR) BEE
B mRA FREESREENT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H
Current assets MENEE 55,336 39,554
Non-current assets EMBEE 15,506 17,132
Current liabilities mEIEE (15,930) (7,734)
Equity M (54,912) (48,952)
For the year ended 31 December &HZE+-A=+—HILEE
Revenue WA 80,671 49,639
Profit for the year F 5 F 7,659 3,889
Other comprehensive income HE 2wl 1,801 2,666
Total comprehensive income EH LR 9,460 6,555
Dividend received from the joint FABRESDEIRE
venture during the year 906 —
Reconciliation of the above summarised _t it 81 75 & £HE B B AR A
financial information to the carrying MG mAPHERNARER
amount of the Group’s interest in the A& ERER 2 BREE
joint venture recognised in the HEREIDT -
consolidated financial statements:
Net assets of Charming Elastic FPEREBRTECEESE 54,912 48,952
Group’s effective interest REEZEREERZR 51% 51%
Group’s share of Charming Elastic’s REBELFABREERS 2
net assets BEFE 28,005 24,965
Other adjustment H bRz 878 -
Goodwill FEES 9,786 9,786
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBFLABERIBEER
interest in Charming Elastic BRTHEE 38,669 34,751

BRERZERERAR/ —F——
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19.

20.

D> 212

INVENTORIES 19. FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFETT
Raw materials VR 542,365 317,102
Work in progress yamk U 570,960 344,730
Finished goods BURK i 343,472 260,469
1,456,797 922,301

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

BEZRURERERRE

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —EFTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Trade receivables =G ] 845,799 806,166

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (24,636) (12,669)
Total trade receivables B 5 eI EIE 821,163 793,497
Bills receivables e 28,267 14,401

Total trade and bills receivables B 5 MW EIE K

A ES Sk 849,430 807,898

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$720,048,000.

Trade receivables from third parties mainly represent
receivables from customers in relation to the sales
of elastic fabric, lace and elastic webbing. The
credit period granted to the customers ranges
from 30 to 90 days from the date of issuance of a
monthly statement with respect to sales delivered in
the particular month.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. ESFRWHREREWERE (&)
(Continued)
The following ageing analysis of trade receivables, UTABREZEREEALREE 5 EIN
net of credit loss allowance, is presented based EHBREEEREREEEZ &ABERYH
on the date of issuance of monthly statements at HZ2 5| BRE D AT MR & & B4
the end of each reporting period and the ageing BEWEEiRE B2 5| NERHE S
analysis of bills receivables is presented based on M o
the date of issuance of the bills at the end of each
reporting period.
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E2-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT TAT
Trade receivables g ZEWRIE
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 765,207 740,517
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 49,914 42,756
Over 180 days 835180 H 6,042 10,224
821,163 793,497
Bills receivables ERRE
0 - 90 days 0-90H 26,002 14,401
91 — 180 days 91-180 H 1,746 -
Over 180 days HBi@180 H 519 -
849,430 807,898

Trade receivables balances with related parties
included in the Group’s trade receivables balance

are listed below:

EJr)\ﬁ’%lf’f%fﬂﬁﬂéi & £ ) B2 R

B E SR GTRARRESI T ¢

2021 2020
—EB-—F —Z-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT

Related parties 2}yl
Related companies* kNG 54,401 28,599
Other related companies* H 7 é"ﬁ@ 112,399 84,529
166,800 113,128

Related companies controlled by close family

members of certain directors of the Company (these
directors are key management personnel of the

Company).

W The related companies are fellow subsidiaries of the
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries who
have significant influence over certain subsidiaries of

the Group.

* mARRETEEOTHRFKKKSE
%‘JE’JF%‘% A (ZEFEBEER/RAR

EEAR) °

" ZEHB AR /B AEEETHER

Tﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁ%ZBﬁ% CIEI=230 3 e

RHBRKBA

BRERZERERAR/ —F——
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20.

>»>D> 214

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The above trade receivables balances with related
parties are unsecured, interest-free and with a
credit term of 30 to 90 days from the date of
issuance of a monthly statement for sales delivered
in that month. The following is an ageing analysis
of trade receivables balances with related parties
presented based on the date of issuance of
monthly statements at the end of each reporting
period.

20.

BEZRUREREVREE (@)

LA FEEETNESRKRIBLER R
mER 28 EEHARBELAHE
Bn#) A #5823 H B 5T308 =90
B AT AHEBEHNE S EKKIE
EHRNSREHRMSERBIZALEER
W HHEZ27AERER DT ©

2021 2020

—EB-—F —TTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

0 — 90 days 0—90H 155,974 105,273
91 — 180 days 91 —180H 10,826 7,806
Over 180 days HBiE180H - 49
166,800 113,128

All bills received are held by the Group for future
settlement of trade receivables and are with a
maturity period of less than one year. The Group
continues to recognise their full carrying amounts at
the end of the reporting period.

BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AEBRRREHE 5 WA
BB REENEHBRH DN
—F ARERBEHHERTRHE
EREEEREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. EFEWFEREREE #£)
(Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated EEASEER N EENE ST
in currencies which are not the functional currencies ENAEEE ZREGIEEYIWOT ¢

of the relevant group entities are set out below:

United
States Vietham
Dollar Dong Renminbi
(“US$”) (“VND”) (“RMB”)
E0 HMrEE AR

TEx) (HEED (AR®)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FET FBT
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-F+=A=+—8 260,332 12,640 1,156
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+—F=+—H 264,891 6,448 2,360
As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H' &K
trade receivables balance are debtors with SEE S EWRNKIEA %ﬁ?’j ERE 8
aggregate carrying amount of HK$58,715,000 {658,715,0008 L (= & = T & :
(2020: HK$72,163,000) which are past due as at 72,163,000 7T) WER R ZE X
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, BHRHmEHBE B - @848
HK$2,465,000 (2020: HK$18,042,000) has been /- 2,465,00058 JT (_ TETF:
past due 90 days or more and is not considered 18,042,000/ Jjt) ) R E E @& HH9O
as in default as these balances are either from Ak B #o0H B R R IEZE 4 -
debtors with long term business relationship or are ZEEBRKEARBEBBERY Tf
individually insignificant. Other than bills receivables BAXKEEBEBIL FEKN - RERE
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$28,267,000 42 {828,267,0008 L (ZE T F :
(2020: HK$14,401,000), the Group does not hold 14,401,000/ 7T) B2 WREESHD - K
any collateral over these balances. SEBIEZEESRTAEAERY -
Details of impairment assessment of trade BB ZREWHIEREREERBET
receivables and bill receivables are set out in Note HHFFIBE A HIFESS ©

38.
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21. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21. HEWRIE RS REMSTR
AND PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT
Deposit paid EffiEE 31,884 8,087
Deposit paid for acquisition of property UWEEME - BB M ERER)
plant and equipment EftEe 30,811 20,935
Prepayments TERTRIE 45,443 21,197
Interest receivables FEWLFILE 1,384 43
Other tax recoverables H A ] B F I8 48,808 35,472
Other receivables E b fE W FRIR 28,213 38,455
186,543 124,189
Analysed as: DA
Current assets MENEE 128,194 98,521
Non-current assets SEMENEE 58,349 25,668
186,543 124,189
Non-current deposits stated on the consolidated REVBRAARMENIERDIZESE
statement of financial position include certain RETHSEREREEBEYE BE X
rental deposits and deposits paid for acquisition of RENENIES -
property, plant and equipment.
Details of impairment assessment of other BRAHEMEWIARIRE 2B EFT
receivables and deposits are set out in Note 38. HIFFIB I A 7138 ©
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HtbBUWRE - RERFAMNRK
5 (&)

ST 5= B At FE W R IR B B2 A B 05
R E (M IR A RS A0 T

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 21.
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Other receivables balance with related parties
included in the Group’s other receivables are listed

below:
Amounts due from related companies FE R BR B A B FRIE
2021 2020
—EB-—F T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Related parties )b
A related company* —fEIE R Al 872 846
Other related company* BN ) NI 2,296 2,681
3,168 3,527

A related company controlled by close family
members of certain directors of the Company
(these directors are key management personnel of
the Company). The amount is non trade nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The maximum outstanding amount such other
receivables with the related company during the year
ended 31 December 2021 is HK$872,000 (2020:
HK$1,913,000).

The related company is a fellow subsidiary of the
non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary who has
significant influence over subsidiary of the Group.
The amount in non trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The maximum
outstanding amount such other receivables with
the related company during the year ended
31 December 2021 is HK$2,681,000 (2020:
HK$3,484,000).

* HARRE TEZRAREREKRER
TR AR (REEEAAR AN
FTEEBABR)  ZoBBHEES K
E o AEEE - RERBRENRE
B -RNBE_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—
BIEFE - BERFEE A R AY H ith B UG
T8 2 fx N M A Y Bl & 58 &872,000/8
T (ZBE=-T4 : 1,913,000/ 7T) °

@ ZEM AR AEAEENBARIAS
BATE B AR FEEERARE AR
AMBAR - %2 HEHEFHEL
AEEE - RERBREREE - K
HE_T_-_—F+-_A=+—H1
EFF o EEMA RN E M EKRZIEZ
BN M 7R W [E] < B8 A2,681,000% JT
(ZZE =4 : 3,484,000/87T) °
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22.

>>> 218

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT 22, BEBBITER EHRTHEF
TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK RERBITEHRERE
BALANCES AND CASH
As at 31 December 2021, pledged bank deposits RZE-_—F+-_A=+—0 B
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the HRITEREERTRITEREREE
bills payables issued by the Group, carried at fixed BHNENZBREROER  BEF
interest rate ranged from 0.30% to 1.65% (2020: &N F0.30%E1.65% (ZFE=F
0.30% to 1.65%) per annum. F : 0.30%E1.65%) °
As at 31 December 2021, short term bank deposits R-E-—F+-A=+—8 " &EHR
comprise bank deposits of fixed interest rates TEFEREREINPER=ERAZET
ranging from 1.3% to 2.3% (2020: 1.30% to 2.03%) “EAANEEFMENF1.3%E2.3%
per annum with an original maturity between three —EFTF 1 1.30%F2.03%) BYIRTT
months and twelve months. T3 o
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RITER LIRS BREAEERFAENRE
Group and bank deposits carry at variable interest NIRFERE B A=E A A THZER
rates with an original maturity of three months or TR RZEZ—F+ZHAH=+—
less. As at 31 December 2021, the variable interest A FEFEMENF0.001%E1.73%
rates ranged from 0.001% to 1.73% (2020: 0.001% ZEZFTF : 0.001%E1.73%) °
to 1.73%) per annum.
The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short term LIENEEEER e EB N EBET
deposits and bank balances and cash that are ENAEEEEARTER BHF
denominated in currencies which are not the HRBITEHR R SEHIIAT -
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:
Euro Sri Lankan
HK$ Us$ (“EUR") RMB VND Rupees (“LKR”)
B HEWFEL
BT in (&xl) AR%® U8 (FE#EFEL])
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr FTEr  FExr  TEr  TExn FAET
At 31 December 2021 R-F=—%
+-A=+—-H 379 66,428 78 5,844 1,797 954
At 31 December 2020 R-B T
+=—A=1+—H 121 119,067 93 3,496 853 908

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances are set out in Note 38.

BRCEMRITER - AHRITER
K SRTT K8 2 B AT (A BV RE B BB
738 -
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TRADE PAYABLES 23. EZENSFIE
The credit period granted by the Group’s creditors AEBEFERAG THEEBNT T30
ranges from approximately 30 to 90 days. The F0H - LT RESEMNRKIBEBRE®
following is an ageing analysis of trade payables EHERNEREZAHZINERER D
presented based on the invoice date at the end of 1T
each reporting period:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
0 - 90 days 0-90 H 359,387 229,551
Over 90 days 83890 H 10,806 13,499
370,193 243,050
As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s R-ZE_—F+-A=+—01"' stALxE
trade payables balance is an amount due to a joint B Z Z I sRIB 4 821026,328,0007% 7T
venture of HK$26,328,000 (2020: HK$19,299,000). — T~ T 19,299,000/ 7T) JHFE
Such balance due to a joint venture is unsecured, Neaht¥RIE ZEFENEELELS
interest-free and with a credit term of 30 days from HAEEALE2E EEHAELARE
the date of issuance of a monthly statement for B AR AZLEZRHAEEETS08 . 1
purchases delivered in that month. These balances B RE - ZEFEBRAIRET0
are aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting HAe
period.
The Group’s trade payables that are denominated ENESEEER I EB N E et
in currencies which are not the functional currencies ENAEEE SENKBEEINET :
of the relevant group entities are set out below:
Us$ EUR VND HK$
EYH BT HEE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHxT FAL
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%F
+=-B=+-H 47,760 35 19,711 125
At 31 December 2020 RZZB-TF
+-A=1—H 14,063 - 17,895 7

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK
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24. BILLS PAYABLES 24. ENEE
The bills payables are secured by pledged bank FET AR Ty DA sE22F 8 Y B 18R
deposits as set out in Note 22. The following is an THEZIEER UTRAENZEERS
ageing analysis of bills payables presented based REMAERFIZZEREFLEABRZTH
on the date of issuance of the bills at the end of BRER AT -

each reporting period:

2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAETT
0 - 90 days 0-90H 282,431 222,684
91 — 180 days 91 - 180H 161,607 100,564
444,038 328,248
The Group’s bills payables that are denominated in IEEEEE T LI EER §st
currencies which are not functional currencies of BERAEEEMNEZEES AT
the relevant group entities are set out below:
Us$ EUR VND
E BT HrEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THETT TATT TATT
At 31 December 2021 R-TB=-—F
+=—HB=+-—H 29,800 4,466 965
At 31 December 2020 RZE-THF
+Z—RA=+—H 26,335 8,918 367
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

e B R MY A

B e e

25. HttENRERETEH

CHARGES
2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET AT
Accrued staff costs JFE A< B T 3657 B 168,669 97,364
Other accruals B st & A 36,410 36,173
Payables on acquisition of WHEYE - BE R
property, plant and equipment B0 50,092 38,676
Other payables H fth & 5B 101,891 108,768
Total HET 357,062 280,981
As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s N—_ZE-——F+—_A=+—H8" A

other payables balance is an aggregate amount
due to related companies of HK$9,240,000 (2020:
HK$6,350,000).

These related companies are fellow subsidiaries of

R ES B H b fE S FRIA 45 87 FY 9,240,000
BT (=
e

T — T F : 6,350,000/ JT)
Bt N TI4REE o

ZEBEB AR RYAEEETHEB R

the non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries who A EEEK%%Z BB~ B JEIE AR iR
have significant influence over certain subsidiaries RORREMB ARG - ZEEMNEB A
of the Group. Such balances due to these related ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ}ﬁ%ﬁﬂ . ﬁa,u\ B ENRE
companies are unsecured, interest-free and R o
repayable on demand.
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EXNEE
2021 2020
B T -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Deposits received in advance for: FLTFIEE BRIES ¢
Manufacturing and trading of ERBEBEE A
elastic fabric and lace [EREYSEFA 29,815 29,853
Manufacturing and trading of EREBEE AT
elastic webbing 5,040 3,414
34,855 33,267
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted RZE _gij H—B &88FEA
to HK$40,964,000. 40,964,000/ 7T °
BRBBIERAER AR /| — T —FFR 221
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26.
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s
contract liabilities balance is an aggregate amount
of HK$115,000 (2020: HK$4,000) received from
related companies. These related companies are
fellow subsidiaries of non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries who have significant influence over
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

26.

EHNEE (&)

RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 it A
AEBEYBEHEHA115000%E T
(ZZ-ZF :4,00087T) JhE EAM
RN BN EN R ARRE - Z S EEE AR
AHAEEETHEBARNAEBEEAR
v NN R Y= =

RA] e

TRINTEERRABEESOARE
HIRAERIZSE o

Revenue recognised during the year ended
31 December 2021 that was included
in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year on 1 January 2021

Revenue recognised during the year ended
31 December 2020 that was included
in the contract liabilities balance at the

beginning of the year on 1 January 2020

Manufacturing Manufacturing
and trading of and trading of
elastic fabric elastic
and lace webbing
HEREERY HER
BYENRES EERMAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
RZZEZ—F—A—BFM
SFABRABERN
BE-Z-_—%1+-A
=t—BRIEFEEERRA 29,853 3,414
RZZZZF—-A—HBFM
FFABRABERD
e
=t—RIEFEEERRA 36,736 4,228

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit from customer
before the production activity commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract (i.e. upon receipt of manufacturing order
from customer), until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contract. Other than customers with
long term business relationship with the Group
and/or satisfying historical settlement record, the
Group typically receives 30% to 100% deposit on
acceptance of manufacturing orders from customers.

FECHASHNBBSENAIMAR
ES7SUNNE

MAEBEREEZSRGBAIAZE K
NiZe  EBRNEeHNRARE (B3R
RERFPHHEIER) EXEEA48
B EEREBESHBERKABL -
MREAREBARIANESBEEE, 5
BERUFFSHEELEANZTF AN &K
CEBENEXREIERRAZERK
ER30%ZE100%I8 % °
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

27. |ITREMER

2021 2020
—E--F —ZT_TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Bank overdrafts RITEX 29,111 -
Unsecured syndicated loan LR EE 793,883 1,006,673
Unsecured bank borrowings AR ITER 1,267,386 1,234,940
Unsecured other borrowings (Note) EICRE M E R (FEE) 70,024 44,908
2,160,404 2,286,521
Carrying amount repayable*: FE(E R IRRREE
Within one year —FR 1,364,879 1,091,540
More than one year, but not BB —F AT RAME
exceeding two years 202,464 269,868
More than two vears, but not B EENEBRE
exceeding five years 593,061 925,113
2,160,404 2,286,521
Less: Amounts due within one year or W OREBERRER
contain a repayment on demand —FAEEXRE
clause shown under current liabilities REREBERRIZHIE (1,511,615) (1,313,569)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities BB 648,789 972,952
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that /,\)5/\ FARERER
are repayable within one year and contain SRERERIETE
a repayment on demand clause fEfﬂﬁ RHEREE 1,149,761 1,012,911
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that HiR—FRERR
are repayable more than one year but BERERKERIETN
contain a repayment on demand clause RITEFNEREE 146,736 222,029
1,296,497 1,234,940
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment 2 ZHEA B IR E R S S st 2

dates set out in the loan agreements and include the
unamortised portion of the prepaid transaction cost

in relation to the unsecured syndicated loan.

Note:

Other borrowings represent loans from non-

B & -

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries which are
unsecured, carry interests at LIBOR plus 2.15%
to 4.35% (2020: LIBOR plus 2.40%) per annum
and repayable from the year ending 31 December
2023 to the year ending 31 December 2025 (2020:
repayable in the year ending 31 December 2023).
Such other borrowings are denominated in US$.

BRERZERERAR/ —F——

BEBHEE I@a‘%*ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁifﬁ
BEFANRZHEAZ REHID

H & FFE 3R B M B 2 7] IEFE AR AR 3R
NER @ AEEKE - REIERTRE
W E I EF K2 15%E4.35% (= Z
—TF : RBERITRERENFH X
2.40%) A ERERBE_T_=F
+ - A=t+—BIEEERE_T—
AFE+—_A=+—BLFEEE (=

E-TF AR _T_=ZF+_A=
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27.

»DD> 224

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group entered into a new facility agreement for an
unsecured syndicated loan (2020 Syndicated
Loan”), which would be repayable by installments,
from the year ended 31 December 2021 to the year
ending 31 December 2023 and with an interest
rate at HIBOR plus 2.2% per annum for HK$ loan
tranche and LIBOR plus 2.2% per annum for US$
loan tranche. The 2020 Syndicated Loan was
guaranteed by the Company.

The unsecured bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts were guaranteed by the Company and/
or certain of its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

The Group has floating-rate borrowings which carry
interests at HIBOR plus 1.00% to 2.20% or LIBOR
plus 1.00% to 2.75% (2020: HIBOR plus 1.40% to
2.20% or LIBOR plus 1.40% to 2.75%) per annum.
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE—

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s
bank and other borrowings are as follows:

e B R MY A

B e e

27. BITREMER &)

7K 8 T8 3R 17 % £ A 12 3K 40 B R 25
(FARERETHFIR) BEDT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

Effective interest rate (per annum):

Floating-rate borrowings FEER

B (F) Fl%

1.12%-3.00% 1.74%-2.52%

The Group’s bank and other borrowings that are
denominated in currencies which are not the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

NI EEE R ERNE R AT
17 R E 18 5K & 51 10

X

VND US$
WEE X
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

At 31 December 2021 N-_ZE_—_—&F
+—-—A=+—H 915 204,049

At 31 December 2020 P S e
+—-—A=+—8H 53,504 323,250

BRERZERERAR/ —F——
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEAE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THETT
Lease liabilities payable: EREEAE
Within one year —FR 42,743 13,485
More than one year HBiE— T ENERBMRE
but not exceeding two years 38,005 10,759
More than two years BAMTENBEART
but not exceeding five years 37,776 11,455
More than five years BEAF 53,191 54,433
171,715 90,132
Less: Amount due for settlement B BB ERTRI21E A A
within 12 months shown under R HEE 2 58
current liabilities (42,743) (13,485)
Amount due for settlement after EREBERIN12(E B &
12 months shown under B HEE 2 58
non-current liabilities 128,972 76,647
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates FrEAREEEENMEFLIEERE
applied to lease liabilities range from 2.89% to HHEE2.89%E5.50% ° (ZE=F
5.50%. (2020: from 2.89% to 5.50%.) T 2.89%%5.50% ° )
Lease obligations that are denominated in N EEERB e BEERINGER
currencies other than the functional currencies of FMECHEEAGESHINAT
the relevant group entities are set out below
LKR
HMEHEREL
HK$’000
T
As at 31 December 2021 A—E-_—F+=-HA=+—H 1,329
As at 31 December 2020 NR-TE-ZEF+=-_HA=+—H 919

»>> 226 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT TTES®MIA
2021 2020
—g—— —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial liabilities cREE
Put option FRom HRE 1,092 1,402
Put option of Charming Elastic FERBENR LI

Pursuant to the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement, subject to and conditional upon the Group
becoming the Majority Shareholder of Charming Elastic,
the other shareholder of Charming Elastic is entitled the
right to exercise its option to require the Group to buy
out all or part of the issued shares of Charming Elastic
held by the other shareholder at any time during the
period of two years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2022
at a price set out in the Charming Elastic Shareholders’
Agreement. The put option is recognised as a derivative
financial instrument at FVTPL by the Group. The gain
on fair value change of such put option of HK$310,000
(2020: HK$1,000) for the year ended 31 December
2021 was recognised in profit or loss as other gains
and losses as set out in Note 8. Details of the fair value
measurement of the put option are disclosed in Note
38.

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK

BEFBEETRENR IR K
ERASEKRABAEBBRIBETNEER
Rig - FEBBENS —ARREE
TEEREERAERIZAELRBE
BWEBZEMHERUEE T _ZF
+tA—BEE_ZE - _FA=1+H
WEBHRNERSEBS —UREFE
NEBBRBERENEH B EEITR
e RLEEAASERRASERE
miEAFEFENTESRTEAE - B
 E - —FF+_A=F+—HIF
B BERLHELAFEEH K E
310,000 7t (=& =T 4 : 1,000
T) RIEBEERER A HE Ak s K E1E -
NI FESATEL o UL HIE A EFTER
I ERHIFESS ©
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EZEFHIE
The following is the major deferred tax assets NTRRAFERBAFENEZED
(liabilities) recognised and movements during the WRELEHIBEE (BFE) KEH) -

current and prior years.

Undistributed

profits of/

unsettled

Deferred Capitalised ~ Allowance Accelerated  Retirement interest

government  finance for ECL tax benefit  income from Tax  Right-of-use  Lease

grants costs inventories  provision depreciation  obligations  subsidiaries  losses assets liabilities Total

REWEARH

RARER)/

EEuf o&ERL RHRE nE Bk AEHEAS
fie WERA FEBR  BBER  WERE  BAEE KA REEE  RRREE HEGE &t
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TR ThAn TER TER TER TEn  TEn Tér Thr  TEn

At1 January i Sk 2

2020 -A-H 936 2,212) 1,468 4,002 (8,298) 984 (1,262 8106 2011) 1,698 (2,699
Credlted (charged) ~ fEBR:FA (H1)

toprofitorloss ~~~ (f5H13)

(Note 13) 1,446 167 2,574 (2,265) 1,008 680 5175 (6,451) 315 (296) 2,353
Credtedtoother  EEMZE

comprehensive  JEEEA

income - - - - - 71 - - - = n
Exchange 3
adustments 00 2 0 - - - - - 9

At31 December  R-E-FE
2020 +ZA=t-H 2452 2,178) 3,899 1,739 (7,29 1,785 (2,087) 1,69 (1,696) 1,402 (371)

(Charged) creted 484835 (#1k)

toprofitorloss~~ EFA (fiEH13)

(Note 13) (212 179 1,488 1,570 (13,950) (56) (3,125 11,167 (193) 253 (2,879)
Chargedtoother  #EA2E

comprehensive  JEHII

income - - - - - (307) - - - - (307)
Exchange 3
adjustments 69 (61) (467) - - - (106) - = = (565)

At31 December ~ R=B=-%
2021 +=B=+-H 2309 (2060 4920 3,309 (21,242) 1372 (5318 12822 (1,889 1655 (412
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The above deferred tax assets and liabilities within
the same tax jurisdiction have been offset for
presentation purpose in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The following is the analysis of
the deferred taxation:

30.

EERLIR ()

MERME - LABRE -G EDE

RENEEHRBREERABERGS

ﬁﬂkﬂkﬂi@}fﬁé AN RIEERIAR
D

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T F&TT
Deferred tax assets FEETIEE = 5,576 5,387
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIAGE (9,698) (5,758)
4,122) (371)

Withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Under the EIT Law,
deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$1,497,657,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$1,444,838,000), as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group had unused tax losses of
HK$438,863,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$394,556,000). A deferred tax asset had
been recognised in respect of HK$91,589,000
(2020: HK$11,828,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$347,274,000 (2020:
HK$382,728,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams of respective group
entities. Included in unused tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$371,389,000 (2020:
HK$327,215,000) with expiry dates as disclosed
in the following table. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

BRERZERERAR/ —F——

@ TEENF—F—HE PEHB
Tﬁ'fﬁﬁﬁﬁHX/ﬁnﬁw /)EHX o —r/,\?v?ﬁl
M - BELCEMSHE  BRAXR
E.—JT %'H?é‘@@uuﬁ—riﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁ—rﬁ

i A G RF = 50 ] B 2k 7] g

A EI Eﬁzﬁﬂﬁéﬁéﬂﬁ%i&%?ﬂu
EfBARR-_TE-_—F+=-A=
T —HEMEF A EENGRERE
1,497,657,0008 T (Z &2 = T F:
1,444,838,000/% 7T) tEHIEET B &
ERHE o

R—ZBE-_—F+_A=+—H8 "' K&
= 1Y 2K B) A 7% 18 &5 18 /438,863,000
Bor (ZF = F F : 394,556,000/
7C) ° B 8 3% % E 1891,589,0007% 7T
(ZZT - : 11,828,000/ 7T) KK
ERBEECERT BRSEEE
“E’HEJK}EJ"JWEI’JTTTE A B

R A 52 347,274,000 7T (=
T T4 ¢ 382,728,000 7T) HYIEE
HMEBEE APDAHBESEREEE
49371,389,0008 T (—Z & — & F :
327,215,000 7) * HEHAMTE
Fri e - EfbEian BB HL
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

30. EELEBIH (£)

31 December

+=HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Year of expiry EHAE () F#&T FATT
2024 :%’é:@i 10,992 12,432
2025 = _ﬂi 45,394 45,850
2026 —ECREF 59,282 57,864
2027 —EoEF 44,652 -
2029 —E-NF 211,069 211,069
371,389 327,215
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B=X
The detailed movements of the Company’s share RARIRAREBFIBTHINWT ©
capital are set out below.
Number of
shares Amount
RBEE £x|
HK$ HK$'000
BT THL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEO BTz LBk
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December R=ZE-—F&—A—Hk
2020 and 2021 —ECRERN_E-F
+-A=1+—8H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: E%"&?&QE '
At 1 January 2020 and NZE-_FTF-H-AR
31 December 2020 and 2021 ZETER-EF
+=-A=1+—H 1,039,808,000 10,398,080 10,398

>>> 230 BEST PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries with a cap
of HK$1,500 per month per employee and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
make contributions to the state-managed retirement
schemes operated by the local governments based
on certain percentage of the monthly salaries of
their current employees to fund the benefits.

Eligible employees in Vietnam currently participate
in State Social Insurance Fund, which is a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The calculation of
contributions is based on certain percentage of
employee’s payroll.

The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the above defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are to make the required contributions
under the respective schemes.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total
costs charged to profit or loss are HK$59,321,000
(2020: HK$31,532,000), representing contributions
paid/payable to the above defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes.

32.
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32.

>>> 232

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32. BRIKEFEE (&)
(Continued)
Defined benefits plans AEBAGTE
Under the Payment of Gratuity Act, the Company’s BERMESZNE  NARNEER
Sri Lanka subsidiaries are required to operate KRB AR BRLAEBHGTE - A
defined benefits plans by paying gratuity to AR—R2ETEERBEAFRALNE
eligible employees who have served continuously EREELMNBEME - BME THRIE
for five years and more under one employer. EEF2MNAETEO L REE 2R
The calculation of gratuity is based on certain FHIFE - AT EF RMBARIRL
percentage of employee’s salaries and their number WA ERMETEIFFIBWT -
of years of service. The details of the defined
benefits plans operated by the subsidiaries in Sri
Lanka are as follows:
Retirement benefit obligations BARENEE
2021 2020
—E--F —ECFTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year REH] 9,060 6,922
Current service cost 35 B BR A5 B AN 1,355 956
Interest cost F B A 809 582
Actuarial (gain) loss BE (a) BB (2,195) 892
Acquisition of a business* W —IB 1,882 -
Contributions paid tFaETEIEHR (1,241) (785)
Exchange gain b e (510) (373)
Others HAith 629 866
At the end of the year RER 9,789 9,060

Being the addition due to the transfer in of

employees to a subsidiary upon the completion of
the acquisition of a business on 1 February 2021 as

disclosed in Note 33.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE—

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32. BIRERNEE &)

(Continued)

Defined benefits plans (Continued)

REEH

T Ft-A=+-ALEE

=& (&)

IEfE (&)

5 Ko B At 2 T e R T AR Y

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued) EBIRFEF
The amounts recognised in the consolidated NiZEEERE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive SEMAT

income are as follows:

2021 2020
—F--F ZT-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAT
Current service cost IR B AR S AR AN 1,355 956
Interest cost R B 809 582
Acquisition of a business U B — TR £ 75 1,882 -
Recognised in profit or loss RIERER 4,046 1,538
Actuarial (gain) loss breakdown is as BE (Wam) BEBANT :
follows:
(Gain) loss from change in financial M REZHH (W) BE
assumptions (2,407) 1,084
Experience adjustments KR 212 (192)
Recognised in other comprehensive R Eftt 2R
expense (2,195) 892

BRERZERERAR/ —F——
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32.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(Continued)

Defined benefits plans (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

This obligation, which is not externally funded,
is based on an actuarial valuation of the defined
benefit plan based on the projected unit credit
method, which is the benchmark method specified
in HKAS 19 carried out by a professional actuaries
as of 31 December 2021. The gratuity liability
of the subsidiaries in Sri Lanka is based on an
actuarial valuation carried out by Messrs’ Willis
Towers Watson Actuaries, whose principal place of
business is located at 2nd Floor, Tower B, Unitech
Business Park, South City-1, Gurgaon-122001,

32.

RIRERETE (2)

REBRAGFE (&)
RABREE (B)

JitIEEE NBESBRANEBEETTIAE
XBEMBE_T-_—FTH=
+—H T;zi‘Equ 5 7 48 T AR R (it
7’%%5;‘ g JL%E‘J%QFMEEE@%
BE)HATENGTEETHR
1‘;57%ﬁ Hﬁi%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ””?ﬂ’l
@ M & & & T KA EMessrs’ Willis
Towers Watson Actuaries (B ¥ &
& % b B 2 %A2nd Floor, Tower B,
Unitech Business Park, South City-1,
Gurgaon-122001, Haryana, India) #

Haryana, India. The principal assumptions used for THRENHAER - AR —B®
this purpose are as follows: MNEZ/HBHD -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
Discount rate per annum FRLIE R 11% 7%
Annual salary increment rate FHF R R 9% 9%
Retirement age RINFRR 60 55
Withdrawal rate BERKR 15% 15%

As the amount of retirement benefit obligations is
insignificant, no sensitivity analysis on assumptions
used in the actuarial valuation is presented.

HRERBHNEEZ2BIFEKX -
B AR E R b 2 RERETTHUR
DT -
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ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS

On 29 January 2021, the Group entered into an
assets sale and purchase agreement (“Assets
Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Textprint
Lanka (Private) Limited (“Textprint”) (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of MAS Holdings (Private)
Limited, being the non-controlling shareholder
of Trischel Fabric (Private) Limited (“Trischel”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) in
relation to the purchase of assets and liabilities with
a cash consideration of US$3,538,197 (equivalent
to approximately HK$27,598,000) consisting of
(i) property, plant and equipment which mainly
included printing machines, washing machines,
boilers, steamers, fabric inspection machines,
dryers and other equipment for printing synthetic
fabrics and the associated finishing processes
currently used at the manufacturing plant of
Textprint, (i) inventories of Textprint; (i) retirement
benefit obligations; and (iv) amount due to Trischel
as at 31 January 2021. Pursuant to the Assets Sale
and Purchase Agreement, Textprint shall transfer
up to 252 of its employees to Trischel. Completion
of this acquisition had taken place on 1 February
2021.

The acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of business using the acquisition
method.

33.

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK

g — 1B R

R_ZE_—F—HAZ+NB  x&E
EATextprint Lanka (Private) Limited
([Textprint]) (MAS Holdings
(Private) Limited®dEZ 2= &K B
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Limited R AR BIZEZEMNE R A
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([Trischel]) B IEZERARR ) AT L&
EEEW=([EEEEHR]) 18
BRIESN(ES,588,197F L (BE
#)27,5698,0008 ) BEEEKE
& BEPBRFEODE  BWEKI&E
FEBRBRR Textprint R &R FE 5
EVENTEME - JERME - SRIE - 209 -
B MERLREMRE - H
VA& P4 4 Ak e ENTE AR 12 N T
T - (i)TextprintFE : (i) iRIK1E
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HER TrischelfFIE - IRIBEEEE
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33.
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ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS
(Continued)

33. WE—H\EHK (&)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at NIKERHWENEERE RS
the date of acquisition
HK$’'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB R 23,719
Inventories FE 16,815
Retirement benefit obligations RABAEE (1,882
Amount due to Trischel &M Trischel &9 3012 (7,154)
31,498
Analysis of cash outflow in respect of WHE —TH TS
acquisition of a business: WEMEDHT
Cash consideration HEaRE 27,598

Bargain purchase gain amounting to HK$3,900,000
on acquisition of a business from Textprint is
recognised in profit or loss within the other income
(Note 7) in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The bargain
purchase gain is resulted from the revaluation of
machinery acquired from Textprint as performed by
an independent valuer in Sri Lanka.

BTextprintg B —IH £ & A & B UiE
53,900,000/ L iR A s M E
thEmEmkERPREMBAAREBR
R (HE7) - 2ERBRERE R
B Textprint Y s &9 #4517 E 3715
B EAfTEE OB (GEME
7 °
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34. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

34. BEAXRRHMAIE

2021 2020
—E——F el
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of the BARNEME  BE
addition of property, plant and equipment B S E
contracted but not provided for REBENERAX 130,167 218,172

Note:

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
22 December 2016, Dongguan BPT and seven
independent third parties entered into an agreement
in relation to the formation of a company to be
established in the PRC (“the Investee”) to engage
in insurance business and related financial activities
in the PRC. Pursuant to such agreement, Dongguan
BPT has agreed to make a capital contribution of
RMB140,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$
HK$158,765,000) in return for approximately 7.022%
equity interest in the Investee. As at the date of these
consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, formation of the Investee is subject to
the approval from China Insurance Regulatory
Commission and no contribution was made by the
Group to the Investee.
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35.

36.

37.

»>> 238

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has pledged bank deposits amounted to
HK$121,607,000 (2020: HK$77,944,000) to secure
the bills payables issued by the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group does not have any contingent liability so
far as the management of the Group is aware that
is pending or threatened by or against the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which mainly include bank and other borrowings
as disclosed in Note 27 and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital
disclosed in Note 31 and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. In view
of this, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
shares issue as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. ¢RI H
Categories of financial instruments cRMIAESE
2021 2020
—E=--F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Financial assets CRIEE
Financial assets measured at R ER AT 2R
amortised cost SRUEE 2,095,200 2,033,620
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities measured at RE SR NG EHY
amortised cost TRIBE 3,331,697 3,133,800
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FREmRATE
TENESREE
— derivative financial instrument —TESRITE 1,092 1,402

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
derivative financial instrument, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade payables, bills
payables, other payables and accrued charges
and bank and other borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

MEEREERERBE
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38.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank and other
borrowings and bank balances, and fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, short term bank deposits and lease
liabilities.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as
a result of change on market interest rate and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR or LIBOR
arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank and other
borrowings.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including
the replacement of some interbank offered
rates ("IBORs") with alternative nearly risk-free
rates. Details of the impacts on the Group's risk
management strategy arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform and the progress towards
implementation of alternative benchmark interest
rates are set out under "interest rate benchmark
reform" in this note.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €®MIEAE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and BREREEREREEK (&)
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) miZER (&)

Interest rate risk (Continued) FIERE g (&)

Sensitivity analysis B D AT

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined PATNGURAE D AT JI IR IR B SR 1T S HoAth
based on the exposure to interest rate risk on bank & X E R MM R BB M E o BURE
and other borrowings. The sensitivity analysis is D DERENRE AR ERTFHARE
prepared assuming the bank and other borrowings B HOSRTT S H A 4G R0 B A A BRI
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were BEMBE BHRAEEEERERA
outstanding for the whole year. No sensitivity analysis IRITHE SRR T ORISR - WL &L
is presented on bank balances as the management IRITAERRE S BURMED T o

of the Group considers that the interest rate
fluctuation on bank balances is minimal.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used in the BORX M o AT A iR A _E sk T BR501E
sensitivity analysis, which represents management's AR REREEETHASEEMN
assessment of the reasonably possible change in M EEE - fF =X LEF T RS0
interest rates. If the interest rate had been 50 basis EEmABEEMEH KT ILE
point higher/lower and all other variables were held SERBE_ZTE_—F+A=1
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended —BLEFEMNBRREL MRS
31 December 2021 would decrease/increase by # J09,047,000%8 T (= & = & F -
HK$9,047,000 (2020: HK$9,559,000) 9,559,000 7T ) °
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €@TH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and ¥R EEREZERBGR (£2)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) hiEEkE (&)
Currency risk B )E fe
Certain trade and bills receivables, trade payables, HTESRUKFERBREER - B5
bills payables, bank balances and cash, and bank FERTRIE - BRRE - RITER LS
borrowings are denominated in foreign currencies FUARBITEFGARERERERD
other than the functional currency of the relevant ae B AN SN SHE - BHARK
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign [ R SN L o AR ER B IE R
currency risk. The Group does not have a foreign INEESPRBUR o AT 0 B IR E BIIE S
currency hedging policy. However, the management ERR  WHRTREEREMEX
of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure HNEE [ B2 o
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency ARBUINEFENTBEERAR
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the RfE BB RENERMENDT
end of the reporting periods are as follows:
Assets
BE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHTT
EUR against HK$ BR T %A TT 94 108
RMB against HK$ AREH BT 7,204 6,053
US$ against HK$ EILHBTT 334,860 392,545
VND against US$ MEERETT 29,262 8,827
HK$ against US$ BIL AR ZETT 379 190
RMB against US$ ARERZET 44 806
LKR against US$ HERNELLET 954 908
US$ against RMB ETHARE 994 193
Liabilities
afE
2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHIT
EUR against HK$ BRIT 5B TT 4,466 8,403
RMB against HK$ AR HET 143 -
US$ against HK$ EITLHABTT 281,613 363,649
VND against US$ G R ET 29,813 78,112
HK$ against US$ BIL A ZETT 402 815
EUR against US$ BRI 53T 36 515
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated intra-group balances which have been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
of certain subsidiaries of which the functional
currency are BRMB, HK$ and US$ at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

38.

TRITHE (@)
HYEREREBRREE ()

miEER (&)
E¥mg (&)

NERE HAR A5 SRS - ASNESHEE
BAQAREEHNEEESWOT
EREHREREEBEAARE B
TTMETHETHEBRRMNE S T
MR AR -

Amount due from (to)
group entities

FEW (FBfY) SEERRE

2021 2020

—B-—-F —ECTF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT TAET

HK$ against RMB BT A AR 585,407 435,910
US$ against RMB ELAARE 28,383 17,791

Sensitivity analysis U S W

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with mAETTEETTES  AEBFEFEHE
US$, the Group does not expect any significant TC S T ME R A E & KB F o

movements in the US$/HKS exchange rates.
Therefore, the following sensitivity analysis does not
include the effect between US$ and HKS.

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK
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38.

>DD> 244

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €@TH (£&)
Financial risk management objectives and BRAKREREEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miERE ()
Currency risk (Continued) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) SRS (BB)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TRFMAEEHSEEBREREE
to a 10% increase and decrease in the functional W FE A INEE FE BR10% A SR RRME ¢ W
currency of the respective group entity against FIBEEMEHERFTE - 10%RER
relevant foreign currencies and all other variables B {hEXA S ES BN BUREL
were held constant. 10% is the sensitivity rate Ko FURMEDITEBIE R AREIE 2 A
used by management in the assessment of the HINETIEMERIEE REERNARME
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange HNEE 564 - N RS BA R IR10% HY [ 3 &
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only FABRHEBE - THEHBERINER
outstanding foreign currencies denominated EEEERNEEE (BT ARK
monetary items and intragroup foreign currency 3k TT) FHE10%F AN F E R & &
balances and adjusts its translation at the period FIEIE I - INEH R EEERBINGEE
end for a 10% change in foreign currencies rates. ¥ (BT ARESET) RE10%E
A positive number below indicates an increase in HAFEFAEAMRRERNTE -
post-tax profit for the year where foreign currencies
strengthen 10% against functional currency (HK$
or RMB or US$) of the respective group entity. For
a 10% weakening of foreign currencies against
functional currency (HK$ or RMB or US$) of the
respective group entity there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year.
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit REFZ BRI R
for the year 20 (i)
Foreign currency against HK$ HNEE ST 236 (184)
Foreign currency against RMB HNEE 5, N R 52,257 38,581
Foreign currency against US$ HNEEHLZETT (19,238) (5,500)

In - management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The sensitivity analysis of the derivative financial
instrument is disclosed in the section “fair value
measurements of financial instruments” below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligations by the counterparties as at
the end of reporting period are arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group identifies trade receivables
that are credit-impaired and assesses their ECL
individually, and performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on the remaining trade balances
based on provision matrix. The estimated loss
rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted default
rates in Asia-Pacific, North America and Europe
as published by international credit agency,
which reflect the general credit risk of the major
debtors and the geographical market that they
operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess both
the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by the management of the
Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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38.

>DD> 246

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 15.1% (2020: 15.0%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
debtor based in Hong Kong and 43.7% (2020:
38.0%) of the total trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest five debtors, which were
mainly based in Hong Kong and Sri Lanka as at 31
December 2021.

Bills receivables, pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances

The credit risks for bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits and bank
balances are limited because such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned
banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several reputable
banks.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

38.

TRITHE (@)
HYEREREBRREE ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

EERRKBENE (&)

AEBENARBEERRD R GERE

NEIEER

Other financial

Internal assets at
credit rating  Description Trade receivables amortised cost
R SH R A< HI AR Y
AMEETR g ZEWRE Hitem&EE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
default and does not have any past-due not credit-impaired
amounts or the past-due amounts are
insignificant
EWENE ﬁiﬁmtﬁﬂAﬁﬁ BWEEmss 2HESEEEE - 12EARHREEEE
TRIE SN BATRIENE N E K RNEEFERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
dates but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
BReE EHRARERIPRRERERENE 2RBEEEE - 12@ABPEEER
HIR®REER REEFERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
it FRAPINEEIRZKER AT AE HEMEEESE - 2HEHEEEE -
B B B RHER AR ZIE I REEEERE RNEEEFERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
E1a BRBRTNZEEREEERE ZHRHBEEEE - 2HRHAGEEEE -
BAEEERE BAEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
WisH BEEATEBARARENKREE MEZERE WiHZ 58

REER REERE AT 8L
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €®MTH (&)

Financial risk management objectives and BRAKREREEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBERENE (&)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures TRFFMBETTEHEEEEB G
of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost NEBIRBEKAYENSREER
which are subject to ECL assessment: FENEERRE :
2021 2020
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12885 —EC-F ZZ-%F
Ma  HMPEEFR ANEETSR ZHBUEEER BFEAS REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx BT

Financial assets at
amortised cost

RESERAIIENEMER
Trade receivables 20 N/A Note (a) Lifetime ECL 821,775 806,166
(provision matrix)
B H RN TaR HizE(e) PHENEEER
(BiaER)
20 N/A Note (a) Credit-impaired 18,024 -
TR Hizt(a) BEEERE
845,799 806,166
Bills receivables 20 N/A N/A 12m ECL ‘ 28,267 14,401
eSS TNEHR TEHA 12EARSEEER
Other receivables and deposits 21 N/A Note (b) 12m ECL ‘ 61,481 46,585
HitEYHIE R RS TER f3E(b) 12EAEREEEE
Pledged bank deposits 22 Note (c) N/A 12m ECL 121,607 77,944
BEMARITER fizE() TEA 12EARSREEER
Short term bank deposits 22 Note (c) N/A 12m ECL \ 163,814 8,338
EHRITEH fzHc) TER 12[EAEREESE
Bank balances 22 Note(c) N/A 12m ECL \ 898,387 1,092,396
RITEEER iz ) aA 12EARBEEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE—

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
credit loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for
debtors with significant outstanding balances that are
credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
internal credit rating.

(b) For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. All of these balances are either
not past due or have no fixed repayment term at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

(c) The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits
and bank balances is limited because most of such
balances are placed in banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Provision matrix — internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers
in relation to its manufacturing and trading of elastic
fabric, lace and webbing operation. The following
table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). Credit-impaired customers with gross
carrying amount of HK$18,024,000 (2020: nil) as at
31 December 2021 were assessed individually.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

TRIA #)

PMHEREREBRERBE (&)

EERR&BENE (&)

(Continued)

Gross carrying amount BRIE AE5E
2021 2020
Trade Trade
receivables receivables
—E-—F —ECTF
BEZEWRE EIRIKFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating REEEFTER F& T T
Grades 1-2: Low risk 1-24% - Bk 718,689 687,372
Grade 3: Watch list M BRRE 106,725 91,323
Grade 4: Doubtful AR - TERE 2,361 27,471
827,775 806,166

During the year ended 31 December 2021, lifetime
ECL (not credit-impaired) on trade receivables was

provided based on the provision matrix.

As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average
loss rate applied in determining the lifetime ECL (not

credit-impaired) was 0.8% (2020: 1.6%).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. ¢RI H (#)
Financial risk management objectives and HBRKREREEERBER (£)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEERBRBENG (2)
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRERDRBEERE S E H& A
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables HRNEHEHEESES
under the simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HED 2HEH
FEE#E FERE
(REE (4%
FERE) FERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAEL THEL
At 1 January 2020 R_E-TF—HF—H 7,969 18,933 26,902
Changes due to trade receivables EHREZEKTBMEEED :
recognised:
- impairment losses recognised -BZZ-TF-A-REBN:
on financial assets carried forward BEECRRREEE
from 1 January 2020 - 1,800 1,800
— impairment losses recognised - REENFEREEDRRMNE
on new financial assets originated B#E 12,451 - 12,451
- impairment losses reversed - BEEERERRE (7,969) - (7,969)
— write-offs — 35 - (20,920) (20,920)
Exchange adjustments B 5 8% 218 187 405
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF+-A=1+—H 12,669 - 12,669
Changes due to trade receivables ERRE HRMGEMNEE :
recognised:
~ impairment losses recognised -2 -F5-A-H&EN:
on financial assets carried forward vaﬂ‘léf?ﬁﬁ&wﬂ@@ﬂﬁ
from 1 January 2021 - 13,615 13,615
— transfer to credit-impaired - BEZEERE (4,409) 4,409 -
~ impairment losses recognised - REENTEREECRARE
on new financial assets originated B 6,612 - 6,612
— impairment losses reversed - BREREER (8,260) - (8,260)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_-%+=A=+-H 6,612 18,024 24,636
REERERARAT —E-—55% 051
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

During the year, there were impairment losses
reversed due to the settlement of trade receivables
carried forward from prior year. As a result, a
reversal of provision of HK$8,260,000 (2020:
HK$7,969,000) has been recognised in the current
year.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
of the Group to finance the operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2021, the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
HK$3,901,847,000 (2020: HK$2,620,485,000). The
management of the Group monitors the utilisation

of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks
or financial institutions choosing to exercise their
rights. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T H (&)

Financial risk management objectives and BRAKBEEEERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAR (&)
Liquidity tables B E £ FK
Carrying
Weighted  Repayable amount at
average ondemand  Between  Between More Total  the end of
effective ~ orwithin 3 months 1yearto5 than undiscounted the reporting
interestrate 3 months  to 1 year years  5years cash flows date
REXY REERS
mEYY @Ak =A% AEREE  EREH

RRNE & - -EERF BERF  REAE RAfE
HK$000  HKBOO0  HK$000 HKSO00  HK§'000 HK$'000
TEn  TAn  TEr  TER TATL TAL

At 31 December 2021 R-E--%+-F=1-H

Non-derivative HrELREeR

financial liabilities
Trade payables BARRE N/A TR 370,193 - - - 370,193 310,193
Bils payables ERRE NARER 282431 161,607 - - 444038 444,038
Other payables and A ERFERETER

acerued charges N/A TEH 357,062 - - - 357,062 357,062

Bank borrowings - variable rate  $R/T{EFT - [FEIFIX
Other borrowing - variable rate -t ft - F87 X

205% 1318999 196,306 606,248
2.78% 10,796 32,381 28,598

2,339,481 390,500 634,841

2,121,553 2,090,380
1,776 70,024

3,364,622 3,331,697

Lease liabilities L 5.29% 13453 38084 04421 122496 269,354 171,715
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EFt-f=1-H
Non-derivative HiteRER

financial liabilities
Trade payables B e NATERE 243050 - = - 3050 243,050
Bill payables EfZE NA TR 182510 140738 - - 33048 323,248
Other payables and Rt MR 2R

acorued charges N/A NiER 280,981 - - - 280,981 280,981
Bank horrowings - variable rate /T - FEIFI 201% 1297542 98097 986,08 - 03547 2241613
Other borrowing - varigble rate  E {3 - &)= 475% 533 1600 49175 - 51,308 44,908

1044616 240435 1,036,083 - 32113 3133800

Lease liabilities g8k 5.19% 4116 14268 36008 126581 180973 90,132
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidiity tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amount of bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause amounting to
HK$1,296,497,000 (2020: HK$1,234,940,000) are
included in “Repayment on demand or within 3
months” time band in the above maturity analysis.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the management of the Group does not believe that
it is probable that the banks or financial institutions
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The management of the
Group believes that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE—
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €T H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BRAKBEEEERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAR (&)
Liquidity tables (Continued) THEBEL K (&)
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the REERHESRRMNE A&EEE
management of the Group reviews the expected BEREHZEHEEER ,Hﬂ (A
cash flow information of the Group’s bank TRAH) SR AEBRITERNGE
borrowings based on the scheduled repayment STREREER
dates set out in the agreement as set out in the
table below:
Carrying
amount at
Weighted Between Between Total  the end of
average Within 3 months to 1yearto undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 3 months 1 year Syears  cash flows period
AEE  REEHE
il 3571 =Rz BERE  EREN
Mz =AM -£ -EEIF 2 BEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BAl ThL T T T T
Bank borrowings B
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%+-F=+-H 1.81 1,000,560 129,358 154,629 1,284,547 1,296,497
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE+-R=1-H 197 864,419 157,019 240086 1,261,524 1,234,940
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Disclosure of risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform

As listed in Note 2, several of the Group’s LIBOR
bank loans will be subject to the interest rate
benchmark reform. The Group is closely monitoring
the market and managing the transition to new
benchmark interest rates, including announcements
made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all
LIBOR settings will either cease to be provided by
any administrator or no longer be representative:

° immediately after 31 December 2021, in the
case of all sterling, euro, Swiss franc and
Japanese yen settings, and the 1-week and
2-month US dollar settings; and

° immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case
of the remaining US dollar settings.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index
Average (“HONIA”) has been identified as an
alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinue
HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has been adopted
in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will
co-exist.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
HIBOR (Continued)

Progress towards implementation of
alternative benchmark interest rates

As part of the Group's risk management for
transition, new contracts entered into by the Group
are linked to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates or interest rates which are not subject to
reform to the extent feasible.

The Group is planning to transition the LIBOR-linked
contract through introduction of, or amendments
to, fallback clauses into the contracts which will
change the basis for determining the interest cash
flows from LIBOR to alternative reference rate at an
agreed point in time.

The following table shows the total amounts
of outstanding contracts and the progress in
completing the transition to alternative benchmark
rates as at 31 December 2021. The amounts
of financial liabilities are shown at their carrying
amounts.

Financial instruments

38.

£RTH (&)
EBRTEERS (£)
BREENZNERER

ERASEBERREEN D
AEBERFTNHENEBREEREE
MEHNATEHEAN R R FE R X
Hh o

$EIEEJﬂ EBERHPTIIAK
BRI RERR - BREBBBITRE
FEEBHE L - LR AE &

55;1%}1&}??_%” 8 EE:'E//\LEE’U%E*E Q 1FHa ?5(
RITAEREEERBERBENEK -

TRERIR-Z-_—F+-A=1—
BERAREESNBEENTRBEREER
ﬁ%+ﬂ$%ﬁ@ cRABSEMN
HARE S8R -

Transition progress for

prior to transition Maturing in HK$'000 financial instruments
BEANERIA BFER TET SHIANBEER
Non-derivative financial liabilities
FTESRMEE
Bank and other borrowings linked 2022-2024 750,462  Expected to transit
to US$ LIBOR (2020: 859,343) in latest by 2023
BETRARITRER SHANRTR it S 750,462 FHEBR_T_=FRE
HipfeE T “%-%
859,343)
Bank borrowings linked to HIBOR 2022-2024 1,409,942  HIBOR will continue
(2020: 1,427,178) il maturity
BEBRITRAEFEHBNRTEE —F--% 1,409,942 BRBITREREHEHE
—TomE (Z2=%F: EZHH
1,427,178)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset, either directly or
indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the assets.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

38.

Fair value of the financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)
Fair value as at 31 December
RtZB=T-AHATE

Fair value  Valuation techniques and key

AN

N

5 BB M

B e e

€RTHE (&)
SWMIA>DAFENE (£)

UEEMHEEZAFEGENSHEA
ENAFE (&)

2021 2020 hierarchy inputs Sensitivity
ZB--f CTCRE AVEER REHARIZAAHE gEE
HK$'000  HK$000
Thn Thn
(1) Derivative Put option- Putoption-  Level3  Fairvalue derived by valuation model,  The fair value of the derivative financial liabilty as a whole
financial liabiity 1,092 1,402 Monte Carlo Simulation Model. The  is negatively correlated with the WACG and posttively
(see Note 29 key unobservable inputs used by correlated with the discount for lack of marketability and the
the Group mainly included expected  expected volatilty of comparable companies.
volatifty of comparable companies, B ‘
i neapCosCais (S50 oot
(‘'WACC") and discount for lack of ' '
marketabilty. - WACC by 3% would have decreased/increased the fair
value of the derivative financial liability by HK$299,000/
HKS335,000 (2020: HK$357,000/HKS$404,000);

- Discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have
increased/decreased the fair value of the derivative
financial liability by HK$121,000/HK$109,000 (2020:
HK$155,000/HK$148,000);

- Bxpected volatilty of comparable companies by 10%
would have increased/decreased the fair value of the
derivative financial liabilty by HKS252,000/HK$236,000
(2020: HK$344,000/HK$305,000)

() fEcdaE  REME- DEBE- BB pEERLSHBEREUSHY (ESHAGRNATERREMETIAMIARRL - R
(5LMEE29) 1,092 1,402 AU AEESENERTER  DEEEONERTRHRAANEERERLY -

BAREIREETALBAANE
 IEFIERRA ([T

i
BRREA) k) @EEN TR

S S il e RN RR R b S
HRERT - i

to- mmﬁmm /3% BERTESREE
ATIERD /11000 000,/ 35,0007 (~%
357 0007,/ 404, 0008 TT)

- BEEEMRTEENHO5%  BERGLERAR
ATERN /B 121 00T,/ 109.00087 (-2
B4 £ 15500087/ 148 0008 TC)

- WEHENARBERELN, H0%  SERfES
BEENATEEN /25200057 /236,000
(ZB=2E : 34400057/ 306,00087T) °

There is no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and

Level 3 during both years.

PRREFEAN F—H F_HKE
=P B o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted
cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Valuation process

The financial controller of the Group is responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market-observable data
or information provided by counterparty financial
institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty
(investee or fund manager) cannot provide sufficient
information in relation to fair value, the management
of the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The financial controller
reports to management of the Group semi-annually
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value
of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
financial instruments are disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €®ITH (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement E=RAFEFTENHIER
Derivative
financial
iaboility
TTESBARE
HK$’000
FEL
At 1 January 2020 A—E-—mE—F—p (1,403
Total gains: B
— in profit or loss — HABE 1
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_ZTF+-A=+—H (1,402)
Total gain: U
—in profit or loss — it ABzS 310
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_-$+=-A=+—8 (1,092)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 39. URHBAEBRNAR
The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the AABREBER-_ZE—NFRAANBB
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and share option BRSRBERRAE X ARABEENBER
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) were adopted BB ([BEXRAHAEESBERER
pursuant to a resolution passed on 8 May 2014 g1 kiERER S ([ERERTE) -
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to TEREZLEENREEREHNE
directors and eligible employees, and will expire at I 55 B A& 2L B R A A B B RS IR T
the end of five years and ten years from the date of SNBSS B EE H e
grant of respective share options for Pre-IPO Share AERTEREE -
Options Scheme and the Share Option Scheme,
respectively.
For the Share Option Scheme, no share option was MBREFEIMS - BHRAEILE
granted since its adoption. RN E o
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is no RIB-—FR T -_FTF+_-_A=
granted share options remained outstanding under +—B BMERBEEAAHRBERE
the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme. IRAEFTEIE B M ARITE A AR
Details of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share BALAFEERBRETS RERE
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme are FElZEFEBRFNFERAATZE
disclosed in the “Report of the Directors” included T FFRAE [EERE | BE -

in the Annual Report 2021 of the Company.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. FEBARS
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated RGN BEREREMIE DA ESE
financial statements, the Group had the following AN $ SEREAB TSR
related party transactions during the year: 2 -
@) 2021 2020
—EB-—F ZZEF
Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$'000
RIME TET TET
Sales of goods to a joint venture A& EPRHERY 1,969 1,846
Purchase of goods from a joint venture BE2TCEBEEY 80,671 49,639
Sales of goods to a related company* ] — e BB A R SE & E W 117,536 48,293
Sales of goods to other related companies* A E R A RS E &Y 847,062 528,299
Interest expense on other borrowing from one BHA—EE RN A
of the other related companies* L A2 2R B B S 1,002 759
Operating expenses to other related RELul) NS
companies® e 70,150 36,125
* A related company controlled by close family * HARAETEEMABRREKE R
members of certain directors of the Company. I RAEE A ] o
# The other related companies are fellow subsidiaries # ZEHEMBEH AR AHAEENB A
of the non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries Gl ﬁﬁéﬁ%%z SN E =i E3e
who have significant influence over subsidiaries of E:0EEA RPN
the Group.
(b)) Compensation to key management b) AEBETEERBAE (BIART]
personnel of the Group which represents BE) NS ERMHEE10 -

directors of the Company is set out in Note
10.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

©

The Group also has the following related
party transactions and balances regarding
to the lease agreements entered into by the
Group as a lessee.

40. BEBARRZ (&)

) AEBENMBEAEERELREAHEA
UM ZEHERESE T 5
B R 5 R AR o

2021 2020
—B--F —ZTTF
Nature of transaction/balances HK$’000 HK$’000
X5/ HEHHE THER FAT
Interest expense on lease liability to m—fREGH AR NHEE
a related company* BEMERZ 567 476
Lease liability to a related company* m—EREEAREE
MEafE 19,104 3,694
Interest expense in respect of mESLESMHHEEYE
rental premises to Mr. Lu FEFL 1,039 820
Lease liability in respect of rental mESLEEEHEYME
premises to Mr. Lu HERE 10,677 13,275
Interest expense to one of the other A1 E A —FE E B R A B
related companies* TRFERZ! 776 573
Lease liability to one of the other [ L AR — ] EL 4t B B A )
related companies* BEHERE 11,739 10,332

A related company controlled by close
family members of certain directors of the
Company.

& The other related companies are fellow
subsidiary of the non-controlling shareholder
who have significant influence over
subsidiaries of the Group.

Details of the other balances with related
parties at the end of reporting period are
disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position and Notes 20, 21, 23, 25,
26 and 27.

Details of the acquisition of a business from
a non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary are disclosed in Note 33.

* mAREE TEEHIRR K
PR BRI R AR o

" ZEE MR A R A AEH
MEBAREBERTE 2 IFE
BRRRERZME AR o

(d) A RER R AR A R A R B
FRZEMERNFIBTREESH
% AR & A & Bt 5E20 - 21 -
2325 26 27 HEE o

e FHBEIZEMBRARZ %
FEHE R R B XA B R
Ff =33 EE -

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK 263

€L«



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

41. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. MIBATRZHFE

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company
has the following subsidiaries:

RZBE-—FR T -_FTF+_A=
+—H  KABHUTHEBAR :

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December

Charter capital/ Zw‘_ﬂ
Place of Paid up RT=A :-t: H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR AR
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
e,/ ERER/
WEARER kit feny BrkA/dMEx  —F--F  -3-TF  IEER
% %
BPT Holdings BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$20,000 100 100 Investment holding
BROBAR RERES B ERR20,000% T REmk
Best Pacific Textlle BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
International Limited EBRLHE &b LRR100ET RERR
BROBERARAT
Best Pacffic Textie Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BROHARAT Bl i LR 10,000 BT and trading of elastic
fabric and lace
REMRREEEN
BOEHRES
Best Pacific Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited 5 e LER1 AT and provision of
BERE (BE) ERAT agency senvices to
group companies
RERRRMEE
RARRRERE
Best Pacific Management ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100 100 Provision of
Senvices Limited B i LAk 1AL management
(Formerly known as services
Best Pacific Textile to group companies
(Hong Kong) Limited) REBL R
BREEREERAT BERE
(ifEBRSSE (B5)
ERAR)
New Horizon Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited Hh i &R 10,000 A7 and trading of
BERE (B) BRAF elastic webbing
REBRREEE!
s

>>> 2064
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
ek

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiEZ =%

IR ESE Y

——F A=t BILEE

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. MBARZFH1E (&)
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December
Charter capital/ _ZM_EJ
Place of Paid up mj—ﬂ :-I:: 2
incorporation/  Place of share capital/ gt o bl
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
e/ BRER/
HEARER LS feny MRk /iMER  -8--F  -T-%F  IEER
% %
Best Pacific International Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited. &b e LAk BT RERR
BEERREERAT
(Formerly known as
New Horizon Elastic Fabric
{Hong Kong) Limited)
(RN
(&%) BRRR)
Dongguan BPT The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacturing and
RER G i capital tracing of elastic
(Note i HK$1,394,272,942 fabric and lace
(FizFi) HREMER BEREREILEN
1,304,272, 94278 0 HHREH
Dongguan NHE The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Manufacturing and
£ 15 h i capital trading of elastic
(Note i HK$367,250,000 webbing
(P BREMER BEREERIES
367,250,000 BT
Dongguan Best Pacific The PRC The PRC Paid-up registered 100 100 Purchase of
International Trading i i capital machineries, parts
Company Limited RMB1,000,000 and raw materials
ReBRERESARAT R iER RBRE T
(Note i AR1,000,0007 RIgwtHt
(Hs)
New Horizon International ~ BVI Hong Kong Ordlinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Limited EBRAHE i LEA 100 £ RERR
AEARRAARAR
Best Pacific International BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
(Vietnam) Company Limited  EBEXES B LAk £ AR
BRER (88) 5RAA
Best Pacific (Vietnam) Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited Bh e LER 1 BT RARKR
B2 (4m) ARAT

HERRERERAR/ - —FFRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

=

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

——Ft- A=t BILEE

Proportion of ownership

as at 31 December

interest held by the Company

B X Rl 2 718 ()

Charter capital/ *0H
Place of Paid up RY=A=t-A
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ et ok ikl
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
e/ BRER/
WELRER RS feny MRk /ifER  -8--F  -T-TF  IEER
% %
Best Pacific Vigtnam Vietnam Vietnam Charter capital 100 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited il il VND1,881,200,000,000 trading of elastic
BREEERAR ERER fabric and elastic
1,881,200,000,000 webbing
BEE HEREERILEN
EHREES
Best Pacffic International BVI Hang Kong Ordlinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Sri Lanka (Pannala) Limited  EBELEE e LER 100 =T RARK
Best Pacific Textiles Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordinary Sri Lankan 75 75 Manufacturing and
Lanka (Pvt) Limited HEFR EE S rupee 4,715,125,600 trading of elastic
(‘BPTL)) L@k 4,715,125,600 fabric and elastic
HEFREL webbing
BEREEEILED
EHREES
Best Pacific International BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
Sri Lanka (Thulhirya) EBRUES &b EBR100 2T RERR
Limited
Trischel Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Ordinary US$68,695,779 5] 51 Manufacturing and
L RS HE@F LB 68,695,779% T trading of elastic
fabric
HEREERLAN
H#
NexTex Innovations BVI Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 100 Investment holding
International Company ~ XBRZES e EERI00%ETT RAER
Limited
NexTex Innovations Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
Incorporation Limited 3 B LB 0008 and marketing
BENARRARAA REBRREH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. MBRARIZFHE (&)
Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December
Charter capital/ K2d
Place of Paid up RT=R=1-H
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ iR AR
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
MR/ EREL/
KWEARER LS feny MRk /iMER  -8--F  -T-%F  IEER
% %
NexTex Innovations Inc. The United States ~ The United States Ordinary US$0.02 100 100 Marketing
of America of America LER0.00%ET g4
X8 X8

Best Pacific International BV Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 N/A  Inactive
(Singapore) Limited AERAES Bk RRI100%T (Note iii) TER  Tmey

BRER (GTing) BRAR ( k=)

Bravo Great Development BV Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100 N/A Inactive
Limited iERARE B ERBI00XT  (Noteii) TER sy

BREERERAT (Pt &Fiii)

Guizhou Best Pacific Textle  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100 N/A  Investment holding
Technology Holdings t i HK$10,000,000 (Note iii TER AR
Company Limited #Hfi&710,000,000% 7T (b &Eiii)

BB AR RER
ARAH
(Note i
(Ft i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B#iZE T -—F +-_H=+—H

41. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

EFE

B X Rl 2 718 ()

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company
as at 31 December

Charter capital/ FoH
Place of Paid up RT=A=t-A
incorporation/ Place of share capital/ et ok ikl
Name of subsidiary establishment operation registered capital 2021 2020  Principal activities
MR/ ERER/
KEARER FR L3 Bewd MrkA/EMEx  —F--F  -3-TF  IEER
% %
Guizhou Best Pacific Textle ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100 NA  Inactive
Technology Limited e e RMBS$10,000,000 (Note i) TR Easg
ENERGBHBERAT &R (Rtaziii)
(Note il AR 10,000,0007T
(B 25
Guizhou New Horizon The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100 N/A Manufacturing and
Elastic Fabric G i RMBS$ 10,000,000 (Note i) NER  trading of
Company Limited HER ( k=) elastic webbing
ENERBMRNERAT AK#10,000,0007C BERERBIAS
(Note i
(B i)
Notes: BYAE
[0} As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other than BPT 0) RZBEZ—FRZZT_ZF+A=

Holdings which is a directly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, all of the above subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

(ii) The companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC.

(iii) The companies were established/incorporated by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued any
debt securities at the end of the reporting period.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE—

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests

The table below shares details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of incorporation

Proportion of ownership and

e B R MY A

B e e

41. BB RARIZHE (&)

BEEAFEREZZHZEMNBER
DI

TRANKSEHEEEANFZER LR Z
FEEMBARGFE

and principal place of voting rights held by (Loss) profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary  business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
MR IBER FERERERLZ
WEAREE TRERIHY FERRAZELH AREFERER (58) &7 it FBRER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=R=t-A BET-R=T-BLEE R+=A=t-A
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“EC-F Z%-% “EC-F S X2 ZEC-F -%-%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tihn Tén Tihn
BPTL Sri Lanka 25% 26% (7,682) (9,168) 30,224 37,688
LELRS
Trischel Sri Lanka 49% 49% 7,234 592 61,564 46,190
HERF
(448) (8576) 91,788 83,878

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ERBEEREERERNASEE
B AR BEERBAHETNT -
VAT B4 75 & L % it #5 & B A 2B 4K 85 Al
R FE o

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—8H
2021 2020
—B--—F —ECTHF
BPTL HK$°000 HK$’000
TAERT FHET
Current assets RBEE 135,483 67,558
Non-current assets ERBEE 396,097 411,997
Current liabilities mENBE (357,756) (290,446)
Non-current liabilities FnRBEE (52,919) (38,354)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RS AE(GHERE 90,681 113,067
Non-controlling interests of BPTL BPTLIEIE A 2 30,224 37,688
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41.
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(Continued)

MR R 2B (2)

BEEAFEZEREZZHZEMBER
AFE (&)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+t-HLFE

2021 2020
— —T_THF
BPTL (Continued) (#&) HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue ION 180,135 84,963
Loss for the year FEEE (30,724) (36,673)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RAFEE AELEE (23,042) (27,505)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling BPTLIEIE R s R (b B 18
interests of BPTL (7,682) (9,168)
Loss for the year FEEE (30,724) (36,673)
Other comprehensive income (expense) KRR ABLHEMEE
attributable to owners of the Company Wi (%) 656 (400)
Other comprehensive income (expense) BPTLIEIZ AR i 2 FE (G At
attributable to non-controling interests of 2HKE (Fx)
BPTL 218 (135)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEEMEEEEZ (AX)
for the year 874 (535)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to AAREEEEEEE
owners of the Company sk 4a % (22,386) (27,905)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to BPTLIFER R EE 2 E
non-controlling interests of BPTL X 2% (7,464) (9,308)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEEHERF AR (29,850) (37,208)
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

23— —E - SRS S EHIEAEE

M Rl 2718 ()
BREEARFERBEEZFZENBL

that have material non-controlling interests TISE (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December
R+=ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—BC--F —ECTHF
Trischel HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Current assets TEEE 312,214 193,460
Non-current assets ERBEE 206,698 179,104
Current liabilities mEaE (318,017) (251,509)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (75,257) (26,791)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RS AEGHEZE 64,074 48,074
Non-controlling interests of Trischel TrischelJEHE Mt zs 61,564 46,190
Year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=1t—HILLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Revenue WA 521,599 259,798
Profit for the year FEaA 14,761 1,209
Profit attributable to owners of RAFER AR RF
the Company 7,527 617
Profit attributable to the non-controlling TrischelJF 12 Bk i 25 FE 16 i A
interests of Trischel 7,234 592
Profit for the year FEHA 14,761 1,209
Other comprehensive income (expense) $QETT§EE ANEEEM
attributable to owners of the Company 2E¥E (%) 517 (157)
Other comprehensive income (expense) TrischelFF12 R AE a FE {5 oAt
attributable to non-controlling interests of 2HEWE (FX)
Trischel 496 (149)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the  FEEH M2 mEZS (FX)
year 1,013 (306)
Total comprehensive income attributable to NARIEA AELEEE
owners of the Company W Es4a%E 8,044 460
Total comprehensive income attributable to TrischelJEE iR i 2 FE 1
non-controlling interests of Trischel 2EKEAE 7,730 443
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEEY R AT 15,774 903
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z—

42.

P> 272

Tt A=t-ALEE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 42. METHELEZEBNYER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s THRANEEREZDELACAEBE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BHE REReKIIERSETH - 7
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BEBEEZBENABREREERN
from financing activities are those for which cash Y AXRBEREFNAEE Z? &Re
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in MEXRIPBERMETYRERELE
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows f& o
as cash flows from financing activities.
Bank and
Dividends other Lease
payable  borrowings* liabilities Total
BITR
ERRE Hep g HESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT THT AT
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZF—H—H — 2,187,095 73,400 2,260,495
Financing cash flows REHSRE (60,309) 22,948 (20,034) (57,395)
Dividends declared (Note 14) BEERRS (FiiE14) 60,309 - - 60,309
Finance costs (Note 9) BEMRA (MiEF9) - 75,072 5,131 80,203
New leases entered/lease modified =] ¥ E /TAEEET - - 31,635 31,635
Decrease in accrued interest e SR - (811) - (811)
Exchange adjustments 3 FMEJWZ - 2,217 - 2,217
At 31 December 2020 “ECEF
+ A=+—H - 2,286,521 90,132 2,376,653
Financing cash flows MABSRE (154931)  (189,509) (27,028)  (371,552)
Dividends declared (Note 14) EERARS (Fiit14) 154,931 - - 154,931
Finance costs (Note 9) BB (MiE9) - 59,938 6,283 66,221
New leases entered/lease modified EJVEHEE /BEEET - - 102,442 102,442
Exchange adjustments 0B i, F % - 3,538 (114) 3,424
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F
+=A=+-H - 2,160,404 171,715 2,332,119
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E =T =-—F+-_A=+—HILFE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE 43. BBEAXRAMBARRKER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
ot Ja. —E-TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KK B AFIFELEMIRE 111,010 105,883
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR ESNGIE O 612,728 555,696
723,738 661,579
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ EfEWIE « 4 K&
ARG 249 240
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR RIS 101 94
350 334
Current liability mEEE
Other payables HA IR 7 6
Net current assets REBEEZRE 343 328
EERE 724,081 661,907
Capital and reserves EXRRFHE
Share capital (Note 31) BRA (B&E31) 10,398 10,398
fEf 713,683 651,509
724,081 661,907
Composition of reserves A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T
Share premium f& & E 593,250 593,250
Retained profits RE = 120,433 58,259
713,683 651,509
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T =-—F+-A=+—HILFE

43. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 43. BRAAXRAUHMRRRER (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Movement in retained profits of the Company R FREEREH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 January m—H—H 58,259 13,368
Profit and total comprehensive REZ 5 K&
income for the year FHWERER 217,105 105,200
Dividends recognised as distribution R IR
(Note 14) (MI3E14) (154,931) (60,309)
At 31 December nt+=—A=+—H 120,433 58,259
The movement of share premium is set out in the RO RENSEHNIZEEEREK

consolidated statement of equity.
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A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, prepared on
the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
hFEFHENRE

AEEBREDEMBERIZA RS AEAERE
REMETIEZRE BEMNABEREBWT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-F —E-TF —T-NF —E-)\F& T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T FEIT FHET FETT FHEIT
(Note i) (Note ii)
igza) (B i)
Results E
Revenue N 4,792,661 3,494,274  3637,762 3,212,625 2,794,811
Profit for the year TR 401,346 249,193 299,079 280,232 303,635
Earnings per share FRAF
— Basic (HK cents) - BN (B) 38.64 24.79 28.92 27.34 29.45
- Diluted (HK cents) - 855 (B(L) N/A FEH NATEH 28.92 27.29 29.29
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B T TF —T-NEF T-)\& T—+F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT FHET FHBIT FHEIT
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Bt sE) (B i)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Current assets FEEE 3,623,493 3,018,630 2,596,408 2,227,922 1,669,337
Non-current assets FEREEE 3,378,325 3,308,217 3,268,819 2,960,513 2,545,561
Total assets BEAE 7,001,818 6,326,847 5865227 5,188,435 4,214,898
Current liabilities mEaE 2,808,343 2224353 2,589,414 1,707,791 924,990
Non-current liabilities FERBERE 820,229 1,084,313 660,735 1,023,224 989,246
Total liabilities BERE 3,628,572 3,308,666 3,250,149 2,731,015 1,914,236
Equity attributable to KATHER A
owners of the Company FEfG R 3,281,458 2,934,303 2,531,895 2,372,657 2,301,246
Non-controlling interests IR R R 91,788 83,878 83,183 84,763 (584)
Total equity R 3,373,246 3,018,181 2,615,078 2,457,420 2,300,662
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
hLFEFHEHRE

Notes:

M

(i)

>DD> 276

BT -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has (i)
applied HKFRS 16. Accordingly, certain comparative financial
information for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
may not be comparable as such comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 17 Leases.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had (if)
applied HKFRS 9. Accordingly, certain comparative financial
information for the years ended 31 December 2017 may

not be comparable as such comparative information was

prepared under HKAS 39 Financial instruments — Recognition

and Measurement.
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